POLISH ACADEMY OF SCIENCES MEDICAL RESEARCH CENTRE

REPORT ON SCIENTIFIC ACTIVITIES 1996

WARSZAWA - 1997

Editors: Dr. Halina Weinrauder-Semkow Wanda Dziedzic

Scientific Consultants: Prof. Jan Albrecht Prof. Mieczysław Pokorski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research

Polish Academy of Sciences
Medical Research Centre
5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw - Poland
Telephones: (48-22) 668 52 50, 608 64 93
Fax: (48-22) 668 55 32

CONTENTS

Page

EXECUTIVE BOARD	5
MRC SCIENTIFIC COUNCIL	7
STAFF LIST	9
RESEARCH REPORT	43
Department of Neurophysiology	45
Laboratory of Experimental Pharmacology	49
Department of Neurochemistry	51
Department of Cellular Signalling	59
Department of Neurotoxicology	63
Department of Neuropathology	65
Department of Developmental Neuropathology	74
Laboratory of the Ultrastructure of the Nervous System	76
Department of Neurosurgery	78
Neuromuscular Unit	80
Department of Applied Physiology	85
Laboratory of Renal and Body Fluid Physiology	90
Outpatient Cardiac Unit for Diagnosis and Therapy	92
Cardiovascular Laboratory	94
Department for Surgical Research and Transplantation	96
Neuropeptide Laboratory	106
Department of Endocrinology	107
Library	110
MEDIPAN - Scientific Instruments Department	111
INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION	113
Visiting Scientists	115
Visits Abroad	117
Participation in International Meetings	122
SCIENTIFIC DEGREES	129
SCIENTIFIC MEETINGS ORGANIZED	
BY THE MEDICAL RESEARCH CENTRE	133
PUBLICATIONS	139
COMMUNICATIONS	159

EXECUTIVE BOARD

Director:

Professor Mirosław J. Mossakowski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sc., D.h.c. Member of the Polish Academy of Sciences

Scientific Directors:

Professor Jan Albrecht, M.Biol., Ph.D., D.Sc. Professor Jerzy W. Łazarewicz, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sc.

Managing Director:

Eugeniusz Kaczmarczyk, M.C.L.

MRC SCIENTIFIC COUNCIL

Chairman: Adam Nowosławski

Vice-Chairman: Janusz Nauman

Secretary: Bogna Szereda-Przestaszewska

Members:

Jan Albrecht Stefan Angielski Włodzimierz Bicz Krystyna Cedro-Ceremużyńska Zbigniew Czernicki Maria Dambska Krystyna Domańska-Janik Kazimierz Dux Anna Fidziańska-Dolot Barbara Gaikowska Bogusław Halikowski Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz Wojciech Hilgier Janusz Jeliaszewicz Jerzy Jurkiewicz Hanna Kaciuba-Uściłko Leszek Kaczmarek Józef Kałuża Andrzej Kapuściński Witold Karczewski Maria Kopeć Wojciech Kostowski Andrzej Kukwa Bohdan Lewartowski Andrzej Lipkowski

Jerzy Łazarewicz Jerzy Maj Witold Mazurowski Mirosław J. Mossakowski **Olgierd Narkiewicz** Krystyna Nazar Waldemar Olszewski Kazimierz Ostrowski Edmund Przegaliński Janina Rafałowska Urszula Rafałowska Wojciech Rowiński Witold Rudowski Jan Ryżewski Janusz Sadowski Joanna Strosznaider Andrzej Szutowicz Andrzei Trzebski Jerzy Vetulani Michał Walski Mieczysław Wender Ewa Wójcik-Ziółkowska Andrzei Ziemba Bogusław Żernicki

STAFF LIST

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROPHYSIOLOGY Head: Assoc. Prof. Mieczysław Pokorski

Scientific Staff

Krystyna Budzińska, M. Pharm., Ph.D. Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Physiological Society

Leszek Czerwosz, M. Phys. Member of European Respiratory Society

Nargiman Dziadosz, M. Biol.

Maria Głogowska, M.D., Ph.D. (until July 1996) Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Physiological Society

Henryk Gromysz, M. Biol., Ph.D.

Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Physiological Society

Urszula Jernajczyk, M.Biol., Ph.D. (until September 1996) Member of: Polish Physiological Society Polish Sleep Research Society

Andrzej Kukwa, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Anatomopathological Society Polish Laryngological Society Polish Sleep Research Society

Mieczysław Pokors	ski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neurophysiology
Member of:	International Society for Neurochemistry
	European Respiratory Society
	American Physiological Society
	German Physiological Society
	New York Academy of Sciences
Desta Calcalanalia	M Disco

Beata Sokolowska, M. Phys.

Robert Strosznajder, M. Zoot., Ph.D.

Member of: Arterial Chemoreception Society Polish Biochemical Society Polish Physiological Society

Bogna Szereda-Przestaszewska, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof.

of Neurophysiology

Member of: European Respiratory Society The Physiological Society Polish Physiological Society

Ewa Wojtal, M. Biol., Ph.D. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Beata Wypych, M. Biol.

Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Physiological Society

Technical Staff

Karina Goldsztajn, Kinga Sroczyńska, Teresa Warnawin

Administrative Staff

Renata Kawka, secretary

LABORATORY OF EXPERIMENTAL PHARMACOLOGY Head: Assoc. Prof. Paweł Grieb

Scientific Staff

Stanisław J. Chrapusta, M.Sci.Chem., Ph.D. (since February 1996)

 Pawel Grieb, M.Biol., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Natural Sciences

 Member of:
 International Society of Oxygen Transport to Tissue

 European Respiratory Society

 Polish Physiological Society

 New York Academy of Sciences

Wiktor Janczewski, M.Sci.Eng., Ph.D. Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Physiological Society Polish Sleep Research Society

Miroslaw Ryba, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neurophysiology Member of: European Respiratory Society Polish Physiological Society New York Academy of Sciences

Technical Staff Monika Janisz

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROCHEMISTRY Head: Professor Jerzy W. Łazarewicz

Laboratory of Pharmaconeurochemistry Head: Professor Jerzy W. Łazarewicz

Scientific Staff

Mohd Alaraj, Eng., Ph.D. (since February 1996)

Wanda Gordon-Krajcer, M. Pharm., Ph.D. Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry American Academy of Neurology Polish Biochemical Society

Irena Kosińska, Eng., (since February 1996)

Jerzy W. Lazarewicz, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: Committee of Neurological Sciences of Polish Academy

of Sciences

International Brain Research Organization (IBRO)

International Society for Neurochemistry

European Society for Neurochemistry

Polish Neuroscience Society

Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Polish Society of Biochemistry

Member of Editorial Boards of:

Molecular and Chemical Neuropathology Acta Neurobiologiae Experimentalis Folia Neuropathologica

Member of Scientific Council: Nencki Institute of Experimental Biology, PASci

Elżbieta Salińska, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society

Aleksandra Stafiej, M.Chem.

Technical Staff Halina Nowińska, Anna Sobczuk, Apolonia Ziembowicz

Administrative Staff Maria Izak, secretary

Laboratory of Pathobiochemistry of the Central Nervous System Head: Professor Urszula Rafałowska

Scientific Staff

Beata Dąbrowska-Bouta, M.Biol. Member of European Neuroscience Association (ENA)

Urszula Rafałowska, M.Biol., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Natural Sciences Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Lidia Struzynska, M.Anal.Med., Ph.D.

Member of: Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Jolanta Waskiewicz, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Technical Staff Aleksandra Lenkiewicz

Laboratory of Molecular Neuropathology Head: Assoc. Prof. Krystyna Domańska-Janik

Scientific Staff

Krystyna Domańsk	a-Janik, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Medical
Member of:	International Brain Research Organization (IBRO) International Neuropathological Society European Neuroscience Association (ENA) European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Society of Biochemistry
Joanna Sypecka, M	.Biol., Ph.D.
Member of:	European Neuroscience Association (ENA) Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry
Barbara Zablocka.	M.Biol.
Member of:	International Brain Research Organization (IBRO) European Neuroscience Association (ENA) Polish Neuroscience Society
Teresa Zalewska. N	1.Pharm., PhD.
Member of:	International Neuropathological Society European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Society of Biochemistry
Technical Staff	

Teresa Czachmańska, Halina Zając

DEPARTMENT OF CELLULAR SIGNALLING Head: Professor Joanna Strosznajder

Scientific Staff

Malgorzata Chalimoniuk, M.Chem. Member of Polish Society of Biochemistry

Bronisław Głód, M.Chem, Ph.D. Member of Polish Chemical Society

Maciej M. Lalowski, M. Biol.

Member of Polish Society of Biochemistry

Marek Samochocki, M.Chem.

Member of: International Brain Research Organization (IBRO) International Society for Neurochemistry European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Joanna Strosznajder, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Medical Sciences

Member of: International Brain Research Organization (IBRO) International Neuropathological Society International Society for Brain Edema International Society for Neurochemistry European Society for Neurochemistry American Society for Neurochemistry New York Academy of Sciences Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neurological Society Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Technical Staff

Danuta Kacprzak, Stanisława Kuciak, Dorota Pazikowska, Irena Sawicz (until May 1996), Magdalena Skorupka

Administrative Staff

Maria Izak, secretary

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROTOXICOLOGY Head: Professor Jan Albrecht

Scientific Staff

Jan Albrecht, M.Biol., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Biomedical Sciences Member of: International Society for Developmental Neuroscience (Member of the Board) European Society for Neurochemistry (Member of the Council) European Glial Network (Regional Officer) International Society of Neuropathology Mayo Alumni Association Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neuroscience Society Scientific Society of Warsaw Member of Editorial Boards of: Journal of Neuroscience Research Metabolic Brain Research Molecular and Chemical Neuropathology

Hanna Borkowska, M.Agr.Sci.

Monika Dolińska, M.Sci.

Anna Dybel, M.Biol. (since September 1996)

Lidia Faff-Michalak, M.Pharm, PhD. Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Neuroscience Society

Wojciech Hilgier, M.Pharm., Ph.D. Member of: European Society for Neurochemistry Polish Biochemical Society

Magdalena Wojda, M.Sci. (since September 1996)

Technical Staff Inez Freśko, Gertruda Kaplińska, Mirosława Poławska

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROPATHOLOGY Head: Professor Andrzej Kapuściński

Scientific Staff

Jolanta Baraniecka, M.Chem. (eng)

Maria Barcikowska-Litwin, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci.

Member of: European Association of Neuroscience International Society of Neuropathology World Federation of Neurology Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Polish

Association

Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Gerontology Society Polish Neurological Society Polish Neuroscience Society

Roman Gadamski, M.Vet., Ph.D. Member of Polish Anatomical Society

Adam Goląbek, M.Biol. Ph.D., (since November 1996)

 Andrzej Kapuściński, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Nuclear Medicine Member of: European Association of Nuclear Medicine International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Radiological Society Polish Society of Nuclear Medicine

Elżbieta Kida, M.D., Ph.D.

Member of: World Federation of Neurology American Association for the Advancement of Sciences Polish Neurological Society

Ewa Koźniewska-Kołodziejska, M.Phys., Ph.D., D.Sci.

Member of: Polish Physiological Society International Society of Cerebral Blood Flow and Metabolism Section of Experimental Cardiology of the Polish Society of Cardiology Stanisław Krajewski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neuropathology Member of: International Society of Neuropathologie und Neuroanatomie
 Polish Association of Neuropathologists
 Halina Kroh, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neuropathology Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists
 Ewa Matyja, M.D., Ph.D. D.Sci. Member of: World Federation of Neurology

ember of: World Federation of Neurology International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neurological Society

Mirosław J. Mossakowski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neuropathology Doctor honoris causa of Medical School in Gdańsk Doctor honoris causa of Medical School in Lublin Member of the Polish Academy of Sciences Foreign Member of the Russian Academy of Medical Sciences Corresponding Member of the Mexican Academy of Culture

Member of: Committee of Biocybernetics and Biochemical Engineering of Polish Academy of Sciences Committee of Neurological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences International Board of Danube Symposia of Neurosciences International Brain Research Organization (IBRO) International Society of Neuropathology World Federation of Neurology Neuropathological Commission of WFN World Confederation of Neurosciences (Phronesis) European Federation of Neurological Societies American Association of Neuropathologists Polish Association of Neuropathologists (President) Polish Cyto- and Histochemical Society Polish Neurological Society Polish Neuroscience Society (Past President)

Polish Pathological Society (Honorary Member)
Scientific Society of Warsaw
Member of Scientific Councils:
Institute of Biocybernetics and Biomedical Engineering, PASci
Institute of Pharmacology, PASci
Member of Editorial Boards:
Clinical Neuropathology
Journal of Physiology and Pharmacology
Neurologia i Neurochirurgia Polska
Folia Neuropathologica

Lija Nikolaishvili, M.Biol., Ph.D. (until April 1996)

Elżbieta Paplińska, M.Biol.

Anna Pfeffer-Baczuk, M.D.

Member of: World Federation of Neurology Polish Alzheimer's Association Polish Neurological Society

Piotr Piotrowski, M.D.

Ryszard Pluta, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of NeuropathologyMember of:European Society for Clinical Respiratory PhysiologyInternational Society of NeuropathologyPolish Association of NeuropathologistsPolish Neuroscience Society

Robert Ostrowski, M.D.

Iwona Przybysz, M.Biol.

Grażyna Szumańska, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Cyto- and Histochemical Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Mieczyslaw Śmiałek, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neuropathology Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Anna Taraszewska, M.D., Ph.D.

Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Halina Weinrauder-Semkow, M.Biol., Ph D.

Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists (Secretary)

Irmina B. Zelman, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neuropathology Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists Member of Editorial Board of Folia Neuropathologica

Technical Staff

Hanna Chrzanowska, Anna Dubiel, Irena Dybkowska-Anc, Elżbieta Grzywaczewska, Sławomir Januszewski, Jadwiga Kędzierska, Małgorzata Knejczuk-Wesoła, Małgorzata Kobryś, Zdzisława Kowalska, Wanda Ogonowska, Teresa Pańkowska, Izabella Przekop, Barbara Śliwińska, Lidia Radomska (since September 1996), Krystyna Wierzbicka, Renata Wojda, Maria Zielińska

Administrative Staff

Teresa Miodowska, secretary

LABORATORY OF DEVELOPMENTAL NEUROPATHOLOGY Head: Assoc. Prof. Danuta Maślińska

Scientific Staff

Maria Dambska, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neuropathology Member of: Committee of Neurological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences Committee of Human Development of Polish Academy of Sciences International Society of Developmental Neurosciences International Society of Neuropathology Société Française de Neuropathologie Polish Association of Pediatric Neurologists Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neurological Society Polish Neuroscience Society Warsaw Scientific Society Editor in Chief of Folia Neuropathologica Member of Editorial Board of Clinical Neuropathology Lech Iwanowski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neuropathology International Society of Neuropathology Member of: Polish Neurological Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists Izabela Kuchna, M.D., Ph.D. Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Neurological Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists Milena Laure-Kamionowska, M.D., Ph.D. Member of: International Society of Neuropathology Polish Neurological Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists Danuta Maslinska, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: International Society of Neuropathology New York Academy of Sciences

Polish Cyto- and Histochemical Society Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Mariusz Muzylak, M.Vet.

Member of Polish Neuroscience Society

Technical Staff

Jolanta Opertowska, Barbara Raczkowska, Jolanta Toborowicz, Elżbieta Wanacka, Halina Winiarska

Administrative Staff

Danuta Krysztofiak - secretary, Lidia Wąsowska - secretary

LABORATORY OF THE ULTRASTRUCTURE OF THE NERVOUS SYSTEM Head: Assoc. Prof. Barbara Gajkowska

Scientific Staff

Malgorzata Frontczak-Baniewicz, M. Biol.

Barbara Gajkowska, M.Biol., Ph.D., D. Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: International Society of Neuropathology New York Academy of Sciences Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Histochemical and Cytochemical Society

Michał Walski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: Commission of Electron Microscopy of Polish Academy of Sciences

> International Society of Neuropathology New York Academy of Sciences Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Parasitological Society Polish Society of Pathology

Technical Staff

Henryk Bilski, Wanda Ciesielska, Teresa Barszcz

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROSURGERY Head: Professor Zbigniew Czernicki

Scientific Staff

Jarosław Andrychowski, M.D. Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association Jacek Bogucki, M.D. Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association Zbigniew Czernicki, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neurosurgery Member of: Committee of Neurological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences Committee of Pathophysiology of Intracranial Pressure of Polish Academy of Sciences (Chairman) Commission of Neurotraumatology of Polish Academy of Sciences European Association of Neurosurgeons Societies Euro-Academy for Multidisciplinary Neurotraumatology (Board Member) Brain Edema Society Magnetic Resonance Society New York Academy of Sciences Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association Member of Editorial Board of : Acta Neurochirurgica Neurologia i Neurochirurgia Polska

Jacek Dziduszko, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci. Member of Polish Society of Neurosurgeons

Anatol Dowżenko, M.D., Ph.D., D. Sci. Member of Polish Society of Radiology

Ewa Fersten, M.Psych., Ph.D. Member of Warsaw Medical Association

Witold Grochowski, M.D., Ph.D. Member of Polish Society of Neurosurgeons

Dariusz Horsztyński, M.D.

Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Jerzy Jurkiewicz, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Neurosurgery Member of: Commission of Pathophysiology of Intracranial Pressure (ICP) of Polish Academy of Sciences European Association of Neurosurgeons Societies Euro-Academy for Multidisciplinary Neurotraumatology (Board Member)

Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Polish Society of Neuroanesthesiology Warsaw Medical Association (President)

Nana Kuridze, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Member of European Society of Microcirculation

Elżbieta Łuczywek, M.Psych., Ph.D.

Member of: Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Polish Association Polish Neurosciences Society Polish Psychological Society Warsaw Medical Association

Piotr Marszalek, M.D.

Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Eugeniusz Mempel, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neurosurgery

Member of: European Association of Neurosurgeons Societies European Society of Functional and Stereotaxic Neurosurgery Polish Cryosurgical Society Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Michal Mierzejewski, M.D.

Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Grażyna Milach-Uchman, M.D. (until October 1996) Member of Polish Society of Neuroanesthesiology

Paweł Nauman, M.D. (since March 1996) Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Stefan Piechnik, M.Sc.eng.

Wojciech Sapieja, M.D.

Member of: Polish Society of Neurosurgeons Warsaw Medical Association

Grażyna Stępińska, M.D.

Member of Polish Society of Neuroanesthesiology

Barbara Witkiewicz, M.D.

Member of Polish Neurological Society

Wojciech Zabołotny, M.Sc.eng.

Jerzy Walecki, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Radiology Member of: Polish Society of Radiology Magnetic Resonance Society

Technical Staff

Alicja Arent, Urszula Borowska, Elżbieta Kunicka, Elżbieta Matysiak, Michał Małyska (since September 1996), Sławomir Matyjek

Administrative Staff

Elżbieta Kamińska, M.Tour., secretary

NEUROMUSCULAR UNIT Head: Professor Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz

Scientific Staff

Hanna Drac, M.D., Ph.D.

Member of:	International Society of Neuropathology
	World Federation of Neurology
	Polish Association of Neuropathologists
	Polish Neurological Society

Anna Fidzianska-Dolot, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neurology

Member of: International Society of Neuropathology World Federation of Neurology Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neurological Society

Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, M.D. Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Neurology Doctor honoris causa, L. Pasteur University of Strassburg

Corresponding Member of Polish Academy of Sciences

Honorary Member of Gaetano Conte Academy

Member of: Committee of Biocybernetics of Polish Academy of Sciences Committee of Neurological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences

> World Federation of Neurology Neuromuscular Commission of WFN Consortium European Neuromuscular Center Europaean Federation of Neurological Societies (Chairman of Muscle Panel)

> Polish Neurological Society Polish Society of Electroencephalography and Clinical Neurophysiology

Honorary Member of:

European Neurological Society American Neurological Society American Association for Electrodiagnosis Bulgarian Neurological Society Czecho-Slovak Neurological Society French Neurological Society German EEG Society German Neurological Society Italian Neurological Society Member of Editorial Boards of:

Core Journal EMG and Clinical Neurology Journal Journal of Neurological Sciences Neuromuscular Disorders Neurologia i Neurochirurgia Polska

Anna Kamińska, M.D., Ph.D.

Member of: International Society of Neuropathology World Federation of Neurology European Society for Clinical Investigations Polish Neurological Society Polish Association of Neuropathologists

Małgorzata Kozlowska, M.D.

Member of Polish Neurological Society

Elżbieta Kowalska-Olędzka, M.D.

Irena Niebrój-Dobosz, M.D., Ph.D., D. Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Medical Sciences Member of: Polish Neurological Society Polish Neuroscience Society Polish Society of Biochemistry

Janina Rafalowska, M.D., Ph.D., D. Sci., Professor of Neurology Member of: World Federation of Neurology International Society of Neuropathology Polish Association of Neuropathologists Polish Neurological Society

Katarzyna Rowińska-Marcińska, M.D., Ph.D., D. Sci., Professor of Neurology Member of: World Federation of Neurology

Polish EEG and Neurophysiological Society Polish Neurological Society

Maria H. Strugalska-Cynowska, M.D., Ph.D. Member of: World Federation of Neurology

Polish Histochemical Society Polish Neurological Society

Technical Staff Hanna Matz, Andrzej Stachurski

Administrative Staff Ewa Warelis-Witkowska, secretary

DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY Head: Professor Hanna Kaciuba-Uściłko

Scientific Staff

Barbara Bicz, M.Biol., Ph.D. Member of Polish Society of Biochemistry

Zofia Brzezińska, M.Pharm., Ph.D.

Member of: Polish Society of Biochemistry Polish Physiological Society

Leszek Budohoski, M.Chem., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Physiology Member of: Polish Society of Biochemistry Polish Physiological Society

Jolanta Chwalbińska-Moneta, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Physiology Member of: Polish Physiological Society Polish Society of Sports Medicine

Gerard Cybulski, M.Sc.eng., Ph.D. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Anna Dubaniewicz, M.Biol. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Ilona Falęcka-Wieczorek, M.Biol., Ph.D. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Monika Górecka, M.Biol.

- Ryszard Grucza, M.Sc., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Physiology Member of Polish Society of Sports Medicine
- Hanna Kaciuba-Uścilko, M.Zoot., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Physiology Member of: Committee of Physiological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences Thermal Commission of the International Union of Physiological Sciences

European College of Sport Science International Society for Gravitational Physiology Polish Physiological Society Polish Society of Sports Medicine The Polish Scientific Society of Obesity and Metabolism

Barbara Kruk, M.Biol., Ph.D., D. Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Physiology Member of Polish Physiological Society

Hubert Krysztofiak, M.D.

Member of Polish Physiological Society

Krzysztof Krzemiński, M.D., Ph.D.

Józef Langfort, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Member of: Polish Physiological Society Polish Society of Sports Medicine

Krystyna Nazar, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Medical Sciences
 Member of: Committee of Physiological Sciences of Polish Academy of Sciences
 Research Group on Biochemistry of Exercise International Council of Sport Science and Physical Education
 European College of Sport Science (Fellow-Member)
 Polish Physiological Society
 Polish Society of Sports Medicine
 The Polish Scientific Society of Obesity and Metabolism
 Member of Editorial Boards of:
 Biology of Sports
 International Journal of Sports Medicine
 Journal of Physiology and Pharmacology
 Medycyna Sportowa

Wiktor Niewiadomski, M.D., Ph.D.

Marcin Synak, M.Chem.

Elżbieta Titow-Stupnicka, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Andrzej W. Ziemba, M.Biol., Ph.D. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Ewa Żernicka, M.Biol. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Technical Staff

Bożena Kurek, Wanda Radziszewska, Jadwiga Wężowska, Lidia Wiśnik

Administrative Staff

Barbara Tomczak, secretary, Eliza Szczęsna

LABORATORY OF RENAL AND BODY FLUID PHYSIOLOGY Head: Professor Janusz Sadowski

Scientific Staff

Bożena Bądzyńska, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Leszek Dobrowolski, M.Biol., Ph.D.

Elżbieta Kompanowska-Jezierska, M.Biol., Ph.D. Member of Polish Physiological Society

Janusz Sadowski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Medical Sciences Member of: American Physiological Society Hungarian Physiological Society (Honorary Member) Association for the Advancement of Sciences Polish Physiological Society Polish Society of Nephrology

Agnieszka Walkowska, M.Biol.

OUTPATIENT CARDIAC UNIT FOR DIAGNOSIS AND THERAPY Head: Dr. Ewa Wójcik-Ziółkowska

Scientific Staff

Wiesława Pawłowska-Jenerowicz, M.D.

Magdalena Płachcińska-Bijak, M.D.

Celina Romiszowska, M.D.

Ewa Wójcik-Ziółkowska, M.D., Ph.D. Member of: Association for Cardiac Prevention and Rehabilitation named after Dr. Lech Ziółkowski (President) Polish Cardiac Society

Technical Staff

Maria Koszutska, Wiesława Kowalska, Jolanta Wiśniakowska, Hanna Zduńczyk

CARDIOVASCULAR LABORATORY Head: Professor Krystyna Cedro-Ceremużyńska

Scientific Staff

Krystyna Cedro-Ceremuzyńska, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Medical

Sciences

Member of: International Society for Heart Research European Society for Clinical Investigations Polish Cardiac Society Polish Physiological Society

Technical Staff Stefania Słyk

DEPARTMENT FOR SURGICAL RESEARCH AND TRANSPLANTATION Head: Professor Waldemar Olszewski

Scientific Staff

Marek Durlik, M.D., Ph.D.

Sergiusz Durowicz, M.D. Member of Polish Immunological Society

Andrzej Dworczyński, M.D. (since August 1996)

Hanna Galkowska, M.Sc., Ph.D. Member of Polish Immunological Society

Irena Grzelak, M.Sci, Ph D. Member of Polish Immunological Society (Secretary General)

Slawa Janczewska, M. Anal. Med.

Magdalena Jasklowska-Englisz, M.Sci., Ph.D. (until November 1996) Member of: The Transplantation Society (Technical Secretary) Polish Immunological Society

Urszula Kubicka, M.Sc., Ph.D., Member of Polish Immunological Society (Technical Secretary)

Barbara Łukomska, M.Vet., PhD., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Surgery
Member of:Polish Immunological Society
Poland-Japan Society for Exchange in Surgery
Society of Natural Immunity
The Transplantation Society

Michał Maksymowicz, M.D.

Andrzej Namysłowski, M.D. Member of Polish Immunological Society Waldemar L. Olszewski, M.D., Ph.D., D.Sci., Professor of Surgery Honorary Professor, St. Bartholomew's Medical School, London Visiting Professor, Norwegian Radium Hospital, Oslo Argentinian Phlebolymphological Society Member of: Brasilian Vascular Society (Honorary Member) European Society for Surgical Research (Past President) Group Europeen de Limfologie (Board Member) International Society of Lymphology (Past President) Italian Lymphological Society Korean Medical Association (Honorary Member) Poland-Japan Society for Echange in Surgery (Secretary General) Polish Immunological Society (President, Head of Transplantation Immunology Section) Association of Polish Surgeons (Head of Section Fundamental Problems in Surgery) The Transplantation Society Member of Editorial Boards of: Angiology International (Europe) Archivum Immunologiae et Therapie Experimentalis European Journal of Lymphology (Europe) Flebolinfologia Italiana (Italy) Immunologia Polska Lymphology (USA) Phlebolymphology (Spain) Transplantation International (Europe) Zeitschrift für Experimentelle Chirurgie (Germany)

Ewi Orlewska, M.D., Ph.D. Member of Polish Immunological Society

Emlia Poreda, M.Biol.

Daruta Sadowska-Ryffa, M.Sc. Member of Polish Immunological Society

Grzegorz Szczęsny, M.D.

Technical Staff

Ewa Cybulska, Warda Gawron (until October 1996), Dorota Laszuk, Bożena Mecner, Alfred Nowotka, Ewa Paciorek, Krzysztof Plisak, Ewa Stelmach, Iwona Tyszer, Urszula Wojewódzka, Marzanna Zaleska, Anna Ziółkowska (Member of Polish Immunological Society)

Administrative Staff

Helena Kwaszczyńska, M.Law - secretary, Ewa Rytter, M.Arts. - secretary (until September 1996), Anna Lendzion-Radajewska (since October 1996)
LABORATORY OF NEUROPEPTIDES Head: Assoc. Prof. Andrzej Lipkowski

Scientific Staff

Przemysław Jakubowski, M.D.

Dariusz Kosson, M.D.

Barbara Kwiatkowska-Patzer, M.D., Ph.D.

Member of: International Society for Heart Research Polish Cardiac Society Polish Pediatric Society Polish Pharmacological Society Multiple Sclerosis Society of Poland

Andrzej Lipkowski, M.Chem., Ph.D., D.Sci., Assoc. Prof. of Endocrinology Research Fellow, Department of Anesthesia, Massachusets General

Hospital, Harvard Medical School, Boston, USA

Member of: International Association for Study of Pain European Peptide Society American Chemical Society American Peptide Society Polish Chemical Society Polish Society of Biochemistry Polish Pharmacological Society Member of Editorial Boards of: International Journal of Peptide and Protein Research Klinika

Iwona Maszczyńska, M.Pharm.

Anna Minich, M.Chem.

Aleksandra Misicka-Kęsik, M.Chem., Ph.D. Member of: American Peptide Society European Peptide Society

Brunon Sagan, M.Biol. (since July 1996)

DEPARTMENT OF ENDOCRINOLOGY Head: Professor Janusz Nauman

Scientific Staff

Zbigniew Bartoszewicz, M.Chem.

Tomasz Bednarczuk, M.D.

Jacek Kiljanski, M.D., Ph.D.

Dorota Krzeska, M.D.

Janusz Nauman, M.D., Ph.D., D. Sci., Professor of Medical Sciences Member of European Society for Clinical Investigations

Administrative Staff

Maria Falacinska-Bojakowska - secretary

RESEARCH REPORT

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROPHYSIOLOGY Head: Professor Mieczysław Pokorski 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 54 16, 608 65 20 Fax: 668 54 16 E-mail: mpokorski@medres.cmdik.pan.pl

CONTINUATION OF THE STUDIES ON THE FUNCTION OF CAROTID BODIES AND ON THE ROLE OF VAGAL C FIBERS IN REFLEX APNOEA Prof. Mieczysław Pokorski

The studies on the effects on the hypoxic respiratory response and the carotid body ultrastructure of the phospholipase C inhibitor phenylmethylsulphonyl fluoride (PMSF) were continued in anesthetized cats. PMSF was administered intraperitoneally. The experiments were carried out before and in defined time periods after the administration of PMSF. Double-control experiments were performed on non-injected and medium-injected cats. The results demonstrate that the stimulatory hypoxic respiratory response was abolished 7 days after the PMSF injection. This was accompanied by profound degenerative changes in the carotid body parenchyma, most notable in the chemoreceptor cells. These results indicate that inhibition of phospholipase C has a profound inhibitory effect on carotid body function. It is concluded that degeneration of phosphoinositols is involved with the transduction of a hypoxic signal in the carotid body. (M. Pokorski)

The occurrence of prompt and constant apnoea induced by capsaicin administration into the right side of circulation in cats, as well as the depression of tidal volume in resumed breathing, rely on preserved vagal pathways. Capsaicin challenge to the left ventricle or to the common carotid artery evokes variable apnoeic spells occurring independently of reserved or damaged vagal feedback. Chemoreflex provoked by intracarotid capsaicin injection is coupled with hyperventilatory response, undergoing beyond the vagal loop. (M. Szereda-Przestaszewska and B. Wypych)

In the follow up studies on the role of ATP in phospholipids degeneration by phospholipase C, the influence of this nucleotide as a potential regulator of phospholipase activity in the brain cortex was tested. The results indicate that ATP acting extracellularly through a purinergic receptor(s) activates PtdIns (4,5)P, degradation and release of $Ins(1,4,5)P_3$. ATP acting directly on PLC inhibits in a receptor-independent manner phosphoinositide degradation and protects against liberation of lipid-derived second messengers. (R. Strosznajder)

STUDY OF NEURAL AND NEUROCHEMICAL MECHANISMS OF RESPIRATORY PATTERN CONTROL Dr. Krystyna Budzińska

Study was undertaken to investigate the role of phospholipids pathway in short term potentiation (STP) of hypoglossal nerve activity evoked by stimulation of superior laryngeal nerve. This phenomenon consists in persistence of the effect of stimulation during some time after cessation of stimulation. In the experiments on rabbits a precursor of phospholipids, Citicoline, was used and the effects of SLN stimulation before and after Citicoline treatment were studied. It was found that Citicoline increases both the induction and maintenance of potentiation of hypoglossal nerve activity due to superior laryngeal nerve stimulation. It suggests that phospholipids pathway plays a role in modulation of short-term potentiation of hypoglossal nerve activity. The mechanism of respiratory STP differs from that of hippocampal LTP. (K. Budzińska and E. Wojtal)

A degree of compensation after gradual and entire denervation of the diaphragm muscle in the respiratory system was studied. The experiments were performed on anesthetized and spontaneously breathing cats. Parameters of ventilation, activities of the both phrenic nerves and EMG of the diaphragm were evaluated. It was found that unilateral phrenicotomy was well compensated by non-paralysed part of the diaphragm muscle. While after the paralysis of diaphragm (the dominant of the respiratory muscle), efficiency of the respiratory system was diminished. This was expressed in a decrease the minute ventilation and augmentation the respiratory drive. (B. Sokołowska)

Changes in the inflation Hering-Breuer reflex following pharmacological blockade of the nucleus trigemini sensibilis: Experiments were performed in anesthetized, paralyzed, unilaterally vagotomized, and artificially ventilated rabbits. Tracheal pressure, expiratory carbon dioxide concentrate, and integrated activity of the phrenic nerve and medullary respiratory neurons were recorded. Before and after the blockade of the nucleus trigemini sensibilis with 2 μ l polocaine injection, the inflation Hering-Breuer reflex was induced by clamping the trachea at the peak of inflation. Before the blockade of the nucleus trigemini sensibilis, average expiratory time following the trachea clamping increased by 120% compared with control expiration. After the blockade, average expiratory time following the trachea clamping increased by 304% compared with its respective control. This large increase in the duration of expiration following the blockade of the nucleus trigemini sensibilis speaks for the contribution of this structure to the inhibition of expiration. (H. Gromysz)

ARACHIDONIC ACID IN THE CELLULAR MECHANISMS OF SIGNAL TRANSDUCTION IN THE CAROTID BODIES Dr. Robert Strosznajder

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 6 P207 029 05

The results of this study demonstrate that hypoxia caused a significant decrease in incorporation of [1-¹⁴C] AA specifically into PtdIns. Hypoxia had no significant effect on the level of AA radioactivity in DAG as compared to control but significantly enhanced the level of AA-CoA radioactivity. In the normoxic SCG, DA significantly decreased AA incorporation into PtdCh, PtdIns and DAG. Moreover, DA decreased the level of AA-CoA radioactivity. Dopamine had no effect on AA incorporation into phospholipids of hypoxic SCG.

ARACHIDONATE METABOLISM IN THE BRAIN Dr. Robert Strosznajder

The results of this study indicate that: (1) arachidonate is able to cross at a relevant rate BRB and BBB; (2) in all brain regions except retina, optic tract and hippocampus, blood barriers have a transport capacity for AA significantly higher than that for docosahexaenoate and palmitate; (3) aging does not affect influx into retina and other structures of rat central nervous system of the arachidonate.

ROLE OF THE LARYNGEAL VALVULAR MECHANISM AND OF THE THORACIC EXPIRATORY MUSCLES IN REFLEX APNOEA EVOKED BY STIMULATION OF CHEMOSENSITIVE LUNG C-FIBRES

Beata Wypych

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 096 10

Serotonin is an endogenous autacoid contained within the lungs. When injected into the right side of circulation in cats evokes pulmonary chemoreflex. Its respiratory component consists of prompt apnoea, followed by rapid shallow breathing. Arrest of the respiratory airflow during apnoea is coupled with simultaneous inhibition of inspiratory and expiratory motoneurones of the respiratory muscles.

The reported experiments have shown that during post-serotonin apnoea the time of electrical silence in the phrenic neurogram (inspiratory activity) corresponded exactly with the duration of apnoea. In resumed breathing peak neural activity of the phrenic nerve was apparently increased.

Electrical activity of the expiratory muscles of the rib cage, namely: triangularis sterni and internal intercostal was inhibited during apnoea, phrenic alike. With renewed respiratory movements electrical discharges of both muscles appeared to be decreased, compared to the baseline values. This generalized depression was sustained for few minutes.

Vagal input seemed to contribute merely to the intensity of respiratory effector's changes.

LABORATORY OF EXPERIMENTAL PHARMACOLOGY Head: Assoc. Professor Paweł Grieb

5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephone: 608 65 23 Fax: 608 65 27 E-mail: pgrieb@ibb.waw.pl

PRECLINICAL AND CLINICAL STUDIES OF IMMUNOSUPPRESSIVE AND CYTOSTATIC PROPERTIES OF CLADRIBINE (2-CdA) Assoc. Prof. Paweł Grieb

The rat heart allotransplant model was used to study a possible synergism between cyclosporine A (CsA) and cladribine (2-CdA). Wistar rats were used as donors, and August rats as recipients. 2-CdA alone was marginally effective in prolonging graft survival, but its combination with CsA markedly increased the time to graft rejection, compared to CsA alone.

The mechanism of 2-CdA-induced thrombocytopenia was studied in three monkeys *Papio anubis* receiving repeated doses 0,2 mg/kg of the drug, either once a week, of q 5 every five weeks, for six months. The only sign of drug-related toxicity was a marked abnormality in bone marrow histology, indicating disturbances at the late stages of megakariocytopoesis and similar in appearance to that seen in idiopathic thrombocytopenia in humans. Cladribine-induced thrombocytopenia seems to be bone-marrow dependent.

The multicenter study of cladribine efficacy in relapsing or refractory low-grade non-Hodgkin's lymphomas has been published. The study involved 94 patients, objective responses (complete or partial remissions) were observed in 51% cases.

Two-year open study of cladribine treatment of relapsing-remitting multiple sclerosis has been concluded. The drug was given subcutaneously (5 mg/day) or orally (10 mg/day) q 5. Six monthly treatments were supplemented with additional two given at three-month intervals. Side effects were mild. In seven patients the treatment appeared highly active in reducing relapse rate, while in the remaining three the disease activity appeared unchanged.

BIOCOMPATIBILITY OF BLOCK COPOLYMER OF d,I-LACTIDE AND ε-CAPROLACTONE (L-Cap) WITH BRAIN TISSUES Assoc. Prof. Paweł Grieb

The samples of the L-Cap biodegradable polymer (supplied by dr M. Bero and collaborators from the Center of Polymer Chemistry in Zabrze, Poland) were im-

planted into brains of rats and adjacent tissue response was followed with the use of transmission and scanning electron microscopy. Tissue reactions were indistinguishable from those to trauma alone, indicating that the said polymer may be safely used for drug delivery to the brain.

PLASMA CHOLESTEROL IN CEREBRAL MALIGNANCIES Assoc. Prof. Paweł Grieb

The data of fasting plasma total cholesterol levels of 52 patients with malignant gliomas, 56 patients with cerebral metastatic tumors and 50 patients with peripheral malignancies with no cerebral involvement were compared. It was found that hypocholesterolemia characteristic of peripheral malignancies (known as "tumor-associated hypocholesterolemia") is infrequent in brain tumors.

CANCER AND BRAIN DISEASE CHARACTERIZATION AND THERAPY ASSESS-MENT BY QUANTITATIVE MAGNETIC RESONANCE SPECTROSCOPY Grant BIOMED 1 - PL 920432 - Assoc. Prof. Paweł Grieb

The techniques of proton and phosphorous magnetic resonance spectroscopy (¹H- and ³¹P-MRS) were implemented on the 1.5 Tesla tomograph (Siemens Magnetom SP-63), including reproducible postprocessing of the spectra. The data were collected from the brains of healthy volunteers and from tumor areas of patients with gliomas. The proton spectra contained three prominent peaks assigned to N-acetylaspartate (NAA, "neuronal marker"), choline compounds (Cho) and creatine/phosphocreatine (Cr+PCr). The spectra from gliomas showed markedly lower NAA/Cho and NAA/Cr+PCr peak ratios compared to the normal brain areas. The phosphorous spectra were obtained from muscles and brains of healthy individuals. The phosphorous spectrum from a large intractable gliomas has been recorded and the patient entered chemotherapy with cladribine (2-CdA) and lovastatin (the inhibitor of cholesterol synthesis). The later case will be followed by ³¹P-MRS to find out whether changes in phosphorous spectrum occur during treatment.

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROCHEMISTRY Head: Professor Jerzy W. Łazarewicz 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 54 23, 608 65 28 Fax: 668 54 23 E-mail: neurochemia@ibbrain.ibb.waw.pl

INTRACELLULAR CALCIUM POOLS AND CALCIUM-DEPENDENT EXCITOTOXIC MECHANISMS Prof. Jerzy W. Łazarewicz

Studies characterising intracellular Ca² pools in brain neurones were focused on learning the features of NMDA evoked Ca²⁺ induced Ca²⁺ release (CICR) via ryanodine receptors (RYRs). As recently demonstrated in our laboratory, in microdialysis experiments of the rat dentate gyrus in vivo combined with measurements of ⁴⁵Ca²⁺ efflux, application of NMDA to dialysis medium induces ⁴⁵Ca²⁺ release, 50 µM ryanodine stimulates this effect by 1890%, whereas 250 µM ryanodine and 100 µM dantrolene inhibits it. It is known from in vitro experiments that 10⁻² M caffeine activates RYRs, and 10⁻⁴-10⁻³ M caffeine potentiates Ca²⁻evoked stimulation of RYRs. However, it is not clear whether caffeine applied in vivo in pharmacological doses can modulate intracellular Ca²⁻ concentration ([Ca²⁻]_i), also effects of caffeine on NMDA-evoked CICR has not been described. The aim of this study was to establish the effect of caffeine applied in vivo in high pharmacological doses on NMDA-evoked ⁴⁵Ca²⁻ release in rat dentate gyrus. A method of caffeine application has been elaborated, which assured its stable concentration in brain and prevents its draining during microdialysis. The experiments have demonstrated that i.p. application of 40 mg/kg of caffeine followed by constant infusion of 80 µg/kg/min does not influence NMDA-evoked ⁴⁵Ca²⁻ release in the dentate gyrus in vivo. Application of caffeine induced by itself a brief stimulation of ⁴⁵Ca²⁻ release. This effect will be characterised in subsequent studies.

Microdialysis has been also utilised in attempts to demonstrate NMDA-evoked CICR in the rabbit hippocampus *in vivo*. As has been proved in our previous studies, in the rabbit hippocampus, in contradistinction to the rat, NMDA application leads to the inhibition, instead of activation, of $^{45}Ca^{2-}$ release. Since a simultaneous decrease in extracellular Ca²⁻ concentration was observed, together with activation of processes dependent on the increase in $[Ca^{2-}]_i$, such as release of taurine, phosphoethanolamine and prostanoids to dialysate, one may assume that NMDA induces increase in $[Ca^{2+}]_i$ in the rabbit hippocampal neurones *in vivo*. However, it is not clear to what extent intracellular Ca²⁻ mobilisation, and particularly CICR

participate in this effect. Thus, we studied the effect of 100 μ M dantrolene and 50 μ M ryanodine on NMDA-evoked changes in ${}^{45}Ca^{2-}$ efflux and in the release of taurine, phosphoethanolamine and prostaglandin D₂ to dialysate. The results did not show any significant effect of these RYRs modulators on ${}^{45}Ca^{2-}$ efflux and on other indicators of NMDA-evoked changes in $[Ca^{2-}]_i$ in the rabbit hippocampus. These data are indicative of a low activity of the NMDA-evoked CICR in rabbit hippocampus.

In studies on the potential role of Ca²⁻ and excitatory amino acids in postischemic degeneration of CA1 hippocampal neurones, we assessed the anti-ischemic neuroprotective potential of two novel antagonists of the glycine_B site of NMDA receptor. Body temperature was measured during the postischemic period, since NMDA antagonists are known to induce hypothermia, which is neuroprotective by itself. In comparison, the action of a well known neuroprotector NBQX, which is an AMPA antagonist was studied. To our knowledge the mechanism of NBOXevoked neuroprotection has not been associated with brain hypothermia. The antagonists were administered to Mongolian gerbil at 30 mg/kg i.p., 15, 30 and 45 min after bilateral common carotid occlusion for 3 min. Spontaneously regulated rectal body temperature was measured for up to 3 h and after 24 h. Histopathological evaluation of CA1 damage was performed after 14 days. In untreated animals ischemia resulted in loss of almost 90% of CA1 pyramidal neurones, which was completely prevented by NBQX and reduced to 50% by glycine_B antagonists. All these substances induced hypothermia. A decrease in rectal body temperature after glycine_B antagonists was early and brief, whereas after NBOX a maximal hypothermia was observed later, 3 h after ischemia, and persisted for 24 h. These results point to a notable neuroprotective potential of glycine_B antagonists after brain ischemia. However, this effect, similarly to neuroprotection evoked by other NMDA antagonists, may be associated with hypothermia induced by these agents. Unexpected finding of a delayed and prolonged postischemic hypothermia after NBQX administration may entirely explain NBQX-evoked neuroprotection. Our results did not provide arguments in favour of the role of NMDA and AMPA receptors in the mechanism of selective delayed damage to CA1 neurones after ischemia.

MECHANISM OF POSTISCHEMIC NEURONAL DAMAGE: CORRELATION OF EARLY CHANGES IN KINASES AND PROTEASES WITH INDUCTION OF CELL DEATH Assoc. Prof. Krystyna Domańska-Janik

Growing evidence indicates that delayed neuronal injury after mild and transient ischemic insult is triggered by an activation of the constitutive program of cell death – apoptosis. Inhibition of this hypothetical chain of events before reaching "the point of no return" should rescue affected neurones from ischemic irreversible degeneration.

Internucleosomal cleavage of DNA which could be detected as a typical laddering pattern after DNA electrophoresis, is one of the most accepted hallmarks of apoptosis. In our experiments we were not able to detect any signs of this typical DNA change at any time point during reperfusion (up to 96 h) after 5 to 20 min of cerebral ischemia in gerbil hippocampus, striatum or cerebral cortex. However, taking into consideration that oligonucleosomal fragmentation appears only transiently and asynchronously in the affected tissue, this negative result does not exclude the occurrence of apoptotic death after cerebral ischemia. Therefore, a more sensitive (though less specific) method of the detection, for example *in situ* TUNEL single cells labelling, should be used in our further experiments.

We have further investigated early and ischemia-specific changes in intracellular (post-receptor) signal transduction in the brain structures where delayed neuronal damage is observed. Special attention was given to the interactions between serine/ threonine kinases which are transiently activated and then down-regulated after ischemia and calpain-specific proteolysis. Calpains are cysteine proteases, activated during ischemia and supposedly involved in the mechanism of apoptosis. The results indicate that calpains could be responsible for the previously observed postischemic PKC degradation and decreased catalytic activity in gerbil hippocampus. Using partially purified enzymes *in vitro* we have demonstrated that particular isoforms of cPKC (α , β and γ) react differently and specifically on two isoforms (μ and m) of brain calpains. This reaction, with transient appearance of the catalytically active PKC degradation product: PKM, resembles the response previously observed after ischemia in hippocampus *in vivo*.

Moreover, the ischemia-induced changes correlate well with the altered expression of mRNA for γ PKC in gerbil hippocampus. Using RT-PCR technique we have demonstrated an early induction followed by a marked depression of this isoform of PKC up to 96 h after ischemia. The mRNA content for the other cPKC isoforms (α and β) have not changed during this period of time. Considering the supposed neuronal and postsynaptic localization of γ PKC our results indicate an exceptional sensitivity of this cellular compartment to ischemic injury.

The other investigated serine/threonine kinase, previously shown to be extensively modified during and after ischemia, was calcium-calmodulin dependent kinase II (CaMKII). Experiments performed on gerbil hippocampus revealed that inhibition of NMDA receptor by MK801 as well as blocking of voltage-dependent Ca²⁻ channels by nimodipine, both result in attenuation of ischemia-evoked changes in CaMKII activity *in vivo*. The observed effect was not additive and involved both of the previously described, diverse phases of this kinase reaction: an early activation/ translocation and subsequent enzyme down-regulation.

PLP GENE MUTATION AND ITS PLEIOTROPIC EFFECTS ON MYELINATION IN "PT" RABBIT Assoc. Prof. Krystyna Domańska-Janik

Spontaneous pt mutation in rabbits consists in a point transversion of a single nucleotide in plp gene. The cellular/regional expression of myelin-specific proteins (PLP, MBP, CNP, MAG and MOG) was investigated by immunohistochemistry in developing brains of 14 and 42 days-old control and mutant rabbits. Parallely, the expression of plp gene was evaluated by *in situ* hybridization (ISH) technique. The results showed a substantial reduction in the expression of almost all myelin-associated proteins investigated, especially pronounced in the younger, 14-days old pt rabbits.

The most severe depletion, on both the transcriptional (mRNA) and translational (protein) level, was noticed for PLP as a primary molecular target of the mutation. Immunoreactivity of myelin-specific glycoproteins (MAG and MOG) was, in spite of its reduction in pt myelin sheaths, slightly elevated in oligodendrocyte cell bodies. The ISH confirmed, in accord with our previous data (Northern blots), that PLP mRNA transcript was primarily unaffected by pt mutation and then progressively down-regulated along maturation. This is in line with our hypothesis that suppression of myelination program in pt rabbits does not appear before the developmental expression of PLP (about 10-14 day *post partum*). Accumulation of abnormal PLP protein would affect the pt-oligodendrocyte function and lead to generalised hypo- and dysmyelination in mutant rabbit CNS.

MECHANISM AND ULTRASTRUCTURAL FEATURES OF LEAD TOXICITY Prof. Urszula Rafałowska

I. The kinetics of citrate transport across the membrane of the synaptic mitochondria obtained from synaptosomal fraction isolated from brains of control and chronically Pb-intoxicated rats were evaluated. The transport of citrate to synaptic mitochondria is a saturable process which obeys Michaelis-Menten kinetics. A decrease of transport velocity and affinity of citrate into mitochondria was noted under chronic Pb²⁻-toxicity conditions, which may be due to a decrease of proteinaceous -SH groups. Decreased citrate transport may affect the Krebs cycle and subsequently cause changes in energy processes in synaptic mitochondria.

II. The effects of acute lead toxicity on the energy metabolism and regulatory mechanisms in brain synaptosomes were investigated. Oxygen consumption increased in Pb intoxicated synaptosomes as compared to the control but the cytochrome oxidase activity did not change. Intracellular concentration of ATP increased significantly in synaptosomes obtained from the brains of lead-treated

rats as compared to control, whereas the levels of ADP and AMP increased only slightly.

The level of phosphocreatine (CrP) was found to be higher and activity of creatine kinase (CK) increased drastically under lead-toxicity condition, but the Na-K-ATPase activity decreased. Taken together, the results suggest that under acute lead-toxicity condition, both the respiration and the PCr/CK system, are activated to maintain adequate ATP concentration.

III. Myelin changes in brains of chronically lead-poisoned animals were studied at the biochemical and ultrastructural level. Myelin obtained from chronically Pbpoisoned rats was found to be morphologically changed. Lead caused drastic disturbances of the lamella structure in axonal myelin sheaths. Searching for mechanisms responsible for these morphological changes, we have examined the effects of Pb^{2-} on the level of myelin phospholipids and peroxidation processes. While peroxidation was unchanged, an increase in the content of phosphatidylethanolamine and increased phosphatidylphenolamine/phosphatidylcholine ratio were noted. These effects together with the decreased level of protein-SH groups may be the reason of changes in organisation of the lipid-proteins sheaths of myelin under lead-toxicity conditions.

MODULATION OF EICOSANOID RELEASE IN THE HIPPOCAMPUS *IN VIVO* BY NMDA RECEPTORS Prof. Jerzy W. Łazarewicz

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 042 08

Studies have been continued, using microdialysis method, on the mechanisms of NMDA-induced prostaglandin (PG) D_2 release in the rabbit hippocampus *in vivo*. Additional experiments confirmed a dose-effect relation which indicates that this phenomenon is NMDA receptor-mediated. However a bell-shaped curve of NMDA-evoked PG D_2 release, with its maximum at 0.5-1.0 mM NMDA, differs from the NMDA-induced decrease in ${}^{45}Ca^{2-}$ efflux, which depends on NMDA concentration from 0.1 to 5 mM. Inhibition of the NMDA-evoked PG D_2 release by competitive NMDA receptor antagonists APV and CPP also confirms the role of NMDA receptors, although resistance of this effect to inhibition by a noncompetitive NMDA receptor antagonist MK-801 needs explanation. NMDA-evoked PG D_2 release and decrease in ${}^{45}Ca^{2-}$ efflux were not altered by tetrodotoxin, which excludes the role of a non-specific NMDA-induced depolarisation. Notable individual differences between rabbits in sensitivity to the MK-801 inhibition of NMDA-induced PG D_2 release and a decrease in ${}^{45}Ca^{2-}$ efflux were observed.

To explain the above observations we examined the role of intracellular calcium mobilisation in the mechanism of NMDA-evoked PG D₂ release in the rabbit hippocampus. Since none of the parameters under study was affected by dantrolene or ryanodine, it seems that calcium from the ryanodine pool is not involved significantly in NMDA-induced phenomena. Comparative studies on the role of this calcium pool in the regulation of PG D₂ production by NMDA receptors in the rat dentate gyrus, which is particularly reach in ryanodine receptors, are in progress.

A previously constructed quartz fibre optical probe, an attachment to an existing spectrofluorimeter, has been improved and adapted for measurements of intracellular Ca^{2-} concentration in the hippocampal slices *in vitro* with fura-2. We continue effort to adapt this probe for intracellular Ca^{2-} measurements in deep brain structures *in vivo*.

EFFECT OF ISCHEMIA AND EXCITATORY AMINO ACID RECEPTORS ON EXPRESSION AND METABOLISM OF BETA AMYLOID PRECURSOR PROTEIN (β -APP) IN BRAIN (INTERRELATIONSHIP) Dr. Wanda Gordon-Krajcer

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 059 08

Effects of rat brain ischemia on the expression and metabolism of beta amyloid protein and its precursor (β -APP) was studied with a focus on the role of excitatory amino acids. A Pulsinelli's model of 10-min forebrain ischemia was used, with recovery for up to 7 days. Homogenate proteins of the cortex and different hippocampal regions were electrophoresed and electroblotted. The immunoreactions were made with antibodies to peptide residues homologous to various domains of the β -APP. The results indicate that immunoreactivities with antibodies to all β -APP domains studied increase considerably, especially 7 days after ischemic insult. Injection of MK-801 for 30 min before ischemia reduces this effect. These results suggest that NMDA receptors participate in the mechanism of changes in the expression and metabolism of β -APP in brain, and that the signal for these changes is generated rather during than after ischemia.

To elucidate the direct effect evoked by excitatory amino acids on the processing of β -APP and amyloid accumulation in the rabbit hippocampus, 1 mM NMDA was applied *via* transhippocampal microdialysis probe for 20 min. Separation of proteins from the hippocampal tissues neighboring microdialysis probe and superfusates by electrophoresis was followed by their Western blot analysis using antibodies against some domains of β -APP.

The results indicate that application of NMDA to the hippocampus induces changes in the pattern of β -APP fragments and accumulation of β A (amyloidogenic fragment) and other domains of β -APP. These results are consistent with the results of "*in vitro*" experiments performed to elucidate the role of NMDA receptors in modulation of β -APP processing and release of different β -APP fragments from rat

hippocampal slices to the superfusion medium. To detect the role of NMDA receptors in modulation of β -APP processing, adult rat hippocampal slices were superfused with NMDA containing media and immunoreactivity of soluble β -APP derivatives was measured in superfusates. Hundred μ M and particularly 250 μ M NMDA induced a release of amino-terminal β -APP derivatives and a fragment of β A, which was dose-dependent, and prevented by antagonists of NMDA receptors and Ca²⁻ free medium. Release of carboxyterminal fragments of β -APP was not detected. These data indicate that stimulation of NMDA receptors induces cleavage of β -APP.

EFFECT OF DEPHOSPHORYLATION *IN VITRO* ON CONFORMATION OF PROTEIN TAU IN PAIRED HELICAL FILAMENTS (PHF) Dr. Wanda Gordon-Krajcer

In order to determine whether the high phosphate content of tau in paired helical filaments (PHF) is a result of inefficient phosphatase system in Alzheimer's disease (AD) or of limited access to phosphorylation sites, we compared the effects of alkaline phosphatase (E. coli) in native PHF, amorphous PHF (formic acid-treated) and fetal human tau. Samples were incubated with 20 IU phosphatase/ml for 30 min to 24 h and analyzed by SDS-PAGE and immunoblotting with a panel of phosphorylation-sensitive (six) and -insensitive (two) antibodies. Fetal tau was efficiently dephosphorylated at all four P-Ser but not P-Thr epitopes (Thr181 and Thr231) and its mobility was markedly improved. Native PHF underwent a partial dephosphorylation at the N-terminus but were unaffected at P-Thr epitopes of the C-terminal half of tau. The mobility of native PHF remained unchanged. In contrast, amorphous PHF were dephosphorylated much more efficiently and their mobility increased. The efficiency of dephosphorylation at the N-terminal half exceded that in fetal tau. The C-terminal epitopes, however, were still less reactive with phosphatase than that in fetal tau. The results suggest that the C-terminal epitopes of tau in PHF have limited access to phosphatases and may remain phosphorylated in their presence.

INTERACTIONS OF PROTEIN KINASE C AND CALPAINS IN CEREBRAL ISCHEMIA Dr. Teresa Zalewska

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 026 08

Increasing evidence suggests that excessive activation of calcium-dependent neutral proteases – calpains, could play a key or contributory role in the pathology of cerebral ischemia and are implicated in a certain forms of apoptosis. Calpains (EC 3.4.22.17), are calcium-activated, non-lysosomal, neutral cysteine proteases proposed to participate in many important intracellular processes, such as turnover of cytoskeletal proteins and regulation of kinase activities. Two isoforms of calpain exist in brain tissue. One form, m-calpain requires milimolar calcium concentration for activation *in vitro*, while the other form, µ-calpain is optimally active at calcium concentration in the micromolar range. In addition to calcium concentration, the proteolytic activity is also regulated by the endogenous inhibitor calpastatin. The behaviour of both calpains isoforms as well as calpastatin was investigated in rat subjected to acute postdecapitative global ischemia. Acute ischemia up to 15 minutes duration resulted in gradual, time-dependent decrease of total µ-calpain activity (to 60% of control values) and in the elevation of calpastatin activity (by 28%). The observed down-regulation of total µ-calpain activity coincided with its extensive translocation to the particular fraction. The proteolytic activity associated with this fraction increased after ischemia to 300% of control. In the case of m-calpain the only observed effect was its translocation and, in consequence, the increase of activity in particular fractions (to 200% of control). Such a redistribution of the enzyme activity toward plasma membranes, observed for the first time, seems to be a general response of calpains to ischemic conditions. These results fit well the generally accepted mechanism of autolytic calpain activation at the plasma membranes, where the preferred substrates could be targeted in the presence of calcium. Our suggestion of the initial postischemic activation of µ-calpain was further confirmed by the observed increase of the 76 kDa activated isoform of µ-calpain, and decrease of its 80 kDa inactive precursor (Western blotting). An additional evidence for the early post-ischemic activation of calcium-dependent proteolysis is the accumulation of products resulting from calpain-catalyzed proteolysis of specific substrates: cytoskeletal protein - fodrin and regulatory enzyme, protein kinase C. The above findings suggest that ischemia induces two divergent, but interrelated effects on calpain activity. One involves rapid activation of the proteolytic process, as was detected in the present study by the extensive calpain association with the particulate fraction and the substantial cleavage of calpain substrates (fodrin and PKC). The second involves gradual, time-dependent downregulation of the total µ-calpain activity with a concomitant increase of calpastatin activity. The ability of tissue to keep these two activatory and inhibitory processes in balance might determine the final outcome of the ischemic episode.

DEPARTMENT OF CELLULAR SIGNALLING Head: Professor Joanna Strosznajder 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw

Telephones: 668 52 23, 608 64 14 Fax: 668 52 23 E-mail: joannas@ibb.waw.pl

MOLECULAR MECHANISMS OF BRAIN AGING, ALZHEIMER DISEASE AND ISCHEMIA EVOKED ALTERATION OF SIGNAL TRANSDUCTION Prof. Joanna Strosznajder

Objectives: The regulatory mechanism of signal transduction in purinergic, serotonergic cholinergic and glutaminergic system in adult and aged brain were investigated.

Analysis of second messengers release and their role in the regulation of Ca²⁻ ions in brain were carried out. In evaluation of calcium ion homeostasis in aged brain, attention was focused on endoplasmic reticulum CaATP-ase specifically inhibited by tapsigargine. In the studies on pathological brain aging biochemical characteristics of Down syndrome (DS) preamyloid and amyloid in neuritic plaques were compared. Moreover, in cooperation of Department of Pathology, New York University Medical Center, we have participated in the studies on novel meningocerebrovascular amyloidosis.

For the first time, micropreparative gel electrophoresis was used for the separation of low-molecular-weight, highly insoluble amyloid peptides. Studies on ischemic encephalopathy focused on the role of nitric oxide (NO) in the activation of free radicals cascade and membrane lipid peroxidation and other biochemical processes in brain cortex and cerebellum.

Looking for neuroprotective agents that may have clinical therapeutic potential our research has focused on NO synthase inhibitor, 7-nitroindazole. A new technic of ion-exclusion chromatography was elaborated for the separation of nitrate and nitrite, a stable metabolites of nitric oxide.

Results: It was found that ATP is an important regulator of phospholipase C. Acting through purinergic receptor it activates phosphatidylinositol 4,5 bisphosphate (PIP2), whereas acting directly it inhibits in an allosteric manner PIP2 and phosphatidylinositol (PI) hydrolysis by PLC. Moreover in both cases ATP inhibits conversion of IP3 to IP2 playing an important role in regulation the level of IP3 that liberates Ca ions from endoplasmic reticulum. Simultaneously with IP3 the other second messenger, diacylglycerol (DAG) is formed that activates protein kinase C. Degradation of PIP2 is the early events in signal transduction processes.

Hydrolysis of other phospholipids by PLC may be involved in maintaining the signal. A significantly lower Ca²⁻-activated degradation of phosphatidylethanolamine (PE) and phosphatidyleholine (PC) in brain cortex as compared to phosphoinositides hydrolysis was observed. Brain aging had no significant effect on these processes. However, in aged brain, cholinergic and serotonergic receptordependent IP3-regulated Ca²⁻ release from endoplasmic reticulum is significantly decreased or eliminated, probably as a result of IP3 receptor alteration. Our results suggested that higher activity of endoplasmic reticulum Ca²⁻ ATP-ase and more active Ca²⁻ uptake into endoplasmic reticulum in aged brain may be responsible for the lower cytosolic Ca²⁻ concentration in aged brain comparing to adult and for the alteration of Ca²⁺ ions homeostasis.

Essential alterations in the mechanism of regulation of basal- and NMDA receptor-dependent cGMP level were observed in aged brain. This second messenger through activation of specific kinase is involved in the regulation of Ca channel(s) or IP3 formation and action. In aged brain significantly lower level of cGMP was found. Activation of phosphodiesterase is responsible for the degradation and lower basal level of cGMP in aged brain. Elimination of NMDA receptor-dependent cGMP formation in hippocampus and cerebellum is related to alteration of guanylyl cyclase and NMDA receptor protein by NO, produced in higher amount in aged brain comparing to adult.

In the studies on the arachidonate transport through the blood-brain and the blood-retina-barrier during aging it was found that arachidonate is able to cross at relevant rate BRB and BBB. In all brain regions except retina, optic tract and hippocampus BBB has a transport capacity for AA significantly higher than for other polyunsaturated fatty acids. Aging does not affect influx into CNS of this second messenger, which is rapidly incorporated into microcapillary and brain lipids. A simple diffusion transport across the BRB and BBB for AA is postulated.

A novel meningocerebrovascular amyloidosis associated with a novel transthyretin mutation at codon 18 where aspartate is replaced by glycine was described.

In continuation of the studies on the pathogenesis of postischemic encephalopathy, the molecular action of nitric oxide (NO) was evaluated. NO-activated brain cortex lipid peroxidation was observed in the early phase of reperfusion. It was found that this gas mediator is able to transmit signal into cerebellum through activation of guanylate cyclase. NO enhanced significantly the level of cGMP also in cerebellum. An inhibitor of NO-synthase which appears to have some selectivity to nNOS, markedly decreased ischemia-evoked biochemical alteration, but has negligible protective effect on ischemia-induced cell death in CA1 layer of hippocampus.

A new method of ion exclusion chromatography was elaborated for the determination of stable NO metabolites in the blood and brain.

ROLE OF HB-GAM CYTOKINE IN AMYLOID β FIBRILISATION IN AGED BRAIN AND ALZHEIMER DISEASE AND ITS ROLE IN NEURONAL DEGENERATION IN CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM Prof. Joanna Strosznajder

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 020 11

The distribution of heparin binding growth associated molecule (HB-GAM) in the cerebral amyloidoses of Alzheimer's disease (AD) and Down's syndrome (DS), was investigated immunochemically.

Antibodies to BH-GAM, a cytokine which plays an important role in brain development and maturation showed strong immunoreactivity with senile plaques in AD and DS. It was found that anti-HB-GAM reacted with preamyloid lesions but only when markers of dystrophic neurites were present, suggesting that the presence of HB-GAM in A β lesions is a marker of neuronal injury.

$\begin{array}{l} \mbox{MOLECULAR MECHANISMS OF BIOCHEMICAL TRANSFORMATION} \\ \mbox{OF NONTOXIC AMYLOID β INTO TOXIC FORM} \\ \mbox{AND THE ROLE IN SIGNAL TRANSDUCTION IN BRAIN} \\ \mbox{Prof. Joanna Strosznajder} \end{array}$

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 073 10

The effect of different forms of amyloid β 1-40 and A β 25-35 on growth and proliferation of different types of cells in culture (neuroblastoma, glioblastoma, embryonic cells and HeLa-60) was investigated. Preliminary studies have dealt with the effects of A β on DNA integrity and Poly ADP-ribose synthase polymerase (PARP). The action of nontoxic A β 1-28, and neurotoxic A β 25-35 on basal and cholinergic receptor-mediated intracellular Ca²⁻ concentration was evaluated in brain cortex synaptoneurosomes using Fura-2 fluorescence probe.

AMYLOID β PEPTIDES IN THE NORMAL AND DISEASED STATE Dr. Maciej M. Lalowski Supported by the Sandoz Foundation for Gerontological Research Regional Committee for Europe

An attempt has been made to identify the composition of amyloid β peptides within the cerebellum of Down's syndrome, where diffuse plaques (preamyloid) are very abundant and mature (compact) neuritic plaques are sparse. The composition of DS preamyloid was characterized and compared to amyloid in the neuritic plaques and leptomeninges in the same patients. A β 17-42 or p3 was found to be a major AB peptide of DS cerebellar preamyloid. This 26-residue peptide was also present in very low quantities (1%) in neuritic plaques. Preamyloid can now be defined biochemically as lesions in which a major AB peptide is p3. In addition, in vitro studies have clearly demonstrated that AB17-42 can form amyloid-like fibrils that are Congo red positive; however it does so much less well than either AB1-40 or AB1-42. Under the conditions used, this highly hydrophobic peptide tended to form mostly amorphous aggregates. It correlated well with the known, largely nonfibrillar nature of diffuse lesions and might, in part, explain the lack of clinical signs of cerebral dysfunction associated with this lesions. p3 (AB17-42) arises from the larger precursor ABPP, by the combined action of α -secretase at the AB N-terminus and the γ -secretase. This α -secretase pathway was initially called "nonamyloidogenic", because it involves the cleavage with A β domain, precluding the formation of longer AB1-40/42,43 peptides. The studies clearly document for the first time that this pathway is not necessarily "nonamyloidogenic". Alterations of ABPP processing which favor the production of p3 versus other AB peptides may not necessarily benefit AD patients because this peptide appears to be the major constituent of at least some initial AB preamyloid deposits.

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROTOXICOLOGY Head: Professor Jan Albrecht 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephone: 668 53 23 E-mail: jalb@cmdik.pan.pl

SYNERGISM OF SELECTED NEUROTRANSMITTERS AND THEIR PRECURSORS IN THE PATHOMECHANISM OF HEPATIC ENCEPHALOPATHY Prof. Jan Albrecht

The uptake of [14C]glutamate (GLU) to nonsynaptic mitochondria isolated from rat cerebral hemispheres was measured in the presence of potential amino acid modulators, L-aspartate (ASP) virtually abolished GLU uptake at ASP/GLU ratio of 1:1, as predicted from the involvement of the GLU/ASP carrier. L-arginine (L-ARG) inhibited GLU uptake in a dose dependent manner: A significant effects was already noted at L-ARG/GLU ratio of 1:2. Of the different L-ARG metabolites added in 25-fold excess, ornithine, putrescine, or ammonia had no effect, whereas creatine and the NO generator - sodium nitroprusside increased the uptake by 73% and 57%, respectively. D-ARG was three times less effective in inhibiting GLU uptake than L-ARG. Glutamine inhibited the uptake by only 14% when added in 10-fold excess of GLU, whereas none of the following L-amino acids: histidine, tyrosine, phenylalanine, proline, leucine, isoleucine, tryptophan, glycine, methionine, valine, serine, tyrosine, taurine, alanine or cysteine, affected the uptake when added in 10-25-fold excess. An inhibition of the uptake of similar magnitude to that in the presence of GLN was noted with a 25-fold excess of dicarboxylate carrier ligands, α -ketoglutarate and phenylsuccinate. The results suggest that L-ARG may function as an endogenous modulator of cerebral mitochondrial GLU transport.

Hepatic encephalopathy (HE) is characterized by symptoms pointing at disturbances in glutamatergic neurotransmission in the brain, particularly in the striatum. The binding parameters of ligands specific for kainate (KA) and AMPA receptors and for different recognition sites in the N-methyl-D-aspartate (NMDA) receptor complex were assessed in rats with acute HE induced with a hepatotoxin, thioacetamide. The KA-, AMPA-, and NMDA-displaceable [³H]glutamate binding, and the binding of: 1) [³H]dizocilpine, 2) N-[1-(2-thienyl)cyclohexyl]-[³H]piperidine (TCP) and 3) the coactivator site agonist [³H]glycine was assayed in purified membranes of the cerebral cortex, hippocampus and striatum. In HE rats, B_{max} of KA-displaceable glutamate binding was significantly increased in the cerebral cortex, diminished in the striatum, and unchanged in the hippocampus, whereas

 B_{max} of AMPA-displaceable glutamate binding was increased in the cerebral cortex, decreased in the hippocampus, but unchanged in the striatum. In HE rats, B_{max} of NMDA-displaceable glutamate binding was increased in the cerebral cortex and hippocampus but slightly decreased in the striatum. In this region the binding affinity was also slightly increased. In HE, B_{max} of [³H]dizocilpine binding was unchanged in the striatum and cerebral cortex but substantially decreased in the hippocampus. B_{max} of [³H]TCP binding was decreased in the cerebral cortex and striatum but increased in the hippocampus. The different responses of these two phencyclidine site antagonists to HE may be indicative of a conformational change within the ion channel and/or the presence of microdomains reacting differently to extrinsic factors. HE did not affect glycine binding but potentiated the maximal stimulation of [³H]dizocilpine binding by glycine in the cerebral cortex. The results emphasize the brain region- and domain-specificity of the responses of KA and NMPA receptor complex, and the brain region-specificity of the responses of KA and NMPA receptors to HE.

DEPARTMENT OF NEUROPATHOLOGY Head: Professor Andrzej Kapuściński 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 53 69, 608 65 35

E-mail: kapuscinski@ibbrain.ibb.waw.pl

TISSUE PATHOGENETIC MECHANISMS OF POSTISCHEMIC ENCEPHALOPATHY Prof. Andrzej Kapuściński

The photochemical model of focal brain ischemia characterized by illumination of the brain surface with light generated by the air cooled 250 W halogen lamp transmitted by the lightpipe after i.v. injection of 3% bengal rose has been used. Bengal rose reacting with light produces alterations in capillary endothelial cells with deposition of thromboaggregates occluding capillary vessels developing focal tissue ischemia. In the above experimental model of rats after 1, 4 and 7 days of survival the following data were evaluated: extension of necrotic area, region of penumbra, microscopic tissue abnormalities, advancement of brain edema, immunocytochemical reaction for GFAP and condition of injured blood-brain barrier. Model of compression focal brain ischemia allows to receive reproducible results of morphological changes, their extent and intensity. Compression with the measurable power, precisely delineated brain surface and permanent duration of pathology produces reversible tissue ischemia independent of configuration of the arterial capillary network in the pia mater. In two above experimental models changes in localization of sugar receptors in the network of rat's brain capillaries were evaluated by means of lectin technique. Two lectins have been used localizing following sugar residues: B-D-galactose and N-acetyl-galactosamine and neuraminic acid. Changes in localization of examined glycoconjugates appeared after 1 day of the animal survival and characterized by weaker staining reaction. After 4 days of the animal survival necrotic areas appeared surrounded by phagocytes and reactive astrocytes indicated exclusively β-D-galactose receptors. Both types of receptors indicated a significant decrease of histochemical reaction in the whole network of brain capillaries and especially the staining reaction disappeared or was very weak in neocortex. Comparing the results using both experimental models it was evident that photochemical ischemia produces more subtle histochemical changes. In the experimental model of brain ischemia after injection of 0.05 ml of air into left common carotid artery in rats combined with occlusion of this vessel, significant elevation of brain lactate level was observed. Mild hypothermia (28-31°C, 4 h) reduced cerebral intracellular acidosis significantly. The possibility of a therapeutic application of mild hypothermia as neuroprotective action against development of postischemic tissue changes was discussed. In an other experimental model of cerebral ischemia in rats after injection of 10 pmol of endothelin-1 into the right lateral brain ventricle, there was also observed a significant increase of brain lactate. Coenzyme Q10 reduced lactate acidosis to the normal level 24 h after initiation of ischemia. The beneficial effect of Co Q10 can be ascribed to the improvement of cellular respiration leading to the elimination of free radicals. Co Q10 can play an important role in prevention and treatment of ischemic insults. In the experimental model of cardiac arrest a significant decrease of norepinephrine and epinephrine levels was observed in the rat brain during ischemia and in the early period after resuscitation. The plasma catecholamine level increased in the postresuscitation period, concomitant to the normalization of circulatory system and development of postischemic active hyperemia.

OPPORTUNISTIC INFECTIONS AND HIV-SPECIFIC CHANGES IN THE BRAIN IN POLISH AIDS CASES Assoc. Prof. Irmina B. Zelman

The frequency of opportunistic infections and their relation to HIV-specific pathology was analysed morphologically in 127 brains of patients who died in the course of AIDS in 1987-1996 years (116 males, 10 females, mean age 39 years and one 11-month-old child). Routine histological methods were applied, in some cases supplemented with histochemical and immunohistochemical stainings.

HIV-specific pathology (HIV-encephalitis, HIV-encephalopathy or both) was found in 36% of cases, whereas opportunistic infections amounted to 76 cases (60%). A characteristic feature of cases with opportunistic pathology was coexistence of two or more opportunistic infections in the same brain, their coexistence, with HIVspecific changes and/or with primary or secondary malignant lymphomas (in one case with primary Kaposi sarcoma). In 40 brains (53% of cases with opportunistic infections) single infection was found, in the remaining 36 cases (47%) the pathological process was not uniform. In 9 cases two different opportunistic infections were disclosed, in 20 cases infections were associated with HIV-specific changes, and in 4 cases - with malignant lymphomas. Three cases were characterised by coexistence of opportunistic infections, HIV-specific changes and malignant lymphomas. Among opportunistic infections toxoplasmosis appeared to be most often associated with HIV-specific changes. The high frequency of this coexistence may be explained by the invasion of blood-born cells of monocyte/macrophage lineage latently infected with HIV into brain parenchyma. The most frequent, in our material, was CMV infection (24% of cases), followed by toxoplasmosis (16,5%). Progressive multifocal leukoencephalopathy (PML) and cryptococcosis were observed in the same number of cases (10%). Brain aspergillosis, a casuistic rarity in AIDS material, was found in 3 cases. Only in limited number of cases (4,7%) nodular encephalitis without etiological conotation was diagnosed.

The characteristic neuropathological feature was the difference in the topography and structural expression of the same type of opportunistic infections in particular cases, reflecting the different pathways of infection, different periods of its evolution and intensity of disturbances in patients immunological reactivity, additionally influenced by specific therapeutic management.

DISORGANIZATION OF CORTICAL STRUCTURE AND BRAIN GLIOMAS Prof. Halina Kroh

Among biopsy material obtained from 63 patients during temporal lobectomy due to intractable epilepsy, the tumoral tissue consisted of various types of astrocytomas (38), oligodendrogliomas (8), oligoastrocytomas (5), anaplastic gliomas (2), dysembryoplastic neuroectodermal tumors (6) and gangliogliomas (4). Beside the tumor mass, the white matter contained dispersed neurons in 10 cases, disordered cortical lamination was present in 3 cases and additional microtumors of glial, neuronal or non-defined character of type different than the main tumor mass in 6 cases.

Cortical dysplasia and neuronal heterotopias belong to the disorders of abnormal cellular migration. In cases of temporal gliomas the coexistence of microtumors in the cortex and white matter and neuronal nests typical for the composed type of DNT corresponds to the disturbances observed also in our material.

The three types of additional migration disturbances associated with gliomas of temporal lobes suggest initial common heterotopic origin of changes which progressed along various pathways. (H. Kroh and E. Matyja)

INTRACRANIAL HEMANGIOPERICYTOMAS Prof. Halina Kroh

The aim of the study was controversial origin of intracranial hemangiopericytomas. All examined biopsies of meningeal tumors (8) presented typical immunohistochemical features (9 antibodies). Two tumors exhibited additional histological features, found usually in meningiomas. Histological differences stressed non-univocal origin of meningeal hemangiopericytomas from vascular pericytes or meningeal cap cells.

CLINICAL AND PATHOLOGICAL EXAMINATION OF DIFFERENT FORMS OF BRAIN AMYLOIDOSIS WITH OR WITHOUT DEMENTIA Dr. Maria Barcikowska

The aim of our project was an examination of so called normal aging and neurodegenerative changes (PrP or β-amyloid positive amyloidosis) in human and animal brains. Several clinical investigations were done to resolve heterogeneity of Alzheimer's disease (AD) patients. The problem of the presence of parkinsonian syndrome among AD patients and the differentiation, based on neuropsychological and neurological assessment, of Pick's disease in the cohort of AD patients with frontal symptoms were a matter of our investigations. The most characteristic of AD pathology involvement - limbic system dysfunction was discussed due to hippocampal volume diagnosis in the MRI examination. Hippocampal volume is believed to be the most sensitive factor in the correlation with the level of neuropsychologically diagnosed dementia. Aphatic, language disturbance in the group of AD patients varied with the development of a generalized dementia level, which was the conclusion of our study. Language functioning in AD patient clinically diagnosed is an interesting prognostic tool in the assessment of dementia in the brain with Alzheimer's type of amyloidosis. The apolipoprotein E allels as the only known risk factor for AD was characterized in the group of AD patients and within their first grade relatives treated in outpatient clinic; results being not different from those that were published before in other countries. The clinicopathological study of a case with Diffuse Lewy Body disease was done and it was the first such case in the Polish literature. Another case reported by us: a case of PrP positive amyloidosis clinically diagnosed as the olivo-ponto-cerebellar atrophy was published. An unusual sporadic case of Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease was characterised by an abundance of PrP-immunopositive kuru and multicentric plaques but without any known mutation in the PRNP gene. An immunohistochemical search for βamyloid deposits was also done in the very old animal brains. Positive results were visualized in dogs, monkey's and (for the first time) in goat brains. The β -amyloid deposits were labelled by using 4G8 mAb (against β-amyloid residues) also in post trauma brains of fetuses and also within young and old brains. These last two preliminary investigation will be continued during next years.

ELABORATION OF EXPERIMENTAL MODEL OF ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE Assoc. Prof. Ryszard Pluta Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 6 P207 051 05

Brains form patients with Alzheimer's disease contain amyloid plaques which are composed of beta-amyloid peptide and are considered to play a causal role in the neuropathology of this disease. The origin of beta-amyloid peptide in brain parenchyma and vessels of Alzheimer's disease patients is not known. Our study examined the permeability of the blood-brain barrier to beta-amyloid peptide in rats subjected to single or repeated episodes of global cerebral ischemia followed by i.v. injections of human synthetic beta-amyloid-(1-42)-peptide. These experiments were performed to test the hypothesis that the blood-brain barrier has the capacity to control blood-brain transport and extra- and intracellular accumulation of circulating beta-amyloid peptide. Rats receiving beta-amyloid peptide after ischemia demonstrated multifocal and widespread accumulation of beta-amyloid peptide in hippocampus, cerebral cortex and occasionally in white matter. Betaamyloid peptide penetration involved arterioles, veins and venules. Neuronal, glial and pericyte bodies were observed filled with beta-amyloid peptide. Beta-amyloid peptide deposition ranged from numerous small immunopositive dots to regular diffuse plaques. The latter were often observed without any visible connection with blood vessels. Thus, for the first time, direct evidence is provided that soluble human beta-amyloid peptide crosses the open blood-brain barrier and enters the brain parenchyma from the circulation.

THE ROLE OF APOLIPOPROTEIN E IN THE PATHOGENESIS OF β-AMYLOID Dr. Elżbieta Kida

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05B 054 10

The involvement of apolipoprotein E (apo E) in the pathogenesis of Alzheimer's disease was first disclosed by Namba et al. in 1991, based on the finding of apo E in both β -amyloid deposits and neurofibrillary tangles. Studies conducted afterwards by Alan Roses and his collegues revealed a genetic link between apo E and sporadic and familial Alzheimer's disease. It was found that the frequency of apo E allele ϵ 4 is distinctly higher (2-3 times) in patients with Alzheimer's disease than in controls. Later on it was shown that Alzheimer's disease patients carrying apo E ϵ 4 allele demonstrate higher β -amyloid load within the central nervous system, higher number of senile plaques showing A β 40, higher neurofibrillary tangle counts and more severe damage of the cholinergic system. However, the precise mechanisms underlying apo E involvement in the pathogenesis of Alzheimer's disease, as well as in other β -amyloidoses, remain only hypothetical. It is postulated that apo E may directly influence A β fibrillogenesis, the resolution of A β , phosphorylation of tau protein, the function and integrity of the cholinergic system as well as regeneration of neuritic processes.

One of the major biological functions of apo E is lipids transport, as well as their local distribution and mobilization in normal and injured tissues, important for membrane integrity and regeneration. Following the experimental damage of both peripheral and optic nerve, apo E expression increases more than 200-folds. These observations inclined us to initiate the studies aimed to elucidate of whether similar increase in apo E expression occurs in the process of β -amyloidosis in the areas of specific tissue damage: within senile plaques containing swollen and structurally damaged neuritic processes, so called dystrophic neurites. These neuritic processes reveal the presence of APP, precursor protein for $A\beta$, the main component of β -amyloid. The studies were performed on postmortem brain tissues collected from Alzheimer's disease, Down syndrome, and control cases without dementia. but with β-amyloid deposits. It was demonstrated that extracellular deposits of apo E within senile plaques containing dystrophic neurites correlate with the presence of extracellular A β deposits in these areas. This finding suggests that apo E appears extracellularly within senile plaques containing dystrophic neurites secondarily to Aβ. Moreover, apo E within these lesions showed topographic differences, and was the most abundant in these regions that showed an early and severe damage of afferent terminals such as the marginal zone of the dentate gyrus. At the same time, however, there was either none, or only a weak immunoreactivity to apo E within the cytoplasm of dystrophic neurites. It is well documented that nerve cells reveal apo E receptors and are able to internalize apo E containing lipoproteins. Thus, the scarcity or even absence of apo E within dystrophic neurites disclosed at present might indicate that the processes of tissue regeneration undergoing with apo E may be altered in β-amyloidosis which might further aggravate structural alterations and lead to further dysfunction of the central nervous system.

These studies are continued at present in tissue culture conditions, by using both organotypic cultures of rat cerebellum, hippocampus and striatum as well as neuroblastoma cell line SY5Y. Our preliminary data suggest, that subtoxic doses of excitatory amino acids as well as of various A β forms (A β 40, 42, 17-42) applied to culture medium produce an increased tissue expression of apo E.

THE ROLE OF BcI-2 AND Bax IN CNS DEVELOPMENT AND IN THE PATHOMECHANISM OF ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE AND DOWN SYNDROME Dr. Elżbieta Kida

Bcl-2 and Bax, two proteins associated with genetically determined programmed cell death, were examined immunocytochemically in the developing human cortex and in Alzheimer's disease and Down syndrome brains. These studies showed the immunolocalization of these protein in developing human brain, their association with the apoptosis, maturation and terminal differentiation of the central nervous system structures, and their putative involvement in the pathogenesis of developing Down syndrome brain. Disclosed differences in immunoreactivity to Bcl-2 in

Alzheimer's disease and Down syndrome brain tissues in comparison with controls allowed us to suggest that Bcl-2 represents one of the factors engaged in the pathogenesis of structural lesions in both these disorders.

IMMUNOHISTOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF SENILE PLAQUES IN THE BRAIN STEM Dr. Elżbieta Kida

Immunohistochemical characterization of senile plaques in the brain stem revealed that early, diffuse $A\beta$ deposits in this brain region do not show, similarly to the neostriatum, apo E immunoreactivity. By immunoelectron microscopy it was shown that diffuse plaques in the brain stem, like in other brain regions previously studied, contain $A\beta$ in a fibrillar form.

IMMUNOHISTOCHEMICAL AND GENETIC STUDIES OF JUVENILE FORM OF NEURONAL CEROID LIPOFUSCINOSIS Dr. Elżbieta Kida

Immunohistochemical and genetic studies of juvenile form of neuronal ceroid lipofuscinosis allowed immunolocalization of a protein product of the CLN3 gene in the central nervous system, as well as identification of new mutations in this gene in atypical cases.

REGULATION OF CEREBROCORTICAL MICROCIRCULATION DURING REPERFUSION AFTER FOCAL CEREBRAL ISCHEMIA Dr. Ewa Koźniewska-Kołodziejska Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 088 09

The study which was planned to be carried out this year comprised endothelium-dependent regulation of cerebral microcirculation during early reperfusion (10-30 min) and during delayed hypoperfusion (2-3 hours after reperfusion) following focal cerebral ischemia (suture occlusion of the middle cerebral artery) of 30 or 90 min duration. The experiments performed until now helped to establish the time relation between the duration and degree of ischemia and the development of delayed hypoperfusion. It has been found that delayed hypoperfusion does not develop when ischemia lasts less than 3 hours and is not followed by hyperfusion. The decrease in microflow which is seen when NO synthesis is blocked in control rats does not occur in the early reperfusion after 30 min ischemia and, in fact an increase of microflow is observed instead. This result can not be, at present, interpreted as the abolishing of the normal response. It is more likely that the increase of microflow following inhibition of NO synthesis may result from the increase of blood pressure associated with the administration of NO synthase inhibitor and the lack of normal autoregulation of flow due to the ischemic insult. This study is in progress and was not yet published.

IMPAIRMENT OF THE ENDOTHELIUM-DEPENDENT REGULATION OF CEREBRAL CIRCULATION AFTER CARDIAC ARREST-INDUCED GLOBAL CEREBRAL ISCHEMIA Dr. Ewa Koźniewska-Kołodziejska

This study concerns participation of NO in the maintenance of basal cerebral blood flow and cerebrovascular reactivity to NO-dependent (acetylcholine), endothelium-dependent (ATP) and endothelium-independent (papaverine) mediators in rats who were subjected to 10 min global cerebral ischemia (cardiac arrest) 7 days before the study. It has been found that neither basal cerebral blood flow nor the participation of NO in the maintenance of basal cerebral blood flow in these rats is different from what has been observed in control. However, lack of the response of cerebral circulation to acetylcholine and decreased sensitivity to papaverine in the rats subjected to cardiac arrest suggests a selective impairment of vascular reactions.

IMPAIRMENT OF THE ENDOTHELIAL CONTROL OF CEREBRAL CIRCULATION DURING CHRONIC HYPERTENSION IN RATS Dr. Ewa Koźniewska-Kołodziejska

In the study of the disturbances of cerebrovascular endothelium in genetic hypertension (spontaneously hypertensive rats) no abnormalities were observed as far as NO-dependent regulation of cerebral blood flow and cerebral vascular resistance is concerned. It appeared, however, that vasodilator prostaglandins do not participate in the regulation of basal cerebral blood flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats to the same extent as in normotensive animals. The prostaglandin which seems to be responsible for the increase of basal cerebral vascular resistance of their basal cerebral blood flow at the level comparable to that in normotensive rats is PGH₂. The next important finding is that, in contrast to normotensive animals, the interaction between NO and prostaglandins is not essential for the maintenance of basal cerebral flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats and prostaglandins is not essential for the maintenance of basal cerebral flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats is normotensive rats and prostaglandins is not essential for the maintenance of basal cerebral flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats and prostaglandins is not essential for the maintenance of basal cerebral flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats and prostaglandins is not essential for the maintenance of basal cerebral flow and cerebral vascular resistance in spontaneously hypertensive rats.

REGULATION OF CEREBRAL CIRCULATION DURING CHRONIC HYPONATREMIA Dr. Ewa Kożniewska-Kołodziejska

The study was performed on male and female rats subjected to chronic hyponatremia induced with intraperitoneal administration of 5% glucose solution associated with subcutaneous administration of antidiuretic hormone. In previously published study we have reported that chronic hyponatremia induced in this way impairs cerebral blood flow exclusively in female rats and is associated with high mortality. On the basis of this year study we can conclude that chronic hyponatremia induced with vasopressin impairs endothelium-dependent, receptor-mediated responses in cerebral circulation in both genders but it has more pronounced impact on endothelium-dependent regulation of cerebral circulation in female than in male rats. Decrease of CBF (and increase of CVR) observed in hyponatremic female rats might be due to the impairment of endothelial production of NO. It is possible that these changes in cerebral vascular resistance and flow represent vasopressin-induced vasoconstriction which is unmasked in hyponatremic female (but not male) by a withdrawal of endothelium-dependent relaxing factor.

DEPARTMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENTAL NEUROPATHOLOGY Head: Assoc. Professor Danuta Maślińska 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephone: 668 54 34

CNS DEVELOPMENT IN NORM AND PATHOLOGY: CLINICAL, NEUROPATHOLOGICAL AND QUANTITATIVE CONSIDERATIONS Prof. Maria Dambska

The maturation of neurons from hippocampal sectors CA1-CA4 and the development of vascularization during the second half of pregnancy were examined using morphometric methods. Fetal brains at 28, 32, 36, 40 weeks of developmental age were used. The examined parameters were: neuronal and vascular density, classification of neurons according to profile area of cell bodies, ratio of the nuclear to pericaryon area, distribution of vessels according to their size and area occupied by vessels.

It was found that not only the maturation of neuron but also the development of vascular net differ in the examined sectors. The vascular density was found to be lowest in CA1 sector, where the neuronal density is the highest until birth. Our results suggest the role of vascularization of developing Ammons horn in its susceptibility to hypoxic lesions.

Astroglial reactivity in the periventricular white matter at parietal level in newborns of 28-40 weeks of development was estimated by qualitative and quantitative examination by use of reaction with glial fibrillary acidic protein (GFAP). It was found that the early astroglial reaction coincides with the predilection of this area to perinatal brain damage.

The members of our group cooperate in the study concerning immunolocalization of two proteins Bcl-2 and Bax in developing, normal and Down syndrome brains. The results indicate that both may be involved in the final differentiation and maturation of neurons.

ULTRASTRUCTURAL AND IMMUNOHISTOCHEMICAL STUDIES OF THE BRAIN DEVELOPMENT DISORDERS. APOPTOSIS AND GLIAL REACTION IN PERINATAL PATHOLOGY INCLUDING GENETIC DISORDERS OF THE DEVELOPING BRAIN Assoc. Prof. D. Maŝlińska

Cells participating in phagocytotic clearance have been studied. It is believed, that in the brain microglia is the main cell responsible for phagocytosis. During development microglia undergoes morphological transformation which is characteristic for its maturation within microenvironment of the nervous tissue. The aim of the study was to examine localization of the microglial cells in the brain during its development. Study was performed on the fetus brain at 14-40 weeks of gestation. The results provided evidence that localization of microglia is clearly related to the development of the brain structures. However morphological forms of these cells did not suggest the role of microglia to be confined to phagocytosis.

Moreover, phagocytotic clearance has been studied following indication of apoptosis in the brain of rabbits intoxicated by vincristine. No activation of microglia was observed in the brain of these animals. Numerous apoptotic bodies were engilfed and digested by different types of parenchymal cells including astroglia, oligodendroglia, microglia, pericytes and occasional macrophages. Our results lead to the conclusion that in the brain as in other organs a mechanism of phagocytotic clearance following apoptosis is different than after necrosis, which is always concomitant with inflammation and transformation of resting microglia to phagocytotic forms of the cell.

LABORATORY OF THE ULTRASTRUCTURE OF THE NERVOUS SYSTEM Head: Assoc. Professor Barbara Gajkowska 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 52 77, 608 64 45 E-mail: gajk@cmdik.pan.pl

LATE EFFECTS OF ISCHEMIA ON VASCULAR-TISSUE INTERFACE IN BARRIER-COMPETENT AND BARRIER-FREE REGIONS OF RAT BRAIN. ULTRASTRUCTURAL, HISTOCHEMICAL, AND IMMUNOCYTOCHEMICAL INVESTIGATIONS Assoc. Prof. Barbara Gajkowska

The aim of the present studies was to investigate the effects of 10 min total brain ischemia on the vascular-tissue interface in barrier-free and barrier-competent regions of rat brain. The experiments were performed on cerebral cortex, hippocampus, and the hypothalamo-hypophysial system of rat brain. The investigations were focused on the late period after animal resuscitation after the ischemic insult (24 h - 12 months).

Ultrastructural and morphological observations documented the presence of a significant number of phagocytes in the perivascular area in the period 6-12 months after ischemia, when compared with control age-matched rats and with the animals studied at shorter times after ischemia. Two subpopulations of phagocytes were identified: 1/ the cells which remained adjacent to the capillary wall and separated from the brain parenchyma by basement membrane, and 2/ the cells which crossed the basement membrane. In the latter case, the phagocytes contained an increased number of phagolysosomes. Concomitantly, the number of microglial cells in neuropil increased. The morphological features of microglia, i.e. numerous lysosomes and lipofuscin granules and frequent mitoses, indicated their increased activity.

In conclusion, the number of phagocytic cells remains increased during a long period after ischemia, a finding which can be interpreted as a morphologic manifestation of increased phagocytosis and enzymatic degradation of the damaged neuronal elements.

Histochemical studies were performed to further characterize the subpopulations of brain phagocytic cells. The new method of identification of thiamine pyrophosphatase as a marker of cell membrane of activated phagocytes, has been successfully implemented. The electron-dense product of the histochemical reaction was deposited on the surface of the phagocytes and cytoplasmic projections of the putative brain phagocytes. In parallel, the post-embedding immunocytochemistry for electron microscopy was performed. The monoclonal antibodies specific for endothelin 1, 2, and 3 labeled with 15 nm colloidal gold particles were employed. The observations were performed between 24 h and 12 months after ischemia to determine dynamics of the development of post-ischemic alterations in different parts of rat brain. The regions where the blood-brain barrier was competent were compared with those of an incompetent barrier. The results indicate that ischemia leads to the protracted elevation of endothelin activity in multiple neural elements of the CA1 hippocampal region and in the hypothalamo-hypophysial system of rat brain. The shrunken neurons, astrocytes, perivascular phagocytes and microglia of the hippocampus were strongly labeled with the anti-endothelin antibodies 6 and 12 months after ischemia. It is conceivable that elevated endothelin expression stimulates cerebral blood perfusion and thus is likely to aggravate post-ischemic encephalopathy.

Expression and distribution of endothelin 1, 2, and 3 were investigated also in the hypothalamo-neurohypophysial system of the rat before and after ischemia. It was found that ischemia stimulates the endothelin expression in some neurons of the supraoptic (SO) and paraventricular (PV) nuclei, astrocytes, endothelium, pericytes, perivascular macrophages and microglia. Strong endothelin immunoreactivity was observed as long as 6 months after ischemia. Twelve months after ischemia enhanced endothelin immunoreactivity was detectable only in phagocytes, and the immunolabeling of other cell types was comparable to the control. It can be speculated that endothelin in SO and PV neurons may affect and regulate hormonal synthesis and release (oxytocin and vasopressin) in the hypothalamo-neurohypophysial system. This hypothesis is reinforced by the fact that endothelin immunoreactivity could be observed in the axonal endings of neurohypophysis, co-localizing with vasopressin and oxytocin. Strong endothelin activity was detected also in pituicytes in neurohypophysis, and in endothelium and macrophages up till 6 months after ischemia. It is therefore likely that endothelin released after an ischemic insult may penetrate to the circulation acting as a classical hormone.

Additionally, the following morphological studies were performed:

1/ ultrastructural assessment of the influence of ethanol in combination with calcium antagonists, verapamil and nifedipine, on rat myocardium. It was shown that verapamil enhances ethanol cardiomyopathy, whereas the deleterious effects of ethanol were reversed by nifedipine.

2/ ultrastructural changes in the optic and ischiadic nerves were examined in EAE rats;

3/ studies on the ultrastructure of blood vessels in the superficial layers of the cerebral cortex of anoxic rabbits treated with calcium antagonist, dotarizine;

4/ transmission and scanning electron microscopy studies upon efficacy of a novel photochemical method for induction of cerebral ischemia;

5/ effects of squalene on the ultrastructure of the optic and ischiadic nerve.
DEPARTMENT OF NEUROSURGERY Head: Professor Zbigniew Czernicki 16 Barska St., 02-315 Warsaw

Telephone: 822 36 43 Fax: 822 35 87 E-mail: neuro9@polbox.com

THE DIAGNOSIS OF INTRACRANIAL HOMEOSTASIS DISTURBANCES: A/ HEMODYNAMIC DISTURBANCES IN EFFECT OF CEREBRAL ISCHEMIA OF DIFFERENT DEGREES; B/ COMPREHENSIVE DIAGNOSTICS OF CEREBROSPINAL FLUID CIRCULATION DISTURBANCES; C/ ANALYSIS OF ELECTRO-PHYSIOLOGICAL DATA – EEG AND EVOKED POTENTIALS IN THE WAY OF MAPPING IN PATIENTS WITH FOCAL BRAIN LESIONS Prof. Zbigniew Czernicki

In animals subjected to global ischemia distinct cerebrovascular reactivity patterns were found in the different brain areas, on the basis of CT scans morphometrical data, characteristic indices for hydrocephalus and cerebral atrophy were established, new method of the non-valve ventriculo-lumbar drainage in patients with obstructive hydrocephalus was introduced in the clinical practice.

In the experimental part of the cerebrovascular reactivity research, further studies concerning Ca²⁻ channel bloker – Dotarizine – were continued. In the present series of experiments the influence of Dotarizine administered orally in a chronic way was studied. It was found that Dotarizine prevents cerebral vasoconstriction due to hyperventilation and causes the increase in vascular dilatation under anoxic conditions. In the other experimental series regional differences of cerebrovascular reactivity are investigated. In the experiments with global ischemia in rabbits it was found that following global ischemia the basilar artery reactivity remained undisturbed while middle cerebral artery reactivity was considerably disturbed.

In the clinical studies cerebrovascular reactions due to endovascular procedures were investigated. Using transcranial Doppler sonography the constriction of a vessel subjected to such a procedure is caused by mechanical irritation of the vessel and lasts up to 48 hours.

In the evaluation of patients with brain contusion the time onset of secondary intracerebral hematomas in the primary contusion foci was investigated. Repeated CT examinations showed that hemorrhagic transformation could occur until 72 hours following trauma.

In clinical studies concerning the disturbances of CSF circulation, a multistage method of the low-pressure hydrocephalus diagnosis was improved. The diagnostic

stage of morphometric analysis of CT images was further developed and values of the indices characteristic for hydrocephalus and cerebral atrophy were calculated. Additionally, for the particular cases of obstructive hydrocephalus a new non-valve ventriculo-lumbar drainage method was developed and clinically applied. A method of linear connection of the valve systems was also developed in order to treat overdrainage syndrome particularly in severely ill patients and patients with serious operative contraindications.

Electrophysiological studies included EEG mapping and somatosensory evoked potentials (SEP) in cases of focal brain lesions, brainstem and cerebellar lesions, and cervical discopathias. SEP examinations in patients with focal brain lesion showed that the decrease of early amplitude components and the disturbances of potential propagation are important lesion indicators of prognostic value. In patients with brain stem lesions, specific late potential components were found. SEP mapping showed that the area of cortical excitation is wider on the side of the brainstem compression and the cortical excitation persists longer on the conralateral side. In cases of cervical discopathia latency evaluation in SEP examinations appear to be a prognostic indicator of the degree of radicular compression.

NEUROMUSCULAR UNIT Head: Professor Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz 1a Banacha St., 02-097 Warsaw Telephone: 658 45 01 Fax: 658 45 01 E-mail: neurmyol@cmdik.pan.pl

STRUCTURE OF NORMAL AND DISEASED SKELETAL MUSCLE AND PERIPHERAL NERVE Prof. Anna Fidziańska-Dolot

The project concentrated on:

1/ Investigation of apoptosis in normal fetal human muscle, in neonates with acute form of spinal muscular atrophy (SMA) as well as in experimentally induced apoptosis in neonatal rat skeletal muscle. It was shown that apoptosis in fetal life is a two-step process, regulating both the number and the size of muscle cells. It is suggested that in pathological conditions, such as SMA in children or experimentally injured neonatal rat skeletal muscles, immature muscle fibers react to noxious stimuli with apoptosis.

2/ Ultrastructural studies of experimentally induced muscle regeneration in senile rats. The results clearly showed that senile muscle was able to regenerate in response to injury. The regeneration proces in senescence, however, was slower, distempered and markedly impaired as compared to young adult animals.

3/ Age-related muscle stiffness in rats. It is suggested that the muscle stiffness is not due to a reflex response, but depends mainly on non-reflex factors, chiefly on large overgrowth of non-elastic connective tissue replacing degenerated active muscle fibers.

4/ Ultrastructure of sural nerve in patients with chronic demyelinating polyneuropathy. The changes were observed to be similar to those seen in Guillain-Barré syndrome. The presence of onion-bulb structures indicated chronic character of the pathological process.

Additionally, clinical and morphological characteristics of congenital myopathies as well as detailed clinical and morphological analysis of central core, rod and myotubular myopathy were described.

STRUCTURAL AND FUNCTIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF DYSTROPHIC SYNDROMES (NONTYPICAL DYSTROPHINOPATHIES EXCEPTED) Assoc. Prof. Irena Niebröj-Dobosz

Comparative biochemical and immunochemical studies in Duchenne's dystrophy and its experimental model in mdx mice do not support the opinion of the basic role of lack of dystrophin in provoking the dystrophic process. Electrophysiological studies indicate that a typical primary myopathy, such as Duchenne's dystrophy, is characterized by changes in motoneurons, either because of their degeneration, or as a cause of the morbid process itself. Genetic studies indicate on the possibility of the detection of the mutation of dystrophin gene in RFLP polymorphism and CA sequence analyses allow to detect the dystrophin gene mutation both in Duchenne's dystrophy and Becker's dystrophy. Molecular genetics techniques, used in the examinations of limb girdle dystrophy patients, detected mutations in the gene for CANP3, localized on the 15 q chromosome. An enigmatic mechanism is supposed to be present in part of these patients. Analysis of the appearance of IgG intrathecal synthesis in ALS patients, conducted in the years 1994-1995 has been completed pointing to the autoimmune character of the disorder in some of these patients.

CHANGES IN THE MOTOR UNIT IN NEUROMUSCULAR DISEASES Assoc. Prof. Katarzyna Rowińska-Marcińska

Analysis of MUAP registered in cases of myopathic and neurogenic muscle lesions allowed to propose a terminology for potentials with multiple picks. All non simple potentials that is potentials with more then 5 turns and/or more then 4 phases are defined as "irregular" potentials and limit the term "complex" to potentials consisting of at least one satellite accompanying the main potential component.

Examination of Double MU discharge shape revealed a modification of the second component which may appear either substantially reduced or irregular or otherwise dissimilar to the first one. Correlation between the internal interval, second component amplitude and jitter has been noted.

In conclusion we proved that precise analysis of the potential irregularity is helpful in differentiating slow and fast progressing process.

In addition retrospective comparative study of the electrophysiologic changes in CBS and CIDP polyneuropathy have been performed. In all cases nerve stimulation data fulfil the diagnostic electrophysiologic criteria for demyelinated inflammatory polyneuropathy. However, individual differences in electrophysiologic features and in the course of the disease prohibit the use of nerve stimulation data for differentiating between GBS and CIDP cases.

GENETICO-CLINICAL CORRELATION IN SMA Prof. Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz

The revision of prognosis in early-onset childhood SMA (type I) revealed that in this form, up to 10% children can survive over 4 years. Some children survive even up to 20 yrs being however unable to seat. This means that the prognostics *quo ad vitam* in this group is not entirely negative.

Analysis of a cohort of 573 patients demonstrated that in some chronic cases of SMA creatine kinase (CK) may be quite high. It was also shown that childhood SMA is a gender-influenced disease. There were significantly more males in the late-onset group III, and in no female the disease started after the age of 8 yrs.

Electrophysiological analysis of EMG records in different forms of SMA indicated the capacity of preserved motoneuron to reinnervate the denervated muscle fibers in SMA III and the inability of motoneuron to extend its innervation field in SMA I. This would explain the absence of compensation in this form of SMA.

MUSCLE PATHOLOGY IN GENERAL IMMUNOLOGICAL PROCESSES Prof. Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz

Idiopathic inflammatory myopathies (IIM) are a heterogenous group of diseases of unknown etiology. It is through that genetic factors and environmental agents, which may induce cellular and humoral immune response and chronic muscle inflammation, play a role in the pathogenesis.

In our series of 84 patients with IIM we found myositis specific antibodies (MSA): antisynthetases, anti-SRP, anti-Mi-2 and myositis associated antibodies: anti-PM-Scl and anti-Ku. Antisynthetases were associated with severe myositis and interstitial lung disease, anti-Mi-2 was a marker of classic, benign dermato-myositis with good response to therapy and anti-SRP was found in the case of very severe myositis, nonresponsive to aggressive immunosuppressive therapy.

We found increased frequency of DQA1*0501 and DRB1*0301 alleles in patients with IIM.

Summary: MSA were found less frequently in Polish patients with IIM compared to North American and Japanese populations. MSA can be useful in diagnostics of IIM because of its specifity for distinctive diseases, and helpful in differentation, prognosis and choice of therapy. DQA1*0501 and DRB1*0301 alleles are present more frequently in patients with IIM.

N-CAM AS A MARKER OF MUSCLE AND NEUROMUSCULAR JUNCTION IMMATURITY IN CHILDREN WITH CONGENITAL MYOPATHIES Prof. Anna Fidziańska-Dolot Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 S405A 005 06

Clinical and morphological studies performed during the last year allowed us to diagnose a rare congenital myopathy, a cardiomyopathy with cytoplasmic inclusions (cytoplasmic body myopathy). Immunocytochemical studies of the biopsied muscle suggested that the basic component of inclusions was smooth muscle actinin with only a small amount of sarcomeric actinin. A changed composition of Z-line in muscle is a probable cause of excessive proliferation of actinin and production of Z-line material.

CLINICO-GENETIC CORRELATION IN RECENTLY RECOGNIZED DYSTROPHINOPATHIES Prof. Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05B 113 08

DNA tests and qualitative and quantitative evaluation were performed in 47 families with Becker muscular dystrophy. A dystrophinopathy was described with DNA deletion but with abortive clinical expression – some times skeletal muscles are spared and the only symptoms are cardiac failure or CK-emia. These findings are not only a contribution to the new aspect of X-linked dystrophy, but they are also of practical significance. The molecular tests are helpful in establishing diagnosis in difficult and atypical cases. It is conceivable that in the "premolecular" area the atypical cases were misdiagnosed, and the frequency of this variety was underestimated.

Clinical and laboratory examinations of females – obligatory carriers of DMD, and rechecking the group of the limb-girdle dystrophy revealed that the clinical expression of X-linked dystrophy in also possible in females. This finding appears to be of great importance in that it changes the presently accepted criteria of genetical counselling.

The results underscore the need to recheck the diagnoses of LGMD made before dystrophin testing was introduced.

ANGIOGENESIS AND MYELINATION IN THE CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM Prof. Janina Rafałowska Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 S402 071 06

Examinations of human fetal and neonatal spinal cord in hematoxilin-eosin (HE) staining and with antibodies to myelin basic protein (MBP) and glial fibrillary acidic protein (GFAP) were completed. For visualisation of blood vessels *Ulex europeus* lectin was used. Astrocytic reactivity and increase of vascularisation within white matter of the spinal cord during myelination were found.

Cervical segment of the spinal cord in 1, 3, 6, 9, 12, 15 days-old Wistar rats was analysed. Astrocytic reactivity was noted in the course of rat spinal cord myelination, similarly to human spinal cord. On the 15th day after birth rat spinal cord myelination was still very weak.

Specimens od rats lumbo-sacral spinal cord aged from 1 day to 15 days were taken for electron microscopy examination. Estimation of blood vessels was performed. Numerous microvilli on luminal surface of blood vessels endothelium were observed.

DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY Head: Professor Hanna Kaciuba-Uściłko 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 54 45, 608 65 18 Fax: 668 54 45 E-mail: kaciuba@cmdik.pan.pl

HEMODYNAMIC, METABOLIC AND NEUROHORMONAL RESPONSES TO PHYSIOLOGICAL STIMULI: EFFECT OF PHYSICAL ACTIVITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS Prof. Krystyna Nazar

The investigation was continued on factors modifying psychomotor performance during physical exercise and on the influence of low ambient temperature on multiple choice reaction time (RT) in young well fit men during graded exercise until volitional exhaustion. The study showed an improvement of psychomotor performance at 2°C in comparison with results obtained at 22°C. In the cold, RT was shortened at submaximal work-loads and its increase occurred at higher exercise intensity than under the thermoneural conditions. The results suggest a higher level of arousal with reduction of central fatigue during work in cold environment. In subsequent series of experiments in the same subjects an effect of caffeine ingestion (5 mg/kg b.m.) on exercise-induced changes in RT were studied at neutral (22°C) and low (2°C) ambient temperatures. A beneficial effect of caffeine on psychomotor performance was found only during submaximal loads of the exercise performed at 22°C.

The activity of the autonomic heart innervation was evaluated on the basis of heart rate variability (HRV) analysis in the supine and standing position in 19 young untrained subjects and 6 elite swimmers. The data suggest that intensive training causes a reduction of the sympathetic nervous system activity in the supine position with an enhancement of this system reactivity to the orthostatic stimulus.

In cooperation with the Outpatient Cardiac Unit for Diagnosis and Therapy at our Institute the usefulness of HRV indices in examination of autonomic heart innervation was analyzed in elderly patients with coronary heart disease. The simple HRV indices, such as eg. maximal increase in the R-R interval during respiratory cycle, appeared to be highly sensitive to changes in the parasympathetic activity in response to orthostatic manoeuvre.

The dynamics of stroke volume and cardiac output responses to graded exercise were studied in healthy untrained subjects using an impedance rheography with an own original program of computerized continuous recording and analysis of ECG and rheographic signals. The study demonstrated the usefulness of this method in evaluation of the hemodynamic changes during exercise tests.

In our previous study it was documented that during graded exercise plasma concentration of growth hormone (hGH) shows a nonlinear increase with a threshold at the exercise load close to the blood lactate (LA) threshold. The aim of the present investigation was to find out whether this response depends on the working muscle mass. The time course of exercise-induced blood LA and hGH changes was followed in young subjects performing graded exercise with both legs (ET1), one leg (ET2), and one arm (ET3). The blood LA threshold could be detected only during ET1, whilst in the remaining tests the blood LA concentration increased linearly with exercise intensity. The general patterns of exercise-induced changes in the plasma hGH were similar in all tests. The threshold occurred at lower exercise loads during ET2 or ET3 than during ET1, but at similar blood LA levels. The data indicate that the magnitude of plasma hGH response to exercise depends on the muscle mass engaged in exercise, and suggest a relation between hGH threshold and exercise-induced acidosis.

The effect of low ambient temperature and caffeine ingestion (5 mg/kg) on the time course of blood LA changes during graded exercise was examined in healthy, well fit subjects. It was found that cold exposure $(2^{\circ}C)$ does not influence the blood LA threshold, and that caffeine shifts the threshold towards higher work intensities only in thermoneutral conditions (22°C). Both in the cold and thermoneutral environments caffeine increased the blood LA levels at high exercise loads. This study indicates that caffeine does not increase endurance working ability in the cold.

The effect of caffeine on supramaximal working ability was investigated in cooperation with the Department of Physiology, University in Kuopio (Finland). It was demonstrated that caffeine increased the mean power and blood (LA) concentration attained during the 60s "jumping test" but did not affect the maximal power output. The results indicate that caffeine increases the anaerobic capacity.

A new modification of anaerobic threshold determination was elaborated basing on changes in heart rate (HR) during graded treadmill exercise. This modification, including mathematical transformation of a relationship between HR and work load, increases sensitivity of the anaerobic threshold detection in comparison with the commonly used Conconi test.

NEURO-HORMONAL CONTROL OF LIPID AND CARBOHYDRATE METABOLISM IN SKELETAL MUSCLE Assoc. Prof. Leszek Budohoski

An influence of catecholamines on insulin dependent glucose utilisation by the soleus muscle was studied *in vitro* in rats treated for 7 days with β -adrenergic block-

ing agent (propranolol), after adrenalectomy or adrenodemedullation. It was shown that prolonged β -adrenergic blockade diminishes the responsiveness of lactate production and glycogen synthesis to insulin, however the sensitivity of both these processes to insulin was not affected. In muscles dissected from adrenalectomized animals the responsiveness of lactate production to insulin was decreased, whilst a small, significant improvement of the sensitivity of this process to insulin was shown. The rate of glycogen synthesis was not affected. In adrenodemedullated rats neither sensitivity nor responsiveness of lactate production to insulin was affected, whereas the rate of glycogen synthesis was significantly enhanced at all insulin concentrations. The sensitivity of the latter process to insulin was unchanged. It is suggested that catecholamines may take part in the control of muscle glucose utilisation due to their effect on fatty acid availability.

The effect on muscle glucose utilization and its sensitivity to insulin of muscle glycogen depletion in rats caused by food deprivation for up to 72 h was examined in the soleus muscle in vitro. It was shown that prolonged starvation reduces the basal blood glucose concentration in vivo and enhances the rate of lipid mobilization, as indicated by an increased plasma level of fatty acids and B-hydroxybutyrate. A decrease in intramuscular glycogen content caused an enhancement of glucose utilisation by the soleus muscle, both stimulated and non-stimulated by insulin. A strong negative correlation was found between the glycogen content and the basal rate (1 µU/ml INS) of lactate production, glucose transport and glycogen synthesis. A significant positive correlation was found between the intramuscular glycogen content and the sensitivity of lactate production, glucose transport and glycogen synthesis to insulin. The data demonstrated that food deprivation with an accompanying decrease in muscle glycogen content significantly modifies the muscle glucose utilisation measured under basal conditions as well as the sensitivity of glucose transport, lactate production and glycogen synthesis to insulin. The observed changes are negatively correlated with the soleus muscle glycogen content.

In the continued investigations on the relationship between the fatty acid (FA) uptake from the medium and the concentrations of a monomeric form of this compound (unbound to albumin, AUFA) a perfused rat's hindlimb preparation was used. By perfusing muscles with various concentrations of palmitate (1.0-2.0 mM) and different concentrations of albumin (4%, 6%, 8%) we were able to prove that the rate of incorporation of palmitic acid into the intracellular triacylglycerol pool depends directly on the concentration of the albumin unbound portion of fatty acids.

EFFECT OF LOW CARBOHYDRATE DIET ON PHYSIOLOGICAL RESPONSES TO EXERCISE IN MEN AND WOMEN Prof. Hanna Kaciuba-Ušciłko

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 S404 028 07

Our previous study showed that low-carbohydrate (L-CHO) diet, inducing moderate ketosis, shifts lactate threshold (LT) towards higher exercise loads and elevates post-exercise plasma catecholamine levels as compared to the values after the control (M) mixed diet. The purpose of the present investigation was to examine the effect of L-CHO diet on the time-course of plasma adrenaline (A), noradrenaline (NA), testosterone (T), and growth hormone (HGH) changes during incremental exercise performed until volitional exhaustion. The data showed that (1) during incremental exercise plasma concentrations of catecholamines as well as of HGH and T show nonlinear increases with thresholds, that under normal dietary condition, are close to or exceed the lactate threshold, (2) reduced CHO intake enhances activity of the sympathetic nervous system and lowers the threshold of its activation, (3) after L-CHO diet plasma growth hormone concentration is increased, while that of testosterone is diminished at rest and during exercise, however, the thresholds of both hormones are elevated similarly as the LA threshold. The above findings indicate that dietary modifications not only influence blood hormone levels but cause also changes in the relationship between the endocrine response to exercise and its intensity.

In a further investigation the effect of L-CHO diet on exercise thermoregulation was evaluated in men and in women in two phases of menstrual cycle. The data obtained indicate that carbohydrate restriction increases heat load during heavy exercise without changing the magnitude of body temperature response due to accelerated rate of sweating. These changes were more pronounced in men than in women, particularly in the follicular phase of the menstrual cycle.

LIPID METABOLISM IN SKELETAL MUSCLE OF PERFUSED RAT HINDLIMB Assoc. Prof. Leszek Budohoski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 6 P04C 033 10

Optimal conditions allowing the measurement of intracellular triacylglycerol fatty acid and phospholipid pools in the perfused rat's hindlimb were established. The rates of incorporation of fatty acid into triacylglycerol and phospholipid pool as a function of the perfusion time and of the total concentration of palmitic acid in the perfusion medium were measured. An attempt was made to work out an experimental protocol allowing estimation of intracellular fatty acid content. Skeletal muscles of different fibre type composition as well as an adipose tissue were examined.

The results obtained will be compared with the reference data obtained at the Department of Biochemistry in Oxford.

THE EFFECT OF INSULIN-LIKE GROWTH FACTOR ON SKELETAL MUSCLE SENSITIVITY TO INSULIN Assoc. Prof. Leszek Budohoski Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05B 103 10

The effect of physical exercise of various intensity and duration on the IGF I and IGF II concentration in plasma and skeletal muscles of different fibre types was studied. All samples were collected and are now assayed at the Department of Pediatrics, John Radcliff Hospital in Oxford.

The effect of IGF I on the sensitivity of lactate production, glucose transport and glycogen synthesis to insulin was measured in the rat soleus muscle *in vitro*. A possible modulation of the observed effects by adenosine receptor agonists eg. 2chloroadenosine was tested.

CONSTRUCTION AND SOFTWARE DESIGN OF A DEVICE ENABLING CONTINUOUS 24-h MONITORING OF HEMODYNAMIC HEART ACTIVITY USING IMPEDANCE CARDIOGRAPHY – REOMONITOR Dr. Gerard Cybulski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 8 S506 013 05

A new ambulatory monitoring system consisting of an universal 4-channel recorder enabling simultaneous collection of ECG and central hemodynamic signals was constructed. The system is based on 80C552 family controller with built-in analogue to digital converters and 20MB PCMCIA (type II) FLASH MEMORY CARD is used for data storage. The communication with the system is performed via specialised keys and a small, built-in LCD. We designed and constructed a miniaturised, tetrapolar, current impedance cardiography device with built-in one channel of ECG, which was applied as a detector of the central hemodynamic signals. The device enables a full disclosure of collected data. The specialised Windows based graphic user interface allows for data presentation in the normal and tape mode. Additionally, full disclosure data (1 hour recording/A4 page) and selected strips may be hard copied on a laser or jet printer. The system allows for off-line, beat-to-beat automatic evaluation of cardiac output, stroke volume, ejection time, pre-ejection period and heart rate. The system could be used for evaluation of cardiac contractility and hemodynamic characteristics of cardiac muscle in both research and sports medicine. Further clinical examinations could allow the use of this device as a supplementary diagnostic tool for cardiologists.

LABORATORY OF RENAL AND BODY FLUID PHYSIOLOGY

Head: Professor Janusz Sadowski

5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 53 77, 608 65 46 E-mail: renal@cmdik.pan.pl

ENDOTHELIN AND URODILATIN IN THE CONTROL OF RENAL HEMODYNAMICS AND RENAL EXCRETION Prof. Janusz Sadowski

The role of endogenous endothelins (ET) in the control of cardiovascular system and renal function and ET interaction with urodilatin (URO) were studied in anesthetized female Wister rats. The ET activity was blocked using PD 145065 (later briefly PD), a non-selective antagonist of ET_{Λ} and ET_{B} receptors, given i.v. at 5 mg·kg⁻¹ body wt. URO was infused i.v. at 0.1 nmol-min⁻¹-kg⁻¹ body wt., alone or after ET receptor blockade.

PD decreased mean arterial blood pressure (MBP) from 114 ± 4 to 109 ± 4 mm Hg and the renal blood flow (RBF) from 6.6 ± 0.3 to 5.8 ± 0.4 ml·min⁻¹ (P<0.02) and increased renal vascular resistance (RVR) from 17.7 ± 1.2 to 20.1 ± 2.1 mm Hg·min·ml⁻¹. A decrease in MBP in the absence of changes in HR, as observed after PD, indicated a reduction of the total peripheral vascular resistance (TPR). The present data indicate that under our experimental conditions the systemic vasculature was under a vasoconstrictor tonus of ET. In contrast to the decrease of TPR, RVR tended to increase after the inhibition of ET receptors. This suggests that under our experimental conditions act as renal vasodilators, in contrast to their prevailing vasoconstrictor effect on systemic vasculature as a whole.

Renal excretory function was not affected by the inhibition of endogenous ET, however, it is interesting that the high variability of sodium excretion in animals under control conditions was clearly abolished by PD. These data suggest that endogenous endothelins may moderately influence the tubular sodium reabsorption.

After pre-treatment with PD, infusion of URO decreased MBP more than did URO alone: $15\pm3\%$ vs. $7\pm2\%$ (P<0.05). RVR and HR did not change after URO alone but decreased with URO given to PD treated rats ($19\pm5\%$ and $14\pm3\%$, respectively, P<0.01). Thus, the blockade of ET receptors prevents the usual attenuation of URO effects by ET.

During URO infusion the increase in urine flow and solute excretion were more rapid after PD treatment than that observed without blockade of ET receptors. These data raise the possibility that endogenous renal ET may diminish the responsiveness of the renal excretory function to natriuretic peptides. Probably, both peptide families affect the same tubular sites and possibly antagonise the effects of each other.

It is concluded that in anesthetised surgically prepared rats endogenous ET can cause renal vasodilatation, in contrast to constriction of systemic vasculature. The enhancement by ET blockade of vascular systemic and renal effects of URO supports the ET interaction with natriuretic peptides in the control of cardiovascular and renal function.

ROLE OF RENAL MEDULLARY CIRCULATION IN MODULATION OF THE CORTICO-MEDULLARY ELECTROLYTE GRADIENT

Prof. Janusz Sadowski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 013 08

<u>Responses of the renal medullary blood flow and medullary total ion concentra-</u> tion to increased filtered load of NaCl: data from simultaneous recording.

Total interstitial ion concentration (tissue electrical admittance) and local tissue blood flow (laser-Doppler probe) were simultaneously recorded in the renal medulla of 18 anesthetized Wistar rats under control conditions and after increasing the filtered NaCl load by an infusion of 5% NaCl into the aorta just opposite the left renal artery. Both parameters were measured using the integrated sensor of an own design, previously shown to be little invasive. The renal perfusion pressure was maintained constant at about 105 mm Hg using a suprarenal screw-controlled snare placed on the aorta.

An infusion of 5% NaCl increased the interstitial ion concentration (tissue admittance) from 938±31 to 1004±33 μ S (+7%). Unexpectedly, the renal medullary blood flow, renal cortical blood flow (laser Doppler probe on kidney surface) and the glomerular filtration rate (clearance of tritiated inulin) were not significantly altered. During hypertonic NaCl infusion the urine flow increased 3-fold, sodium excretion increased 4-fold, and urine osmolality decreased from 950±97 to 770±52 mosm/kg H₂O (all changes significant).

The data indicate that salt loading did not change the renal hemodynamics, probably due to an equilibration of two opposing influences: of extracellular volume expansion (tending to increase hemodynamic parameters) and of activation of the tubulo-glomerular feedback mechanism (tending to suppress the glomerular filtration and reduce renal blood flow). In the absence of any increase in the medullary blood flow (no wash out of tissue ions), increased delivery of NaCl to the ascending limb of Henle's loop resulted in an increased NaCl reabsorption in this segment, increased supply of salt to the interstitium and a moderate elevation of medullary ionic hypertonicity (tissue admittance).

The ultimate change was not probably influenced by modulatory action of hormonal and autacoid systems, which requires further investigations.

OUTPATIENT CARDIAC UNIT FOR DIAGNOSIS AND THERAPY Head: Dr. Ewa Wójcik-Ziółkowska 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephone: 658 46 43

ADAPTATION TO EXERCISE IN PATIENTS WITH HEART FAILURE: RELATION OF HEMODYNAMIC PARAMETERS TO CORONARY INSUFFICIENCY AND HEART RATE VARIABILITY Dr. Ewa Wójcik-Ziółkowska

Diminished exercise capacity of patients with heart failure (HF) is due to abnormal left ventricle function and coexisting disorders of skeletal muscle metabolism. However, the mechanism of low exercise tolerance in HF patients is not fully recognized. No correlation was ascertained between resting parameters of left ventricle function, such as systolic and diastolic diameters, ejection fraction, filling pressure, and exercise capacity or HF degree. The widely used NYHA classification of HF based on subjective symptoms has been questioned.

Objective estimation of the left ventricle function during exercise is of great importance for evaluation of the disease progression and monitoring of therapy. Moreover, exercise testing helps to establish recommendations for the patients' daily life activity and in some cases for physical training. The beneficial effect of low intensity training has been described in some recent reports.

The aims of the present study were: 1/ to compare exercise capacity of patients with HF after myocardial infarction (MI) and those with HF without MI, relating the obtained results to NYHA classification, 2/ to investigate hemodynamic responses to exercise in those patients, 3/ to determine the relationship between the ischemic threshold and the degree of heart insufficiency. Thirty five men (mean age 64 years) with HF symptoms were examined. This group included 25 patients after MI (MI+) and 10 patients without MI (MI-). Twenty two patients were qualified to class II and 13 to class III according to NYHA classification. In all patients cardiac enlargement was documented by X-ray (thoracic ratio > 0.55) and echocardiography at rest showed left ventricle dysfunction (ejection fraction < 50%). There were no differences between M+ and M- groups in the left ventricular function indices at rest. The patients were submitted to the symptom limited graded treadmill exercise test. Oxygen uptake (VO,) and cardiac output (CO) were measured using Sensor Medics 2900 with supplementary NICO equipment. Besides, ECG was monitored, heart rate (HR) was recorded continuously and blood pressure was measured every 2 min.

No relationships were found between indices of left ventricle function at rest and the hemodynamic responses to exercise. In most cases, the estimated exercise capacity of patients and their classification according to NYHA criteria showed discrepancy. Exercise tolerance was similar in MI+ and MI- groups (approx. 60% of predicted VO₂max). Cardiac output increases during exercise were lower than normal values by approx. 30%. The symptoms of hemodynamic insufficiency (fall of blood pressure) or symptoms of exhaustion in most cases preceded the exercise ischemic threshold.

The results of the exercise test appeared to be helpful for establishing individual recommendations concerning permissible work loads in the daily activity of patients, irrespectively of the cause of HF and left ventricular function parameters at rest.

CARDIOVASCULAR LABORATORY Head: Professor Krystyna Cedro-Ceremużyńska 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 52 43, 608 64 11 E-mail: ceremuzynska@cmdik.pan.pl

L-ARGININE INCREASES EXERCISE CAPACITY IN PATIENTS WITH STABLE ANGINA Prof. Krystyna Cedro-Ceremuzyńska

Endothelium-dependent vasodilator responses mediated by L-arginine/NO are impaired in various forms of cardiovascular diseases (IHD). An attempt to restore these responses with L-arginine was successful in some experimental and clinical settings suggesting that reduced intracellular availability of L-arginine may be involved in this defect. Endothelial dysfunction may adversely influence adaptation of the coronary blood flow to physical activity. We investigated whether L-arginine improves exercise capacity in patients with stable angina. L-arginine (6 g/day) or placebo were administered to 22 randomized patients in a double-blind study. An exercise test (Marquette Case 12 treadmill system) with 12 lead ECG was performed according to the Bruce protocol.

In comparison with placebo, in the patients treated with L-arginine,

1/ exercise time to maximal ST segment depression increased (p<0.002)

2/ sum of maximal ST segment depression decreased (p<0.04)

3/ maximal workload (METS) increased (p<0.006).

Increased exercise capacity in L-arginine supplemented patients may be causally related to the improvement of vasodilator responses depending on L-arginine/ NO in vascular endothelium.

LACK OF ANTIOXIDANT EFFECT OF CAPTOPRIL IN PATIENTS WITH ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION Prof. Krystyna Cedro-Ceremuzyńska

Captopril, an angiotensin converting enzyme (ACE) inhibitor, exerts a number of effects independent of ACE inhibitory properties including cardioprotection, attenuation of reperfusion-induced arrhythmias, endothelium-dependent vasodilator activity. It has been suggested that at least some of these effects are dependent on superoxide radical scavenging ability of the SH group in the captopril molecule. *In vitro* studies on the anti-free radical activity of captopril brought conflicting results.

Evaluation of the clinical value of the antioxidant properties of captopril seems of importance in view of common use of this drug in the acute phase of myocardial infarction (MI). We investigated, therefore, the effect of captopril upon the indexes of oxidative stress in the patients with acute MI, measuring plasma lipid peroxides and leucocyte oxygen free radical production. Of 63 patients with acute MI who entered ISIS-4, 33 were randomly assigned in a double-blind fashion to oral captopril (50 mg twice daily) and 30 to placebo.

The values of plasma lipid peroxides and leucocyte free radical production measured before and on day 3, 7, 14 of captopril/placebo treatment did not differ between the groups. The results provide no evidence for the antioxidant effect of captopril in the clinical setting of MI.

INITIAL ADRENERGIC RESPONSE IN ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION INFLU-ENCES THE MAGNITUDE OF THE LEFT VENTRICULAR INJURY Prof. Krystyna Cedro-Ceremuzyńska

It has been well established that excessive response of the sympathetic nervous system in acute myocardial infarction (MI), manifested by increased blood and/or urinary catecholamines is associated with complicated clinical course and poor prognosis. Our early experimental studies have documented that catecholamines released into the blood after acute coronary occlusion, exert arrhythmogenic and cardiotoxic effects, increase infarct size and promote ischemia distant from the area of infarction. The question as to whether the intensity of sympathoadrenal activation at the onset of MI may influence the extent of myocardial damage in the clinical setting, remains to be answered.

The aim of this study (substudy of ISIS-4) was to investigate the relation between blood catecholamine concentration at the onset of MI and the magnitude of the left ventricular injury assessed by two-dimensional echocardiographic examination (ECHO). The study group consisted of 42 patients with acute MI. Catecholamines were measured by HPLC on day 1 of MI, ECHO was performed on day 3 and 14. Left Ventricular Wall Motion Score (LVWMS) was calculated. Blood adrenaline concentration on day 1 correlated positively with the magnitude of myocardial injury determined on day 3 and 14 (p<0.032 and p<0.014, respectively). Similar relationship has been found between blood noradrenaline level on day 1 and the degree of left ventricular damage assessed on day 3 and 14 (p<0.021 and p<0.012, respectively). The results suggest that the magnitude of catecholamine release in the early phase of MI contributes to the ultimate left ventricular injury.

DEPARTMENT OF SURGICAL RESEARCH AND TRANSPLANTOLOGY Head: Professor Waldemar L. Olszewski

5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephone: 668 53 16 Fax: 668 53 34 E-mail: wlo@cmdik.pan.pl

PHENOTYPES OF IMMUNE CELLS EXTRAVASATING TO SKIN Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski, Dr Hanna Gałkowska

Phenotypic characteristics of inflammatory cells in skin with lymph stasis.

Tissues with lymph stasis belong to the so called "immunologically priviledged site". They are prone to infections and tumor development (lymphangiosarcoma), presumably due to limited elimination of foreign antigens and lymphocyte recirculation. In group of 30 patients with lymph stasis all revealed inflammatory changes in skin. Main histological features were hyperkeratosis, acanthosis, increased density of Langerhans cells (CD1a+), DR+ keratinocytes, perivenular infiltrates of DR+, CD69+, CD4+ cells. Advancement of changes depended on the stage of lymph stasis. What was the etiological factor responsible for the inflammatory changes remains unclear. Immunohistochemical evaluation of skin biopsies points to bacterial infection as a causative factor.

Bacterial flora of tissue fluid, lymph and lymph nodes in lymph stasis.

Bacteriological cultures performed in a group of 38 patients with lymph stasis revealed presence of isolates in tissue fluid in 40% of cases, in lymph in 35% and nodes in 35%. The dominant bacterial strain was *Staph. epidermidis*. In the control group of 20 healthy volunteers no isolates were found. Bacteria present in tissues with lymph stasis may be responsible for the observed inflammatory changes in skin.

Preventional treatment with benzathine penicillin in skin inflammation of patients with lymphedema.

Forty five patients with lymphedema of the lower limbs were included in an open clinical trial. The duration of lymphedema before initiation of therapy was 7 months to 40 years. Recurrent episodes of infection occurred in benzathine penicillin treated group during one year follow-up in only 4 of 45 patients (9%). These data, although evaluated without a placebo group, suggest that long-term benzathine penicillin administration decreases the frequency of infection in patients with lymphedema.

KINETICS OF REPOPULATION OF BONE MARROW CAVITIES AND LYMPHOID ORGANS AFTER VASCULARIZED AND IN-SUSPENSION SYNGENEIC AND ALLOGENEIC BONE MARROW TRANSPLANTATION Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski, Assoc. Prof. Barbara Łukomska

A large proportion of BMCs transplanted as in-bone VBM graft or in-suspension into nonirradiated or lethally irradiated LEW rats accumulates in the recipients BM cavities. A portion of the BMCs accumulates in SPL and MLN. The mechanism of homing of BMCs to LO remains unclear. Presumably the hemopoietic fraction migrates to the BM cavities, whereas the lymphoid fraction homes to SPL and lymph nodes. Thirty to three hundred times less BMC released from the inbone VBM graft, compared to i.v. injected BMC graft, bring about complete repopulation of LNs and SPL. It can be inferred that spatial functional relationship of hemopoietic and stromal cells in the VBM Tx with intact BM, results in physiologically regulated release to recipient's circulation of stem cells and hemopoietic cytokines. They probably mediate the rapid and complete repopulation of BM lymphoid organs. It was found that the BMCs homing to BM cavities do not reveal tendency to migrate out from BM and subsequently populate LO, in a fashion typical for lymphocytes. This seems logical since BMCs can function, proliferate and produce hemopoietic cytokines, only in spatial contact with BM stromal cells. The lymphoid cells possess a constitutive trait to recirculate between the LO, where they find the most convenient functional environment. Irradiation of the recipient evidently facilitated homing of BMCs to BM and LO in recipients of in-bone VBM Tx. It was not so expressed in rats receiving BMCs in-suspension. Presumably, the transplanted BM stromal cells together with BMCs, releasing hemopoietic cytokines, are responsible for the high homing rate of the transplanted BMCs. The rate of "homing of allogeneic BMCs in recipient BM, SPL and MLN is evidently lower than of syngeneic BMC, both after the in-bone and in-suspension grafting. Irradiation of the allogeneic recipient does not abrogate this phenomenon. Pretreatment of recipient with AAGM1 abrogates the allogeneic BMC cytotoxicity phenomenon, pointing to the NK cells as mediators of the allogeneic effect. A higher allogeneic effect after in-suspension than in-bone VBM Tx indicates that BMC transplanted with autologous stromal cells are less sensitive to the NK attack.

IMMUNE EFFECTS OF BLOOD TRANSFUSION Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski, Dr. Irena Grzelak

Transfusions of blood and its components are associated with the numerous alterations in the immune responsiveness of the recipient. The exact mechanism by which blood transfusions induce a state of the reduced immune responsiveness

remains unclear. Blood cells as well as humoral plasma components may play a role in this phenomenon. The effects of whole syngeneic and allogeneic blood transfusions as well as of syngeneic plasma on hematopoietic and immune systems have been reported previously. In the present study the effect of allogeneic plasma transfusion (ATP) on hemopoiesis and immune responsiveness was examined in a rat model. Normovolemic WAG rats were transfused intravenously 3 times with 2 ml of allogeneic (AUG) heparinized plasma, every other day, under light ether anesthesia. Three, 7 and 14 days after the last transfusion, blood from the vena cava, as well as spleens (SPL), mesenteric lymph nodes (MLN) and femur bone marrow (BM) were examined. We have found that transfusion of allogeneic plasma, almost doubling the circulating plasma volume, caused a significant decrease in WBC and splenocytes number/g tissue on day 3 after APT, and MLN cells number/g tissue on day 3 and 14 after transfusion. No significant changes in the percentage of cells of erythroid, myeloid and lymphoid lineage occurred during the entire observation period. No changes were also seen in the percentage of OX7⁻ stem cells in blood, SPL, MLN and BM after APT. There was, however, a significant decrease in the percentage of OX6⁻, MHC class II-positive cells in blood on days 3 and 7, in SPL on day 7, in MLN on days 3 and 14 and in BM on days 3, 7 and 14 following APT. The responsiveness of blood SPL and BM lymphocytes to PHA, ConA and PWM stimulation was significantly reduced almost during the entire observation period. Surprisingly, the responsiveness of MLN lymphocytes to mitogen stimulation was significantly increased. Results suggest that transfusion of allogeneic plasma strongly affects the immune reactivity in blood and lymphoid compartments, supplying an excess of plasma regulatory factors, as cytokines, shed receptors for cytokines and blockers of their receptors, soluble histocompatibility antigens and various proteins with blocking properties. Although present in low concentrations, they are very efficient in down-regulating immune processes in the blood circulation.

CELLULAR IMMUNE REACTION IN SKIN, LIVER AND PERITONEAL CAVITY IN NORMAL CONDITIONS AND IN ALLOGRAFTS Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski

The influence of biologically active factors on lymphocyte trapping in liver sinusoids.

Rat liver retains in sinusoids a population of blood cells, enriched in 3.2.3⁻, CD8⁻ and MHC class II⁻ cells, displaying a high cytotoxic activity. We investigated the effect of gadolinium chloride (affecting liver Kupffer cells), xylocaine (stabilizing cell membrane potential), trypsin (influencing cellular receptors), sodium azide (affecting cell oxidation processes), and neuraminidase (removing of the sialic acid residues) on trapping of blood lymphocytes in the liver. It was found that the

number of lymphocytes retained in sinusoids of control liver was 1.07×10^6 cells/g tissue. Administration of gadolinium chloride, trypsin and neuraminidase dit not evoke significant changes in the number of blood cells trapped in liver sinusoids, compared to control group (1.08×10^6 , 0.8×10^6 and 1.29×10^6 cells/g tissue, respectively). In contrast, administration of xylocaine and sodium azide significantly diminished the number of trapped lymphocytes (0.5×10^6 and 0.3×10^6 cells/g tissue, respectively).

Cyclosporin A decreases recruitment of lymphocytes in heart allograft.

It was found previously that thoracic duct lymphocytes pretreated with CsA reveal decreased migratory capacity to heart allograft. Studies of the mechanism of this phenomenon have shown that CsA decreases expression of L-selectin on lymphocytes. L-selectin is responsible for adhesion of lymphocytes to endothelial cells and subsequently extravasation to graft tissue.

Differences in rejection kinetics of heart and lymphocyte allograft after DST.

DST prolongs heart allograft survival time, at the same time accelerates lymphocyte allograft rejection. The question arises what may be the role of NK cells in this paradoxal two-directional process. Administration of anti-asialo-GM1 antisera specifically inhibiting NK cell cytotoxicity, resulted in slowing down the rejection of i.v. transplanted allogeneic lymphocytes.

CLINICAL AND EXPERIMENTAL CELL TRANSPLANTATION Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 6 P207 011 05

Rejection of organs, tissue fragment and cell allografts proceed along different pathways. Organ and tissue fragment grafting has been invented by humans and the process of recognition and rejection has not been evolutionarily developed. In contrast cells (bacterial, viral, fungal, maternal during pregnancy) penetrate tissues and are transported by the blood stream to the lymphoid organs. There, a process of natural elimination starts following the recognition of non-self antigens on the trapped cells. A similar process presumably develops after cell transplantation. Transplaned cells are either locally attacked by granulocytes and macrophages and destroyed or are carried by the blood to the lymphoid organs where they undergo a natural process of elimination. The results of our experiments substantiating this concept are presented.

The allogeneic cells transplanted intravenously or intratissueally are recognized by recipient immune cells and rapidly eliminated. This process constitutes a limitation to clinical transplantation of cells like Langerhans islets, hepatocytes, endocrine and neural cells. The mechanism of fast elimination remains unclear. In this study the k netics of the elimination of intravenously injected allogeneic splenocytes were eliminated for the most part within 6 hours. There were no significant differences in elimination between the allogeneic and control syngeneic nonlymphoid cells, however the recovery rate of these cells was extremely low. It seems that nonlymphoid cells are nonspecifically eliminated irrespective of whether they are syngeneic or allogenic. Their surface, uncovered with intercellular adhesion molecules, may nonspecifically attract granulocytes which express enzymatic cytotoxicity.

THE PATHOMECHANISM OF POSTTRAUMATIC EDEMA OF EXTREMITIES Prof. Waldemar L. Olszewski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05C 037 10

The subject of the 1996 investigative programme was the role of the bacteriological factor in the development of the lymphangiographic and histological changes in lymphatics and lymph nodes. Sewen strains of bacteria: *Staphylococcus epidermidis, Staph. hominis, Staph. sciuri, Acinetobacter, E. coli, Corynebacterium, Streptococcus*, were injected s.c. into the paw of mongrel dogs, weekly, for a period of 6 weeks. Lymphangiographic pictures revealed presence of obliterative changes in afferent lymphatics. On histology, inflammatory infiltrates were seen in the lymphatic wall and accumulation of histiocytes in cortical and medullary parts of lymph nodes. Obliterative changes of small skin lymphatics were observed. Most pronounced were the changes in animals injected with *Staph. epidermidis*.

LOCAL IMMUNE RESPONSE IN THE LIVER TO PROLIFERATING TUMOR CELLS AND IMMUNOMODULATION FOR PREVENTION OF LIVER METASTASIS FORMATION Assoc. Prof. Barbara Łukomska

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05B 020 08

In our previous studies we have found out that metastatic adenocarcinoma cells in the liver did not express adhesion molecules. Low expression or lack of adhesion molecules on tumor cells can hamper killing of metastatic cells by infiltrating lymphocytes. Tumor cells can activate supressor cells which in turn may inhibit the responsiveness of other subsets of lymphocyte by secretion of immunosuppressive cytokines.

The present study was designed to investigate the effect of metastatic adenocarcinoma of the liver on the cytotoxic activity of peritoneal liver sinusoidal lymphocytes and to evaluate the activity of cytokines released by these cells. We showed that the level of cytotoxicity of peritumoral liver sinusoidal lymphocytes against RAJI cells was significantly lower than that of lymphocytes isolated from the normal liver tissue. There was no difference between the level of IL-4, IL-10, IL-13, TGF- β 1 (cytokines expected to contribute to the suppression of immune response), released by peritumoral liver sinusoidal lymphocytes cultured *in vitro* in the presence of K-562 cells and IL-2, in comparison to lymphocytes isolated from the normal liver tissue. In conclusion, adenocarcinoma metastatic foci induce protective immunity inhibiting cytotoxic activity of lymphocytes within the tumor environment. This defect seems not to be related to the secretion of immunosuppressive cytokines by peritumoral liver sinusoidal lymphocytes.

HUMAN IMMUNE PERITONEAL CELLS IN PERITONITIS AND DIGESTIVE TRACT TUMORS Dr. Urszula Kubicka

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 S402 128 07

In our previous studies on peritoneal fluid cells we found that normal peritoneal cavity contains a specific cell population consisting mainly of macrophages and T cytotoxic/suppressor cells. The question arises whether the neoplastic process developing in the gastrointestinal tract evokes changes in cellular composition of the peritoneal fluid. Preliminary observations indicate that colon tumor stimulated recruitment of myelomonoidal cells, whereas gastric cancer mainly elicited lymphocytes. The process of recruitment of immune cells is regulated by cytokines. We found significant expression in peritoneal macrophages of intracellular TNFa (+++/++++) (68.5% - gr I - adenocarcinoma, and 67.7% - gr II - adenocarcinoma of colon), and IL-1 β (++/+++) (50.7% – gr I and 60.9% – gr II). There was only weak expression of these cytokines in controls (+/++) (TNF α – 26.3% and IL-1 β – 0.0%). In small lymphocyte-like cells the expression of cytokines was slightly more pronounced in patients of gr I (TNF α - 39.7% and IL-1 β - 52.9%) in comparison with gr II (TNF α – 38.7% and IL-1 β – 28.0%) and controls (TNF α – 20.6% and IL-1 β – 0.0%), IL-8 was expressed in a few peritoneal cells. Intracellular TNF α accumulated mainly close to the cell surface, whereas IL-1B was uniformly distributed in the cytoplasm. The presence of intracellular cytokines in peritoneal cells of cancer patients correlates with the previously reported expression of lymphocyte activation antigens on peritoneal cells of tumor patients, and points to an activation process in peritoneal cavity.

THE MECHANISM OF HOMING OF CYTOTOXIC CELLS IN LIVER SINUSOIDS – THE ROLE OF THIS POPULATION IN LOCAL REACTION AGAINST NEOPLASMATIC CELLS Sergiusz Durowicz, M.D.

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 020 09

Recent studies strongly suggest that liver plays an important immunoregulatory role in general and local immunity. Local immune function of liver seems to be associated with a specific population of lymphocytes (LC), most probably of blood origin, which marginate in hepatic sinusoids. They seem to be responsible for destruction of malignant cells which have reached liver via the bloodstream. In our previous studies phenotypical and functional characterization of this cell population in normal liver was performed. In the present study we investigated whether the presence of colon cancer metastases (evoked by inoculation of CC531 colon adenocarcinoma cells into the portal vein of syngeneic WAG rats) had influence on cell types trapped in liver sinusoids. In vivo studies on LC trapping in liver give inconsistent results due to competitive homing in lymphoid organs. To avoid this problem, the process of LC retention in liver was studied in an extracorporeal rat liver perfusion model with peristaltic pump, oxygenator and heat-exchanger. Metastatic and control W/WAG livers were washed out from sinusoidal marginating cells prior to and 1hr after perfusion with syngeneic blood (pre- and postperfusion wash-out, PRE-W and POST-W, respectively) and the retrieved cell population was identified with monoclonal antibodies.

Results: Monoclonal antibody analysis showed a prevalence in PRE-W from liver with metastases compared to control PRE-W, of helper/inducer W3/25 (39.3 vs 32.2%, respectively), class II OX6⁻ (32 vs 21.7%), NK cells 3.2.3 (25.3 vs 10%), monocyte/macrophage ED1⁻ (29.9 vs 14.5%), whereas fewer of T cells OX19 (26 vs 31.7%). POST-W cells from metastatic livers displayed the same characteristic as PRE-W, with an evidently higher than in normal liver percentage of W3/25 (38.9 vs 33.2%), OX6⁻ (26.8 vs 15.6%), ED1⁻ (32.2 vs 18.1%) and 3.2.3⁻ (33.2 vs 16.6%) cells. In conclusion, rat liver with metastases of colon adenocarcinoma retains in sinusoids a population of blood cells enriched in CD4⁻, NK, monocyte/macrophage and MHC class II⁻ cells.

A NEW MECHANISM OF CYCLOSPORIN A ACTIVITY IN PREVENTION OF ALLOGRAFT REJECTION – INHIBITION OF HOST LYMPHOCYTE MIGRATION TO THE GRAFT Michał Maksymowicz, M.D.

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05A 083 09

Treatment of allograft recipient with cyclosporine A (CsA) causes prolongation of graft survival, decreased infiltration of the graft with recipient immune cells, and selective inhibition of donor T cell proliferation by blocking cytokine synthesis. Previously we showed that CsA affects the in vivo lymphocyte migratory properties. The question arises whether the down-regulation of expression of adhesion molecules by CsA could be responsible for the decreased migration? Thoracic duct lymphocytes (TDL) harvested from WIS rats treated with CsA (10 mg/kg for 7d) were labeled with 51Cr and injected i.v. into WIS rats with 4d AUG heart transplant (HTx). 24h later accumulation of TDL radioactivity in AUG HTx and recipient organs was measured and expressed as % of injected dose per gram of tissue. FACS analysis of CD11a, CD18, CD44, CD54, CD62L, CD8 and CD4 expression on TDL, PBL, MLN and spleen cells of WIS rats treated with CsA was performed. Results were compared with control non-CsA treated rats. The level of allograft radioactivity after infusion of CsA-pretreated TDL was 0.46±0.2% of injected dose per gram of tissue, compared to 1.1±0.8% in control. CD62L expression on CsApretreated cells was decreased as compared to control (34.4, 53.3, 41.9 vs 54.8, 65.0, 56.0 % of positive TDL, PBL, MLN, respectively, p<0.05). Expression of adhesion molecules CD11a/CD18, CD44 did not differ from the control. Decreased expression of L-selectin on CsA-pretreated lymphocytes may limit their accumulation in the allograft.

PATHOMECHANISM OF PROTRACTED WOUND HEALING Dr. Hanna Gałkowska

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05C 030 10

Phenotypical analysis of infiltrating cells in wounds with protracted healing was performed in 3 groups of wounds: a/ varicous ulcer of lower leg, b/ infected surgical upper abdominal midline wound, c/ normal surgical wound. Epidermis, dermis and subcutaneous tissue were evaluated. In group a/ biopsies were taken from the margin of ulcer. There was lack of germinal layer of epidermis, keratinocytes were DR⁻, CD44⁻, no CD1a⁻ cells (Langerhans cells) were observed. In dermis, the dominating cells were CD68⁻ macrophages, followed by CD45RO cells. All infiltrating cells including fibroblasts and endothelial cells were DR⁻, CD44⁻. In group b/ only 2-3 layers of keratinocytes were seen. They were DR⁻, CD44⁻.

no CD1a⁻ cells. In dermis high density of CD68⁻ and DR⁻ cells was observed. Endothelial cells were DR⁻ and only slightly factor VIII⁻. In group c/ activated keratinocytes expressing DR and numerous CD1a⁻ cells could be seen within the first 24 h. In dermis high concentration of CD68⁻ cells was observed. After 3 and 7 days the CD68⁻ cells were less numerous, being replaced by CD3⁻8⁺, CD45RO lymphocytes. Taken together, rapid activation of keratinocytes and recruitment of CD1a⁻ and CD68⁻ cells can be seen in fresh wounds. In wounds with protracted healing, the structure of epidermis remains abnormal, with few CD1a⁻ cells. In dermis CD68⁻ macrophages dominate, abnormal structure of blood capillaries is seen.

NEUROPEPTIDE LABORATORY Head: Assoc. Prof. Andrzej Lipkowski 5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 668 53 88, 608 65 45 E-mail: lipkowski@cmdik.pan.pl

STUDY OF ORAL TOLERANCY INDUCTION USING BOVINE SPINAL HYDROLYSATE IN ANIMAL MODEL OF EXPERIMENTAL AUTOIMMUNE ENCEPHALOMYELITIS Assoc. Prof. Andrzej W. Lipkowski

Specific protein given orally is known method of induction of tolerance of immunologic response to this antigen. This method is reviewed recently by some authors as a possible tool in the treatment of autoagressive diseases. Experimental allergic encephalomyelitis (EAE) is the respected animal model of autoagressive disease as multiple sclerosis. The aim of this year study was the evaluation of the effect of bovine spinal hydrolysate upon the course of EAE in the rat. Experimental allergic encephalomyelitis was evoked by intra-dermal injection of spinal cord homogenate of guinea pig with complete Freund's adjuvant and Mycobacterium phlei. In the group of animals pretreated with bovine spinal cord hydrolysate before immunization the number of animals with first relapse was lower in comparison to untreated ones. Antibodies level anti-MBP as well as a number of inflammatory infiltrates were lower in the treated animals. These pilot data indicate that oral treatment with spinal cord protein hydrolysate modulates clinical course in the rat and might have some clinical implication for search multiple sclerosis treatment in human. The study was done with close collaboration with Industrial Chemistry Research Institute in Warsaw.

INTERACTION BETWEEN OPIOIDS AND OTHER NEUROTRANSMITTERS IN PAIN TRANSMISSION PROCESSES Assoc. Prof. Andrzej W. Lipkowski

Endogenous opioid system plays a major role in suppression of pain signal transmission in both central and peripheral nervous system. There is also a growing evidence that other neuromodulators and neurotransmitters also play role in the transmission and suppression of pain signals. In particular, multidisciplinary experimental approaches have demonstrated that NMDA system may participate in the integration of nociceptive information. Spinal NMDA system, in addition to pain modulation, may play a role in mediation of variety of neural side effects including neurotoxicity. Recently, endogenous peptide, histogranin, has been itolated and characterized as endogenous NMDA antagonist. Our study of intrathetal interaction of histogranin with opioids showed that histogranin itself has little effect on reducing of thermal acute nociceptive stimuli. However, in combinaton with opioid peptide, biphalin, strongly enhanced and prolonged duration of antinociceptive effect of biphalin was observed. This program was accomplished under scientific cooperation with the Department of Anesthesia, Massachusetts General Hospital, Boston, USA.

STRUCTURE-ACTIVITY RELATIONSHIPS OF OPIOID LIGANDS Assoc. Prof. Andrzej W. Lipkowski

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 6 6337 92 03

In order to overcome the undesirable and toxic side effects of opioids, currently used as drugs, we have targeted our structure-activity relationship studies of endogenous opioid peptide and their peptide mimetics on a design of the new generaton of antinociceptive drugs with various receptor selectivity, pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic profiles. Using a combination of computer assisted design, conformational and topographical considerations, synthetic chemistry, and multiple pharmacological assay methods we have elaborated a series of compourds with new, unusual biological and pharmacological profiles. The most promising avenues for new drug discovery are new series of opioid peptide analogues and alkaloid-peptide hybrides. We were able to construct common topographic molel of opioid peptides and alkaloids. Basing on this model we were able to construct hybrides in which dynorphin peptide fragments hybridized with naltrindol, ddta selective alkaloid shifted its primary receptor selectivity to kappa opioid receptors.

The program was accomplished under scientific cooperation with the Department of Anesthesia, New England Medical Center, Boston, and Department of Chemistry, University of Arizona, Tucson, USA.

DEPARTMENT OF ENDOCRINOLOGY Head: Professor Janusz Nauman

1a Banacha St., 01-201 Warsaw Telephone: 659 75 62 Fax: 659 75 62 E-mail: janu@amwaw.edu.pl

STUDY ON INTERACTIONS BETWEEN T LYMPHOCYTE DERIVED FROM PERIHERAL BLOOD AND ORBITAL TISSUES WITH EXTRACELLULAR MATRIX PROTEINS IN PATIENTS WITH THE AUTOIMMUNE THYROID DISEASE AND OPHTHALMOPATHY ACCOMPANYING GRAVES' DISEASE Prof. Janusz Nauman

Supported by the Medical Research Centre Intramural Grant No. 32 and by the State Committee for Scientific Research Grant No. 4 P05B 047 09

We have studied putative role of interactions between T lymphocytes and extracellular matrix proteins (ECMP) in the pathogenesis of the thyroid-associated ophthalmopathy. The experimental system based on the culture of T cells with ECMP, namely: collagen I (Col I), collagen IV (Col IV), fibronectin (FN), laminin (LM) and elastin (EL) has been developed. Two different types of the assay were established: the test of peripheral blood mononuclear cells (PBMC) proliferation in response to protein antigens and the test based on costimulation of PBMC by antigens and CD3. We have studied interactions of T cells and ECM proteins in 40 subjects including healthy control subjects, patients with active Graves' ophthalmopathy and with stable eye disease, patients with Graves' disease or Hashimoto thyroiditis without eye involvement, and patients with nonautoimmune thyroid disorders (multinodular goitre, single thyroid nodules). Preliminary results seem to confirm the notion that impaired T cells - ECM proteins interactions may play a pathogenic role in the thyroid associated-ophthalmopathy as we observed significantly higher stimulation index values in the group of patients with an active eye disease in response to collagen I. On the other hand, ELISA assays confirmed high prevalence of anti-collagen I autoantibodies in sera of patients with stabilized ophthalmophathy. These autoantibodies may play a role of marker of orbital fibrosis and scarring in the clinical course of the disease.

The study was performed in cooperation with The Thyroid-Eye Disease Research Center (where some of experiments were carried on by Dr. Tomasz Bednarczuk), Allegheny Singer Research Institute, Medical College of Pennsylvania, Pittsburgh, PA, USA, Department of Endocrinology, University Medical School of Warsaw, Department of Immunology, Transplantation Institute of the University, Medical School of Warsaw.

ANTIPEROXIDASE AND ANTITHYROGLOBULIN AUTOANTIBODIES IN PATIENTS WITH MYASTHENIA, INSULIN-DEPENDENT DIABETES MELLITUS, RHEUMATOID ARTHRITIS, SYSTEMIC SCLEROSIS AND SYSTEMIC LUPUS ERYTHEMATOSUS Prof. Janusz Nauman

Prevalence of antiperoxidase and antithyroglobulin autoantibodies in patients with autoimmune disorders not affecting the thyroid gland was studied using ELISA technique with purified human antigens. We studied 121 subjects, among them 33 patients with myasthenia gravis (MG), 16 patients with insulin dependent diabetes mellitus (IDDM), 28 patients with rheumatoid arthritis (RA), 25 patients with progressive systemic sclerosis (SS), 19 subjects with systemic lupus erythematosus (SLE) and 30 age- and sex-matched healthy control subjects. Antiperoxidase autoantibodies were found in as many as 84.8% of patients with myasthenia, 37.5% of patients with IDDM, 53.6% of patients with RA, 36.8% of patients with SLE and 32% of patients with SM. On the other hand, antithyroglobulin autoantibodies were found in 36.8% of patients with SLE and 32% of subjects with SS. Autoantibodies titers were usually low and were correlated to each other. The results confirm the notion that markers of the autoimmune thyroid disease are frequently present in autoimmune disorders apparently not involving the thyroid gland.

The study was performed in cooperation with Dr. Barbara Czarnocka Ph.D., S.Sci, of Department of Biochemistry, Medical Center of Postgraduate Education, Warsaw.

THE EFFECTS OF IODINE DEFICIENCY ON THYROID HORMONE METABOLISM IN THE PLACENTA Tomasz Bednarczuk, M.D.

Supported by the State Committee for Scientific Research: grant # 4 P05B 129 10

The study was performed to determine the influence of iodine deficiency on the thyroid hormone metabolism in the placenta to answer the question whether placenta could play a preventive role against the consequences of not sufficient iodine supply during pregnancy. The influence of iodine deficiency on placental enzymatic activity has never been investigated in humans.

The thyroid hormones level, iodine concentration in the urine of mothers and newborns, and the placental deiodinases activity were evaluated in the following age-matched groups: (a) Iodine deficiency group (IDG) consisting of 7 women with urine iodine concentration below the normal range ($100 \mu g/g$ creatinine); (b) Control group (CG) consisting of 12 women with normal urine iodine concentra-

tion, receiving iodine supplementation of 150 μg daily during second and third pregnancy trimester.

The following results directly pertaining to these questions were obtained:

1. Total serum T3 concentration was significantly higher in iodine deficient mothers (1.48 vs. 0.83 nmol/L, p=0.0067). Total serum T3 concentration in children was not affected by iodine deficiency.

2. In mothers receiving iodine supplementation during pregnancy urine iodine concentrations (means iodine urine concentration 415 μ g/g creatinine) were significantly higher (Wilcoxon test; p=0.0001) than in mothers without the supplementation (43.71 μ g/g creatinine). Noteworthy, newborn urine iodine excretion in the IDG (123.3 μ g/g creatinine) was not significantly different than in the control group (145.5 μ g/g creatinine).

3. Total 5-deiodination activity and the activity of 5-deiodinase type III were not significantly different in the investigated groups.

4. Total 5'-deiodination activity and the activity of 5'-deiodinase type II were significantly lower in the iodine deficiency group (p=0.47, p=0.0225 respectively). The negative correlation was found between total 5'-deiodination activity and total serum T3 concentration in mothers (r=-0.51, p=0.0248).

Our data suggest the existence of few mechanisms protecting the fetus against iodine deficiency. Apart from already described maternal thyroxine transport through placenta the mechanisms comprise fetal thyroid stimulation (increased TSH level in newborns found in our material), an active iodine placental uptake (newborn urine iodine excretion in the IDG within the normal range) and modification of placental thyroid hormones deiodination in conditions of decreased iodine availability.

THE LIBRARY

Head: Krystyna Marczakowska

5 Pawińskiego St., 02-106 Warsaw Telephones: 658 46 77, 608 64 65 E-mail: library@cmdik.pan.pl

The library constitutes one Department of the Medical Research Centre and acts as an information source for scientists.

Scope and subject profile:

physiology, neurosciences and experimental surgery, including transplantology

Present holdings:

books – monographic and serial volumes (Polish and foreign) – 15 394 periodicals, newspapers (number of titles) – 159

References aids:

catalogues

- alphabetical: books, periodicals and microfishes

subject: books

main card-files

bibliographical list of papers published by scientists of the Medical Research Centre, Polish Academy of Sciences from 1967.

Users:

scientific workers of the MRC, interlibrary loans available for all scientific institutes in Poland and abroad.

Bibliography of library: a list of new books and current periodicals is prepared weekly. On the basis of the Scientific Citation Index a report of citations of papers published by MRC scientists in 1996 was prepared. It contains 832 citations.

MEDIPAN –Scientific Instruments Department Head: Andrzej Lasek

1/13 Flory St., 02-586 Warsaw Telephone: 49 30 79 Fax: 49 30 79

MEDIPAN is a manufacturer of specialistic equipment for medical service. Syringe and volumetric infusion pumps are the basic assortment. All the products have been designed in the Department.

In 1996 the activities have focused on adaptation of infusion pumps to functioning in collaboration with computer systems. Technical basis has been elaborated of a system which will enable:

- remote control of infusion,

- receipt of feedback information from the pump,
- rapid diagnosis.

Preliminary steps towards designing a new single-syringe pump have been undertaken.

INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

VISITING SCIENTISTS

Department of Neurochemistry

Institute of Physiology, Russian Academy of Sciences , St. Petersburg, Russia		
Department of Cellular Signalling		
Department of Biochemistry, Faculty of Medicine, University of Catania, Italy		
Department of Biochemistry, Ohio State University, USA		

Marc Bauman Department of Medical Chemistry, Institute of Biomedicine, University of Helsinki, Finland

Department of Neuropathology

Igor V. Barskov Ilya Victorov	Institute of Brain Research, Academy of Medical Sciences, Moscow, Russia
Neuromuscular Unit	
Oleg M. Pozdniakow Lubow F. Kasatkina	Institute of General Pathology, Russian Academy of Medical Sciences, Moscow, Russia
Klaus Zerres Sabina Rudnik-Schöneborn	Institute of Human Genetic, University of Bonn, Germany

Department of Applied Physiology

Ronald Terjung	Department of Physiology, Health Science
	Center, State University of New York, USA
Tamara Smirnova	Institute of Exercise Biology, Tartu University, Estonia
-------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Juraj Koška	Institute of Experimental Endocrinology, Bratislava, Slovakia
John E. Greenleaf	Gravitational Research Branch NASA Ames Research Center, Moffett Field, USA

Department of Surgical Research and Transplantology

Fanish ManiTripathi	Indian National Science Academy, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi, India
Nadeżda Lukačova	Institute of Neurobiology, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Košice, Slovakia
Marit Rosef Annemarie Rosef	Norwegian Radiumhospital, Oslo, Norway
Jain Pradeep	Institute of Medical Sciences, Benares Hindu University, Varanasi, India
Neuropeptide Laboratory	
Ruta Kemme	Academic Clinic, Riga, Latvia
Mati Fridkin	Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot, Israel

VISITS ABROAD

Department of Neurophysiology

Mieczysław Pokorski	Department of Physiology, Sapporo Medical School, Japan
Małgorzata Szereda-Przestaszewska	Department of Pathophysiology, Medical Faculty, Safarik University, Košice, Slovakia
	Department of Otorhinolaryngology, University Hospital, Umea, Sweden
	Department of Biophysics, Comenius University, Martin, Slovakia
Department of Neurochemistry	
Wanda Gordon-Krajcer	Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiwa University, New York, USA
Jerzy Łazarewicz	Institute for Basic Research in Developmental Disabilities, New York, USA
Teresa Zalewska Elżbieta Salińska	Institute of Anatomy and Cell Biology, University of Göteborg, Sweden
Department of Cellular Signalling	
Joanna Strosznajder	Laboratory of Molecular Clinical Chemistry, Institute for Chemical Research, Kyoto University, Japan Instituto di Chimica Biologica, Facolta di Medicina e Chirurgia,

Universita di Catania, Italy

Maciej M. Łałowski	Department of Pathology and Neurology, NYU Medical Center, New York, USA
Bronisław Głód	Department of Clinical Neuroscience, University of Lund, Sweden
Department of Neurotoxicology	
Wojciech Hilgier	Institute of Biomedical Sciences, University of Tampere, Finland
Jan Albrecht	Red Bull Trading GmbH, Salzburg, Austria
	Merz+Co. GmbH & Co., Frankfurt am Man, Germany
Monika Dolińska	Neurochemical Laboratory, University of Oslo, Norway
Department of Neuropathology	
Lidia Faff-Michalak	Max-Delbrück-Centrum für Molekulare Medizin, Zelluläre Neurobiologie, Berlin, Germany
Stanisław Krajewski	La Jolla Cancer Research Foundation, La Jolla, USA (long term visit)
Roman Gadamski	Institute of Brain Research, Russian Academy of Medical Sciences, Moscov, Russia
Department of Developmental N	europathology
Maria Dąmbska	Institute for Basic Research in Developmental Disabilities, New York, USA

Laboratory of the Ultrastructure of the Nervous System

Barbara Gajkowska	Laboratoire de Biologie et Ultrastructure du Noyau de l'Institut de Recherches Scientifiques sur le Cancer, Villejuif, France
Department of Neurosurgery	
Jacek Bogucki	Johann Wolfgang Goethe-Universität, Zentrum der Morphologie, Frankfurt, Germany
Nina Kuridze	Freie Universität Berlin, Germany
Zbigniew Czernicki Jerzy Jurkiewicz	Russian Neurosurgical Institute, St. Petersburg, Russia
Paweł Nauman	Department of Clinical Neuroscience, Section of Neurosurgery, University Hospital, Lund, Sweden
Neuromuscular Unit	
Irena Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz Janina Borkowska	Institute of Human Genetics, Bonn, Germany
Małgorzata Kozłowska	University of Newcastle, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Human Genetics, Newcastle Upon Tyne, UK
Department of Applied Physiolo	gy
Józef Langfort	Department of Medical Physiology, The PANUM Institute, University of Copenhagen, Denmark

Leszek Budohoski

Department of Biochemistry, University of Oxford, UK

Barbara Kruk Ryszard Grucza Gerard Cybulski	Department of Physiology, University of Kuopio, Finland Centre for Biological and Medical Systems, Imperial College, London, UK
Andrzej Ziemba	Medical Faculty, Vrije Universiteit, Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Hanna Kaciuba-Uściłko Krystyna Nazar	Institute of Experimental Endocrinology, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, Slovakia
	Institut für Allgemeine und Experimentelle Pathologie, Universität Graz, Austria
Laboratory of Renal and Body Fluid Physiology	
Janusz Sadowski	Department of Physiology, Medical College of Wisconsin, Milwaukee, USA
Department of Surgical Research	h and Transplantology
Urszula Kubicka	Institute of Nephrology, Cardiff Royal Infirmary, Cardiff, UK
Irena Grzelak	Norwegian Radiumhospital, Oslo, Norway
Waldemar Olszewski	Norwegian Radiumhospital, Oslo, Norway
	Indian National Science Academy, Tuberculosis Research Center, Madras, India
	Benares Hindu University, Varanasi, India
	Department of Cardiovascular Biochemistry, St. Bartholomew's Hospital Medical College, London, UK
	Department of Anatomy, Shandong Medical University, Shandong, China

	Institut für Chirurgische Forschung, München, Germany
	Instituti Chirurgici Universitari, Genova, Italy
Barbara Łukomska	Ninth Peoples Hospital, Shanghai Second Medical University, Shanghai, China
	Laboratoire de Biologie Cellulaire, Faculté de Medicine Xavier Bichat, Université Paris, France
Neuropeptide Laboratory	

Iwona Maszczyńska

Brunon Sagan Andrzej Lipkowski Aleksandra Misicka-Kęsik New England Medical Center, Anesthesia Research Laboratories, Boston, USA (long term visit)

Isotope Laboratory of Biomedical Research Center, Hungarian Academy of Science, Szeged, Hungary

Department of Endocrinology

Tomasz Bednarczuk

Thyroid Eye Research Program, Allegheny-Singer Research Institute, Pittsburgh, USA

PARTICIPATION IN INTERNATIONAL MEETINGS

XXth Anniversary of Organ Transplantation in Poland "Progress in Transplantation", Warsaw, Poland, January 25-26, 1996: *W. Olszewski, M. Maksymowicz*

Workshop in honor of Lewis P. Rowland, Padova, Italy, February 1, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz*

European Association of Neurosurgical Societies Winter Meeting, Taormina, Italy, February 21-25, 1996: Z. Czernicki

Symposium on Recent Advances in Diagnosis and Therapy of Neuromuscular Diseases, Prato, Italy, March 21-24, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, I. Niebrój-Dobosz*

13th International Symposium on Arterial Chemoreceptors, Santiago, Chile, March 25-29, 1996: *M. Pokorski, M. Walski*

International Celebratory Thyroid Meeting, Dublin, Ireland, March 26-28,1996: *J. Nauman*

31st European Society for Surgical Research Congress, Southampton, United Kingdom, March 31-April 3, 1996: W.L. Olszewski, B. Łukomska, H. Gałkowska, M. Jaskłowska-Englisz, I. Grzelak, G. Szczęsny, M. Maksymowicz

Spring Meeting of Clinical Molecular Genetics Society, Newcastle upon Tyne, United Kingdom, April 2-3, 1996: *M. Kozłowska*

The 17th Annual International Gravitational Physiology Meeting, Warsaw, Poland, April 14-19, 1996: *H. Kaciuba-Uściłko, K. Nazar, E. Żernicka*

3rd International Dead Sea Symposium on Advances in Diagnosis and Treatment of Cardiac Arrhythmias, Tel Aviv, Israel, April 17-19, 1996: *K. Cedro-Ceremużyńska*

International Congress on Sudden Infant Death Syndrom, Košice, Slovakia, April 18-20, 1996: *M. Szereda-Przestaszewska*

6th Alzheimer Europe Annual Meeting, Warsaw, Poland, April 18-20, 1996: E. Łuczywek, M. Barcikowska

Symposium of International Society of Lymphology, Tuscon, USA, April 19-21, 1996: *W. Olszewski*

5th European Congress of Neuropathology, Paris, France, April 22-28, 1996: *A. Kapuściński, M. Dąmbska, H. Kroh, R. Pluta*

IV International Symposium of Jagiellonian Medical Research Centre: Eicosanoids, Aspirin and Asthma, Cracow, Poland, May 1-3, 1996: K. Cedro-Ceremużyńska

Brainstorming – "Ornithine Aspartate (OA) and treatment of hepatic encephalopathy", Cholleford, United Kingdom, May 2-4, 1996: J. Albrecht

International Conference "The Molecular and Free Radical Basis of Wide Spectrum Diseases", Łódź-Płock, Połand, May 7-8, 1996: *H. Kaciuba-Uścilko, K. Nazar, M. Walski*

Symposium "Acute Pain", Heraklion, Greece, May 9-11, 1996: *P. Jakubowski, D. Kosson*

World Meeting of Polish Physicians, Chicago, USA, May 8-12, 1996: *J. Jurkiewicz*

First Annual Conference of Lymphology Society of India, Thanjavur, India, May 15, 1996: *W. Olszewski*

Polish-Finnish Symposium: "Progress in Clinical Neurophysiology", Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, E. Zalewska*

Merck European Thyroid Symposium, Warsaw, Poland, May 16 - 18, 1996: J. Nauman

First Congress of Euroacademy for Multidisciplinary Neurotraumatology, Salzburg, Austria, May 17-18, 1996: Z. Czernicki

21st Congress of European Group of Lymphology, Roma, Italy, May 23-25, 1996: *W. Olszewski, B. Łukomska*

II European Kidney Research Forum, Bergamo-Baveno, Italy, May 24-27, 1996: J. Sadowski, L. Dobrowolski, E, Kompanowska-Jezierska, A. Walkowska

I Annual Congress of the European College of Sport Science, Nice, France, May 28-31, 1996: *H. Kaciuba-Uściłko, K. Nazar*

Central European CODMAN MEDOS Symposium, Prague, Czech Republic, May 29-30, 1996: *J. Jurkiewicz*

The Second International Workshop on Maturation Phenomenon in Cerebral Ischemia, Neuronal Recovery and Plasticity, Tokyo, Japan, June 1, 1996: *R. Pluta*

I International Conference on Apoptosis in Skeletal and Cardiac Muscles, Padova, Italy, June 1-4, 1996: A. Fidziańska, A. Kamińska

V International Symposium of Polish Network of Cellular and Molecular Biology UNESCO/PAN: "Molecular and Physiological Aspects of Systemic Regulation", Cracow, Poland, June 4-5, 1996: B. Gajkowska

10th Nord-Baltic Conference on Biomedical Engineering, Tampere, Finland, June 9-13, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, K. Rowińska-Marcińska, G. Cybulski, E. Zalewska*

Neurochirurgische Konference im Neurochirurgische Klinic Aarau, Aarau, Switzerland, June 10-14, 1996: *J. Jurkiewicz*

XI Meeting of European Society for Neurochemistry, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996: J. Strosznajder, J. Łazarewicz, J.Albrecht, B. Gajkowska, M. Śmiałek, T. Zalewska, K. Domańska-Janik, B. Kwiatkowska-Patzer, J. Sypecka, B. Zabłocka

South Pacific Symposium on lodine Deficiency, Diabetes and Environment, Pepeete, Tahiti, June 18-20, 1996: *J. Nauman*

Workshop of European Neuromuscular Center, Naarden, The Netherlands, June 21-23, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz*

International 14-th Puijo Symposium "Physical Activity, Diet and Cardiovascular Diseases – a Fresh Beyond Old Facts", Kuopio, Finland, June 24-28, 1996: *R. Grucza* Varian Course of High Performance Liquid Chromatography, Zug, Switzerland, July 6-13, 1996: *B. Glód*

24th Meeting of the Federation of European Biochemical Societes (FEBS '96), Barcelona, Spain, July 7-12, 1996: *L. Budohoski, M. Łałowski*

40th Annual Meeting of Society for Research on Hydrocephalus and Spina Bifida, Utrecht, The Netherlands, July 10-13, 1996: *J. Jurkiewicz*

International Symposium on Pharmacology of Cerebral Ischemia, Marburg, Germany, July 21-24, 1996: *E. Kołodziejska*

International Narcotic Research Conference, Los Angeles, USA, July 21-26, 1996: *A. Lipkowski*

XVIIth International Carbohydrate Symposium, Milano, Italy, July 21-26, 1996: *Z. Bartoszewicz*

5th International Conference on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders, Osaka, Japan, July 22-29, 1996: *R. Pluta, M. Barcikowska-Litwin, E. Kida*

XI Congress of International Society for Developmental Neurosciences, Tampere, Finland, July 30-August 4, 1996: J. Albrecht, B. Dąbrowska-Bouta, K. Domańska-Janik, J. Sypecka, D. Maślińska

Tenth International Symposium on Pharmacology of Thermogulation, Memphis, USA, August 16-22, 1996: *R. Grucza*

XVI International Congress of the Transplantation Society, Barcelona, Spain, August 25-30, 1996: W. Olszewski, B. Łukomska, E. Jasklowska-Englisz

Danube Symposium on Neurological Sciences, Krems, Austria, August 28-30, 1996: *M.J. Mossakowski*

European Thyroid Symposium, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, August 30 - September 4, 1996: *J. Nauman*

8th International Symposium on Cells of the Hepatic Sinusoid, Bordeaux, France, September 1-5, 1996: *B. Łukomska, S. Durowicz*

3rd World Stroke Congress and 5th European Stroke Conference, Munich, Germany, September 1-5, 1996: *E. Kozniewska*

XV Martin Day of Respiration, Martin, Slovakia, September 2-3, 1996: *M. Szereda-Przestaszewska*

17th Congress of the Polish Anatomical Society with International Participation, Gdańsk, Poland, September 3-6, 1996: *M. J. Mossakowski, R. Pluta*

8th International Congress of the Czech and Slovak Neurochemical Society, Martin, Slovakia, September 4-7, 1996: J. Łazarewicz, K. Domańska-Janik

II International Congress: "Phagocytes, biological and clinical aspects", Pavia, Italy, September 4-7, 1996: *M. Walski, D. Maślińska*

European Respiratory Society Congress, Stockholm, Sweden, September 7-11, 1996: *K. Budzińska*, *M. Szereda-Przestaszewska*, *B. Wypych*

International Conference on Recent Advances in Neurotraumatology, Rimini-Riccione, Italy, September 8-11, 1996: *J. Jurkiewicz*

XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996: Z. Brzezińska, G. Cybulski, J. Chwalbińska-Moneta, I. Falęcka-Wieczorek, R. Grucza, H. Kaciuba-Uścilko, B. Kruk, H. Krysztofiak, K. Krzemiński, K. Nazar, A. Ziemba, L. Budohoski, E. Żernicka, A. Dubaniewicz, J. Sadowski, E. Kompanowska-Jezierska, B. Bądzyńska, L. Dobrowolski, A. Walkowska, K. Budzińska, L. Czerwosz, E. Koźniewska, M. Szereda--Przestaszewska

V Conference of German Society of Neuropharmacology and Neurotoxicology, Magdeburg, Germany, September 13-14, 1996: J. Albrecht

XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996: G. Cybulski, J. Chwalbińska-Moneta, R. Grucza, H. Kaciuba-Uścilko, H. Krysztofiak, B. Kruk, K. Krzemiński, K. Nazar, A. Ziemba, W. Niewiadomski

The Second National Network Conference on Lymphedema: The Problem and the Challenge, San Francisco, USA, September 19-22, 1996: *W. Olszewski* Neurosurgery Symposium: "Veranderte Therapiekonzepte", Giessen, Germany, September 25-26, 1996: Z. Czernicki, J. Andrychowski, J. Bogucki

International Symposium: Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devoted the memory of the late Prof. dr med. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996: M. J. Mossakowski, E. Wójcik-Ziółkowska, K. Nazar, H. Kaciuba-Uściłko, R. Grucza, J. Chwalbińska-Moneta, B. Kruk, A. Ziemba, G. Cybulski, H. Krysztofiak, B. Tomczak, E. Szczęsna

III International Symposium of the Cell Transplant Society, Miami, USA, September 29-October 2, 1996: *W. Olszewski, M. Jaskłowska-Englisz, M. Durlik, S. Durowicz*

4th Central European FACS/CAS Users' Meeting, Portoroze, Slovenia, September 29-October 2, 1996: *S. Janczewska, M. Poreda*

4th International Lymphology Symposium of Brussels, Brussels, Belgium, October 3-5, 1996: *W. Olszewski*

4th International Workshop on Dendritic Cells: Dendritic cells in fundamental and clinical immunology, Venice, Italy, October 5-10, 1996: *H. Gałkowska*

2nd Australian Peptide Conference; From Discovery to Therapeutics, Fraser Island, Australia, October 6-11, 1996: *A. Misicka-Kęsik*

Alzheimer's Disease – 12th International Conference, Jerusalem, Israel, October 8-11, 1996: *R. Pluta*

8th European Congress of Clinical Neurophysiology, Munich, Germany, October 9-11, 1996: *E. Zalewska*

Polish-Czech-Slovak Symposium of Neurosurgery, Polanica Zdrój, Poland, October 10-12, 1996: W. Sapieja

Symposium of Royal Society of Medicine "Postprandial lipid metabolism", London, United Kingdom, October 12-17, 1996: *E. Żernicka*

Conference of the All-German Neuropharmacological and Neurotoxicological Society, Magdeburg, Germany, September 13-14, 1996: *J. Albrecht*

Symposium of American Society of Neurology, Miami, USA, October 13-16. 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz*

III Hungarian Congress on Alzheimer's Disease, Budapest, Hungary, October 17-19, 1996: *M. Barcikowska-Litwin*

An International Symposium: "Apoptosis and its Role in Immunity", Warsaw, Poland, October 20, 1996: D. Maslinska, M. Muzylak

10th International Brain Edema Symposium, San Diego, USA, October 20-23, 1996: Z. Czernicki, R. Pluta

8th European Congress on Clinical Neurophysiology, Münich, Germany, November 9-10, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, E. Zalewska*

II Congress of European Federation of Neurology Societies, Roma, Italy, October 31 - November 3, 1996: *I. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz, P. Grieb*

69th Annual Meeting of The American Thyroid Association, San Diego, USA, November 14-17, 1996: *J. Nauman, T. Bednarczuk*

15th Annual Sciences Meeting of the American Pain Society, Washington, USA, November 14-17, 1996: *I. Maszczyńska*

26th Meeting of Society for Neuroscience, Washington, USA, November 16-21, 1996: *M. Łalowski*

Symposium of Polenov Institute of Neurosurgery, St. Petersburg, Russia, November 27-30, 1996: Z. Czernicki, J. Jurkiewicz

VIIth Conference of Polish Histamine Research Society: "Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds", Ustron, Poland, November 28-30, 1996: *M. Mašlińska*

International Symposium "Reanimatology on the Eve of the 21st century", Moscow, Russia, December 2-4, 1996: *R. Pluta*

36th American Society for Cell Biology, Annual Meeting, San Francisco, USA, December 7-11, 1996: *W. Gordon-Krajcer*

SCIENTIFIC DEGREES

DOCTOR'S DEGREE

Lidia Struzyńska (Department of Neurochemistry MRC PASci) Metabolic and functional changes in synaptosomes and capillaries from rat brain evoked by toxic lead effects

Jacek Ignacy Kiljański (Department of Endocrinology MRC PASci) Orbital antigens involved in the pathogenesis of the thyroid-associated ophthalmopathy

Joanna Sypecka (Department of Neurochemistry MRC PASci) Pleiotropic effect of PLP gene mutation in pt rabbit

Adam Goląbek (Department of Neuropathology MRC PASci) Characterization of apolipoproteins binding to the amyloid β -peptide and their role in the fibrillogenesis in vitro

Jadwiga Janas (Institute of Cardiology, Warsaw) Identification and characterization of specific, tissue peptidase that inactivates endothelin-1

HABILITATIONS

Maria Barcikowska-Litwin (Department of Neuropathology MRC PASci) Amyloid deposits within neuropil and neurones with neurofibrillary tangles in Alzheimer's disease and ageing

Ewa Matyja (Department of Neuropathology MRC PASci) Endogenous amino acids neurotoxicity and its modulation in tissue culture system

Ryszard Marek Pluta (National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, MD 20892, USA) *Cerebral vasospasm after subarachnoid hemorrhage: pathophysiology and new method of prevention and treatment*

SCIENTIFIC MEETINGS ORGANIZED BY THE MEDICAL RESEARCH CENTRE

International Symposium "Exercise in prevention, diagnosis, and therapy of metabolic disorders" (devoted to the memory of the late Prof. dr med. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996.

Symposium was organized by the Department of Applied Physiology, Medical Research Centre, Polish Academy of Sciences and Polish Scientific Society of Obesity and Metabolism in cooperation with the Institute of Sport and Servier-Polska (Honorary President – Prof. Mirosław J. Mossakowski, MD, PhD, DSci, Dhc).

One hundred ninety one scientists participated in the Symposium (171 from Poland and 21 from abroad).

The main topic of the meeting was the clinical application of exercise as single or supplementary means of prevention and therapy of metabolic ailments. The lectures of the first two days included also basic research on exercise metabolism. The third day was devoted mainly to the exchange of experience on exercise testing and prescription in patients with obesity, diabetes and other metabolic or endocrine disorders. The Symposium provided an opportunity for bridging the physiological, biochemical, pharmacological and clinical interests.

The Program of the first two days included 15 lectures delivered by leading specialists in the field of physiology and biochemistry of exercise from USA, Sweden, Denmark, Canada, Czech republic and Great Britain. Besides 11 oral communications and 46 posters were presented. On the third day so called "Polish Day" 7 lectures were delivered (in Polish) and then a round table discussion was organized. During the discussion experts from leading Polish clinical centers reached on the importance of obesity treatment for prevention and therapy of coronary heart disease and hypertension.

Conference "Skin infections – resistance, long lasting treatment with antibiotics", Warsaw, Poland, November 16, 1996.

Symposium was organized by Surgical Research and Transplantation Department of Medical Research Centre. Number of participants – 103.

Conference was devoted to the inflammatory processes of human skin – phenotypic characterization of infiltrating lymphocytes and macrophages, cytokin production, adhesion molecule expression, reactivity of infiltrating cells to mitogens. The main interest was focused on the regulatory role of tissue fluid cytokines on tumor cell proliferation. Six invited lectures and oral communications were presented.

Conference "Advances in hydrocephalus treatment", Pultusk, Poland, December 6-7, 1996.

The conference was organized in participation of Neurological Sciences Committee of Polish Academy of Sciences. There were 83 participants including 8 foreign guests. Twenty three lectures including 7 invited ones were given during 3 scientific sessions and round table discussion. Among them 8 were presented by the workers of the Neurosurgery Department.

It is a great achievement of the Conference to agree upon the necessity of wider application of endoscopic method in the treatment of certain types of hydrocephalus in the clinical practice. Its importance in hydrocephalus treatment in children was emphasized. Prof. Marchel, Roszkowski, Kojder and Majchrzak presented a common view that endoscopic method in the treatment of obstructive hydrocephalus should be the first procedure offered to the patients. Implantation of shunt systems should be undertaken only in cases when endoplasmic ventriculostomy was failed or there are contraindications for ventriculostomy. The other important topic of the Conference was a new, non-invasive method in the diagnosis of normal pressure hydrocephalus by using the so-called hydrocephalus index developed in the Department of Neurosurgery. The accuracy of differential diagnosis between normal pressure hydrocephalus and cerebral atrophia by application of hydrocephalus index can be compared to results of the infusion test.

The device for the computerized tomography images transfer on long distance was presented during the Conference for the first time in Poland. Such a teleradiological system facilitating the cooperation between centres isolated from one another was installed in the Province Hospital in Ciechanów and the Neurosurgery Department of Medical Research Centre of Polish Academy of Sciences.

IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996

This domestic scientific conference was organized by Department of Neurochemistry together with Polish Neuroscience Society and Neurochemical Commision of the Committee of Neurological Sciences, Polish Academy of Sciences. Totally 113 participants took part in the conference. The program comprised 1 opening lecture, 38 oral presentations during sessions untitled: "Neuropharmacology and neuroprotection", "Regulation of gene expression and CNS pathology", "Biochemical basis of CNS dysfunction: effects of neurotoxic compounds" and "Receptors and intracellular signal transduction". Moreover 12 posters were presented in the session "Varia". The Abstracts book of the conference has been published. Conference "Hepatocytes and liver transplantation in liver failure" and Conference "Mobilization of cholesterol from tissues". Both conferences were integrated under the common title: "Hepatocyte and liver transplantation in liver failure", Warsaw, Poland, December 21-22, 1996.

Presented themes were concerned with hepatocyte isolation, their transplantation to different tissues (spleen, under skin, intraperitoneally, intravenously, liver), mechanism of their destruction by macrophages and granulocytes of recipient, the tolerance after liver transplantation, and also the success rate for hepatocyte and liver transplantation in cholesterol metabolism failure due to the lack of LDL receptors.

Eight invited lectures and 16 oral communications were presented. Prof. N. Miller

- Great Britain, Dr. M. Winnock - France, Dr. S. Winnock - France, Dr. F. Bocardo

- Italy were among invited speakers.

Polish-Italian Symposium "The role of lymphatic system in immunity", Warsaw, Poland, December 23, 1996.

Symposium was organized by Surgical Research and Transplantation Department of Medical Research Centre. Number of participants – 40. Invited speakers – Prof. Corradino Campisi and Dr. Francesco Bocardo from Italy.

The Symposium was devoted to the results of investigations on local immunity disorders in tissue deprived of lymphatic tissue. The kinetic of Staphylococcus epidermidis, Acinetobacter, E. coli, Corynebacteriae infections in lymphedematous tissue was discussed. Surgical models for lymphedema development in animals were presented.

PUBLICATIONS

- 1. Albrecht J: Astrocytes and ammonia neurotoxicity. In: *The role of glia in neurotoxicity*. M Aschner, HK Kimelberg (eds), CRC Press, Boca Raton, 1996, pp. 137-153.
- 2. Albrecht J, Hilgier W, Faff L: Rat cerebral mitochondrial glutaminase activity is unaffected by moderate hyperammonemia in two models. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 545-548.
- 3. Albrecht J, Hilgier W, Januszewski S, Quack G: Contrasting effects of thioacetamide-induced liver damage on the brain uptake indices of ornithine, arginine and lysine: modulation by treatment with ornithine aspartate. *Metabol Brain Dis* 1996, 11, 3, 229-237.
- 4. Albrecht J, Matyja E: Glutamate: a potential mediator of inorganic mercury neurotoxicity. *Metabol Brain Dis* 1996, 11, 2, 175-184.
- 5. Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z: Podskroniowy dostęp operacyjny do tętniaków górnego odcinka tętnicy podstawnej mózgu. Modyfikacja ze zdjęciem łuku jarzmowego. Uwarunkowania anatomiczne. Korzyści wynikające z dostępu [Subtemporal approach to aneurysms of the upper part of the basilar artery. Modification of the surgical approach with zygomatic arch removal. Anatomical considerations and potential advantages of the approach]. Przegląd Lekarski 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 111-113 (in Polish).
- 6. Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z, Bojanowski K: Zastosowanie obciążeń fizjologicznych i testu infuzyjnego w ocenie szczelności przestrzeni płynowych u chorych hospitalizowanych z powodu pourazowego płynotoku nosowego. Opis metody [The physiological loadings and infusion test as a new diagnostic method in follow-up of patients with nasal liquorrhea, treated conservatively]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, Suppl. 4, 565-569 (in Polish).
- Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z, Walecki J, Dowżenko A, Sapieja W: Przepływ w naczyniach mózgowych po zabiegach wewnątrznaczyniowych (balonizacja i coiling) oraz po badaniu angiograficznym oceniany w badaniu dopplerowskim (TCD) [Flow in cerebral arteries after endovascular procedures (balooning and coiling) and after angiography assessed by means of TCD]. *Przegląd Lekarski* 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 120-122 (in Polish).
- 8. Barcikowska M, Pfeffer A: Przypadek choroby rozsianych ciałek Lewy'ego – opis kliniczny i badanie neuropatologiczne [A case of diffuse Lewy bodies disease]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, 4, 667-673 (in Polish).

- 9. Bertrand E, Fidziańska A, Schmidt-Sidor B, Mendel T: Mitochondrial encephalomyopathy of mixed melas type. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 4, 193-198.
- Bisko M, Zimowski JG, Fidziańska E, Badurska B, Fidziańska A, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Zaremba J: Wykrywanie nosicielstwa mutacji genu dystrofiny [Detection of deletions mutation dystrophin gene]. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, 30, 2, 193-199 (in Polish).
- Boccardo F, Campisi C, Olszewski W: Lymph pressure and flow measurements in Lymphedemas therapeutic implications. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl),35-37.
- Bogucki J, Gielecki J, Czernicki Z: Uwarunkowania anatomiczne dojścia operacyjnego przez dno IV komory. Doniesienie wstępne [Anatomical aspects of the surgical approach via the floor of the fourth ventricle. Preliminary report]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, Suppl 4, 460-466 (in Polish).
- Budohoski L, Górski J, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Terjung RL: Triacylglycerol synthesis in the different skeletal muscle fiber sections of the rat. *Am J Physiol* 1996, 271 (*Endocrinol Metab* 34), E574-E581.
- 14. Carr DB, Lipkowski AW: Today's versus tomorrow's opioids for cancer pain: Who will close the gap? *Analgesia* 1996, 2, 227-236.
- Chalimoniuk M, Głód B, Strosznajder J: NMDA receptor mediated nitric oxide dependent cGMP synthesis in brain cortex and hippocampus. Effect of ischemia on NO related biochemical processes during reperfusion. *Neurol Neurochir Pol*, 1996, 30, 65-84.
- Chamiec T, Herbaczyńska-Cedro K, Ceremużyński L, Kłosiewicz-Wąsek B, Wąsek W: Effects of antioxidant vitamins C and E on signal-averaged electrocardiogram in acute myocardial infarction. *Am J Cardiol* 1996, 77, 237-241.
- Cegielska J, Barcikowska M, Jędrzejowska, Kozłowski P: Rola zaburzeń gospodarki sodowej w powstawaniu mielinolizy środkowej mostu (z opisem przypadku) [The role of sodium serum level disturbances in the development of central pontine myelinolysis]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol*, 1996, 30, 1021-1031 (in Polish).
- Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Krysztofiak H, Ziemba A, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko
 H: Threshold increases in plasma growth hormone in relation to plasma

catecholamine and blood lactate concentrations during progressive exercise in endurance-trained athletes. *Eur J Appl Physiol* 1996, 73, 117-120.

- 19. Cybulski G: Influence of age on the immediate cardiovascular response to orthostatic manoeuvre. *Eur J Appl Physiol* 1996, 73, 563-572.
- Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: Central hemodynamics and ECG ambulatory monitoring device with signals recording on PCMCIA flash memory cards. *Med Biol Eng Comp* 1996, 34 (Suppl 1), Part 1, 79-80.
- 21. Czernicki Z: Współczesne poglądy na etiologię i leczenie neuralgii nerwu trójdzielnego [Contemporary views on etiology and treatment of trigeminal nerve neuralgia]. *Czasopismo Stomatologiczne* 1996, XLIX, 1, 5-12 (in Polish).
- 22. Czernicki Z: Komentarz do artykułu "Ból głowy" [Comentary to the article "Headache"]. *Medycyna po Dyplomie* 1996, 4, 6, 66-67 (in Polish).
- 23. Czernicki Z, Jurkiewicz J, Bojanowski K, Piechnik S, Cervos-Navarro J: Effects of the calcium channel blockers Dotarizine and Flunarizine on cerebrovascular reactivity. *J Neurol Sci* 1996, 143, 60-63.
- 24. Czernicki Z, Suzuki R, Nakagawa K, Hirakawa K, Endo S: Acetazolamide produced blood flow velocity changes measured by laser Doppler in Gerbils with reduced CBF. *Acta Neurochir (Wien)* 1996, 138, 81-83.
- 25. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Strużyńska L, Rafałowska U: Effect of acute and chronic lead exposure on the level of sulfhydryl groups in rat brain. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 233-236.
- 26. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Strużyńska L, Rafałowska U: Does lead provoke the peroxidation process in rat brain synaptosomes? *Mol Chem Neuropathol* 1996, 29, 127-139.
- 27. Dąmbska M: Neurologiczne i psychologiczne aspekty zakażenia wirusem HIV u dzieci [Neurological and physiological aspects of HIV infection in children]. *Neurologia Dziecięca* 1996, 5, 10, 51-55 (in Polish).
- 28. Dąmbska M, Laure-Kamionowska M, Maślińska D: Astroglial reaction in periventricular white matter of maturing human brains. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 4, 169-172.
- 29. Dąmbska M, Kuchna I: Different developmental rates of selected brain structures in humans. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 83-93.

- Dąmbska M, Kuchna I, Bobkiewicz P, Wiśniewski K: Migration disorders leading to a wide spectrum of brain malformations in a case with multiorganic dysgeneses: a new syndrome? *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 1, 11-15.
- 31. Dolińska M, Hilgier W, Albrecht J: Ammonia stimulates glutamine uptake to the cerebral non-synaptic mitochondria of the rat. *Neurosci Lett* 1996, 213, 45-48.
- 32. Domańska-Janik K: Protein serine/threonine kinases (PKA, PKC and CaMKII) involved in ischemic brain pathology. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 579-585.
- Durowicz S, Sadowska-Ryffa, Cybulska E, Wojewódzka U, Olszewski WL: Liver sinusoidal lymphocytes: their immune functions. Transpl Int 1996, 9 (Suppl 1), S348-S351.
- Faff L, Reichenbach A, Albrecht J: Ammonia-induced taurine release from cultured rabbit Müller cells is an osmoresistant process mediated by intracellular accumulation of cyclic AMP. J Neurosci Res 1996, 46, 231-238.
- 35. Fidziańska A: Spinal muscular atrophy in childhood. *Seminars in Pediatric Neurology* 1996, 3, 2, 53-58.
- 36. Fidziańska A: Apoptosis in human embryonic and diseased skeletal muscle. *Basic Appl Myol* 1996, 6 (4), 261-264.
- 37. Francescangeli E, Domańska-Janik K, Goracci G: Relative contribution of the novo and remodelling pathways to the synthesis of platelet-activating factor in brain areas and during ischemia. *J Lipid Mediators Cell Signalling* 1996, 14, 89-98.
- 38. Gajkowska B, Viron A: Localization of endothelin-like immunoreactivity in the hypothalamo-neurohypophysial system of the rat after ischemia. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 4, 173-177.
- Gałązka-Friedman J, Bauminger ER, Friedman A, Barcikowska M, Hechel D, Nowik I: Iron in Parkinsonian and control substantia nigra – a Mössbauer spectroscopy study. *Movement Disorders* 1996, 11, 1, 8-16.
- Gałkowska H, Olszewski WL, Wojewódzka U: Skin lymph dendritic cells as antigen presenting cells for lymph lymphocytes. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 139-143.
- 41. Gałkowska H, Olszewski WL, Wojewódzka U: Reactivity of antibodies directed against human antigens with surface markers on canine leukocytes. *Vet Immunol Immunopathol* 1996, 53, 329-334.

- 42. Głód B: A new concept of retention mechanism in ion-exclusion chromatography. *Acta Chromatographica* 1996, 6, 101-112.
- 43. Głód B, Poboży E, Marczak S, Trojanowicz M: Capillary electrophoresis as a tool for speciation analysis of heavy metals. *Acta Chromatographica* 1996, 6, 39-53.
- 44. Gniadecki R, Wyrwas B, Kabala A, Malecka J: Impairment of granulation tissue formation after menopause. *J Endocrinol Invest*, 1996, 19, 215-218.
- 45. Gołąbek AA, Soto C, Vogel T, Wiśniewski T: The interaction between apolipoprotein E and Alzheimer's amyloid β -peptide is dependent on b-peptide conformation. *J Biol Chem* 1996, 271, 18, 10602-10606.
- 46. Grucza R, Miyamoto Y, Nakazono Y: Dynamics of cardiorespiratory responses to exercise in heat. In: *Environmental Ergonomics. Recent Progress and New Frontiers.* Eds: Y. Shapiro, D.S. Moran, Y. Epstein. Freund Publishing House, Ltd., London and Tel Aviv, 1996, pp. 89-92.
- 47. Grzelak I, Olszewski WL, Engeset A, Oftebro R: Human skin lymph influences proliferation of tumor cells of various origin. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 379-384.
- Grzelak I, Olszewski WL, Engeset A, Oftebro R: The effect of human skin lymph on tumor cell proliferation. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 325-331.
- 49. Grzelak I, Olszewski WL, Zaleska M, Durlik M, Łagiewska B, Muszyński M, Rowiński W: Blood cytokine levels rise even after minor surgical trauma. *J Clin Immunol* 1996, 16, 3, 159-164.
- 50. Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Olszewski WL: Syngeneic and allogeneic blood transfusions produce hematopoietic and immune effects. *Annals of Transplantation* 1996, 1, 2, 5-10.
- 51. Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Olszewski WL: Syngeneic plasma transfusions: the effect on hemopoiesis and immune responsiveness. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 307-313.
- Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Olszewski WL, Oftebro R: Blood transfusion increase the OX7+ stem cell population in rat bone marrow followed by its release to blood circulation. In: *The Immune Consequences of Trauma, Shock and Sepsis* - *Mechanisms and Therapeutic Approaches*. Vol. 2. Eds: E. Faist, A.E. Baue, F.W. Schildberg. Pabst Science Publishers, Lengerich, Berlin, Düsseldorf, Riga, Scottsdale AZ (USA), Wien, Zagreb, 1996, pp. 1-6.

- 53. Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Ziółkowska A, Durlik M, Łagiewska B, Muszyński M, Rowiński W, Olszewski WL: Increased frequency of hematopoietic progenitor cells in blood circulation following operative trauma. In: *The Immune Consequences of Trauma, Shock and Sepsis Mechanisms and Therapeutic Approaches.* Vol. 1. Eds: E. Faist, A.E. Baue, F.W. Schildberg. Pabst Science Publishers, Lengerich, Berlin, Düsseldorf, Riga, Scottsdale AZ (USA), Wien, Zagreb, 1996, pp. 240-243.
- 54. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Amyotrophie spinale progressive. In *Neurologie*. Eds: G. Serratrice, A. Autret. Elipses, Paris, 1996, s. 519-522.
- 55. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz 1: Reintegracja jednostki ruchowej po uszkodzeniu obwodowego układu nerwowego (obraz elektromiograficzny) [Motor unit reintegration in lower motor neuron lesion (electromyographic picture)]. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, 30, Suppl 1, 251-263 (in Polish).
- 56. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Zjawiska kompensacji w obwodowym ruchowym układzie nerwowym [Compensation phenomenon in lower motor neuron]. In: *Pamiętnik Sesji Rehabilitacyjnej PAN*. Ed.: K. Malinowska. PWN, Warsaw, 1996, 10-14 (in Polish).
- 57. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Fidziańska A, Niebrój-Dobosz I, Zimowski J, Fidziańska W, Bisko M, Kozłowska M, Zaremba J: Interrelationship between clinical features, genetic mutation and dystrophin expression in patients with Backer muscular dystrophy. *Acta Cardiomiol* 1995, 7, 2, 95-106.
- 58. Hilgier W, Olson JE, Albrecht J: Relation of taurine transport and brain edema in rats with simple hyperammonemia or liver failure. *J Neurosci Res* 1996, 45, 69-74.
- 59. Horsztyński D, Dziduszko J, Kołodziejak A, Walerjan P: Charakterystyka somatosensorycznych potencjałów wywołanych (SEP) badanych metodą mapingu w ogniskowych uszkodzeniach mózgu [The characteristics of somatosensory evoked potentials assessed by mapping in focal cerebral lesions]. Przegląd Lekarski 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 303-309 (in Polish).
- Iwanowski L, Kuchna I, Bober-Olesińska K, Róg-Marczuk J: Przypadek zespołu hemolityczno-mocznicowego ze zmianami w układzie nerwowym [A case of fatal hemolytic-uremic syndrome with central nervous system manifestations]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, 3, 495-502 (in Polish).
- 61. Janczewski WA: Bezdech senny a ciśnienie tętnicze [Sleep apnea and arterial blood pressure]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 91-102 (in Polish).

- 62. Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Olszewski WL, Maksymowicz M, Ziółkowska A: Mechsnims of split tolerance after donor-specific transfusion. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 299-306.
- 63. Jernajczyk W, Wichniak A, Czerwosz L: M-LEM and over REM sleep parameters in female and male alcoholics. *J Sleep Res* 1996, 5, Suppl 1.
- 64. Jurkiewicz J: Letter to the Editor: Negative-pressure hydrocephalus. *J Neurosurg* 1996, 85, 364-365.
- 65. Kamińska A: Zdolność regeneracji mięśnia szkieletowego w zależności od wieku [The ability of skeletal muscle to regenerate is related to the age]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, Suppl. 1, 243-249 (in Polish).
- Kamińska AM, Fidziańska A: Experimental induction of apoptosis and necrosis in neonatal rat skeletal muscle. *Basic Appl Myol* 1996, 6 (4), 251-256.
- 67. Kamińska AM, Szyluk B: Desmin and vimentin in tenotomized rat soleus muscle. *Basic Appl Myol* 1996, 6 (3), 189-194.
- 68. Kapuściński A, Nikolaishvili L: Blood-brain barrier methionine transport after resuscitation from 10-min cardiac arrest in rats. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 2, 72-75.
- Kida E, Wiśniewski KE: Apolipoprotein E and dystrophic neurite pathology. In: *Alzheimer's Disease: Biology, Diagnosis and Therapeutics*. Edited by K. Iqbal, B. Winblad, T. Nishimura, M. Takeda and H.M. Wiśniewski. John Wiley & Sons Ltd., 1996, pp. 247-252.
- 70. Kiljański J, Stolarski C, Barsouk A, Nebes V, Wall JR: Failure to demonstrate cell-mediated immunity to orbital tissue antigens and epitopic fragments of a 64 kDa protein in the majority of patients with thyroid-associated ophtalmopathy. *J Endocrinol Invest* 1996, 19, 5, 284-292.
- Koźniewska E, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Transient impairment of the reactivity of cerebral circulation to acetylcholine but not to NOS inhibition following cardiac arrest-induced global cerebral ischemia in rats. *Cerebrovasc Dis*, 1996, Suppl 2, 175-176.
- 72. Kroh H, Matyja E, Bidziński J: Cerebral gangliogliomas. Morphological and immunohistochemical study. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 2, 107-113.
- 73. Kroh H, Sobieraj A: Choroid plexus carcinoma. Case report. Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, 125-30.

- 74. Krotkiewski M, Brzezińska Z: Lipid peroxides production after strenuous exercise and in relation to muscle morphology and capillarization. *Muscle & Nerve* 1996, 19, 1530-1537.
- Krysztofiak H, Mamcarz A: Fizjologiczne podstawy obciążania wysiłkiem – wysiłek na receptę [Physiological basis of exercise prescription]. *Kardiol Pol* 1996, 44, 147-155 (in Polish).
- Kubicka U, Olszewski WL, Tarnowski W, Bielecki K, Ziółkowska A, Wierzbicki Z: Normal human immune peritoneal cells: subpopulations and functional characteristics. *Scand J Immunol* 1996, 44, 157-163.
- 77. Kukwa A, Dudziec K, Tulibacki M, Wójtowicz P: Zaburzenia saturacji (SaO2) w dzieci jako wskazanie do adenotomii i tonsillektomii [Disturbance of oxygen saturation in children as an indication for adenotomy and tonsilectomy]. In: Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995. Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 64-67 (in Polish).
- 78. Kukwa A, Jernajczyk U, Pokorski M: Patofizjologia, diagnostyka i leczenie Zespołu Snu z Bezdechami (ZSzB): Rola komponentu nerwowomięśniowego w patofizjologii zespołu snu z bezdechami [Pathophysiology, diagnosis and treatment of the sleep apnoea syndrome: Role of the neuromuscular component in the pathophysiology of the sleep apnoea syndrome]. In: Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995. Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 51-54 (in Polish).
- 79. Kukwa A, Pietniczka-Załęska M: Wskazania do redukcji masy języka u pacjentów z obwodową postacią zespołu snu z bezdechami [Indications for reduction of torque mass in patients with the peripheral form of the sleep apnoea syndrome]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 70-72 (in Polish).
- 80. Kukwa A, Pietniczka-Załęska M, Tulibacki M: Wskazania do korekcji drożności nosa i plastyki podniebienia u pacjentów z obwodową postacią zespołu snu z bezdechami [Indications for surgical correction of nosal patency and for palate plastic in patients with the peripheral form of the sleep apnoea syndrome]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 67-70 (in Polish).

- 81. Kukwa A, Pietniczka M, Tulibacki M, Adach W: Patofizjologia, diagnostyka i leczenie zespołu snu z bezdechami (ZSzB): Wykorzystanie techniki CT i MRI do oceny geometrii szkieletu twarzoczaszki [Pathophysiology, diagnosis, and treatment of the sleep apnoea syndrome: use of the CT and MRI techniques for evaluation of the geometry of the faciocranial skeleton]. In: Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995. Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 54-58 (in Polish).
- Kukwa A, Pietniczka M, Tulibacki M, Krajewski R: Leczenie chirurgiczne zespołu snu z bezdechami [Surgical treatment of the sleep apnoes syndrome]. In: Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995. Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 72-76 (in Polish).
- 83. Kukwa A, Pietniczka M, Tulibacki M, Krajewski R: Wyniki leczenia chirurgicznego u chorych z zespołem snu z bezdechami [Effects of surgical treatment of the sleep apnoea patients]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 76-81 (in Polish).
- Langfort J, Pilis W, Zarzeczny R, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Effect of low-carbohydrate – ketogenic diet on metabolic and hormonal responses to graded exercise in men. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, 2, 361-371.
- 85. Langfort J, Czarnowski D, Pilis W, Wójcik B, Górski J: Effect of various types of exercise training on 5'-nucleotidase and adenosine deaminase activities in rat heart: Influence of a single bout of endurance exercise. *Bioch Molec Med* 1996, 59, 28-32.
- 86. Langfort J, Zarzeczny R, Pilis W, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Porta S: Effect of sustained hyperadrenalinemia on exercise performance and lactate threshold in rats. *Comp Biochem Physiol* 1996, 114A, 1, 51-55.
- Langfort J, Żernicka E, Mayet-Sornay MH, Dubaniewicz A, Desplanches D: Effects of acute and chronic hindlimb suspension on sensitivity and responsiveness to insulin in the rat soleus muscle. *Biochem Cell Biol* 1996, 75, 7-10.
- 88. Lipkowski AW, Maszczyńska I: Peptide, N-methyl-D-aspartate and adenosine receptors as analgesic targets. *Current Opinion in Anaesthesiology* 1996, 9, 443-448.

- 89. Łazarewicz JW: Calcium transients in brain ischemia: role in neuronal injury. Acta Neurobiol Exp 1996, 56, 299-311.
- 90. Lazarewicz JW, Rybkowski W: Differential expression of NMDA-evoked 45Ca release in rat hippocampal regions in vivo. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 555-559.
- 91. Łuczywek E, Herman A, Fersten E, Szatkowska I, Grabowska A, Mempel E: Wpływ stereotaktycznych uszkodzeń przyśrodkowych struktur skroniowych mózgu na zapamiętywanie materiału prezentowanego w sposób sposób sukcesywny i symultatywny [Effect of stereotaxic injuries to the medial temporal brain structures on memorization of material presented successively or simultaneously]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, 1, 101-112 (in Polish).
- Łukomska B, Durlik M, Cybulska E, Olszewski WL: Comparative analysis of immunological reconstitution induced by vascularized bone marrow versus bone marrow cell transplantation. *Transplant Int* 1996, 9 (Suppl 1), S492-S496.
- 93. Łukomska B, Durlik M, Cybulska E, Olszewski WL: Reconstitution of lymphoid tissue after vascularized bone marrow transplantation. *Annals of Transplantation* 1996, 1, 1, 67-69.
- 94. Łukomska B, Durlik M, Cybulska E, Olszewski WL: Rapid replenishment of lymphoid organs after vascularized bone marrow transplantation in lethally irradiated rats. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 150-156.
- 95. Makulec-Niewiarowska I, Lipkowski AW, Marczak ED, Baranowska B: Przeciwbakteryjne efekty współdziałania antybiotyków β-laktamowych i tioglikozydów ekstrahowanych ze śruty rzepaku. *Rośliny Oleiste*, 1996, 17, 207-210.
- 96. Makulska-Nowak H, Maszczyńska I, Gumulka SW, Meszaros J: Effect of naloxone on arterial blood pressure, pain threshold, and body temperature in hypertensive rats during experimental inflammation. *Analgesia*, 1996, 2, 205-210.
- 97. Maksymowicz M, Olszewski WL: Cyclosporine control of recipient lymphocyte traffic to the heart allograft. *Transplant Proc* 1996, 28, 6, 3441-3443.
- Maksymowicz M, Olszewski WL: Studies of the mechanism of pharmacological control of recipient lymphocyte traffic to the heart allograft. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 321-324.

- 99. Marszałek P, Horsztyński D, Czernicki Z, Walecki J: Ukrwotocznienie ognisk stłuczeń u chorych po urazach czaszkowo-mózgowych [Delayed hematoma as a consequence of brain contusion]. *Przegląd Lekarski* 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 174-175 In Polish).
- 100. Matyja E, Grieb P, Ryba M, Jagielski J, Mossakowski MJ: Mitochondrial damage following exposure of organotypic cultures of human malignant gliomas to 2-chloro- and 2-bromo-2'-deoxyadenosine. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 1, 31-39.
- 101. Matyja E, Grieb P, Ryba M, Jagielski J, Mossakowski MJ: 2-chloro- and 2bromo-2'-deoxyadenosine have no effect on the morphology of rat neural and glial cells in organotypic culture. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 1, 41-47.
- 102. Mempel E: Aktualne wskazania do zabiegów stereotaktycznych w chorobie Parkinsona i wyniki leczenia [Actual indications for stereotactic procedures in Parkinson disease and treatment results]. Przegląd Lekarski 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 259-262 (in Polish).
- 103. Misicka A, Maszczyńska I, Lipkowski AW, Stropova D, Yamamura HI, Hruby VJ: Synthesis and biological properties of gamma-glutamyldermorphin, a prodrug. *Life Sci* 1996, 58, 11, 905-911.
- 104. Misicka A, Maszczyńska I, Lipkowski AW, Stropova D, Yamamura HI, Hruby VJ: Gamma-glutamyl-neuropeptides could be propeptides in central nervous system but not in periphery. In: *Peptides: Chemistry, Structure and Biology*. Eds: Pravin T.P. Kaumaya and Robert S. Hodges. Mayflower Scientific Ltd. 1996, pp. 172-173.
- 105. Misterek KE, Dorociak AH, Gumulka WS, Maszczyńska I, Lipkowski AW, Budziński M, Bielejec M: L-arginine is hyperalgesic and NG-nitro-L-arginine is analgesic during acute nociception in rats. *Analgesia* 1996, 2, 133-136.
- 106. Mossakowski MJ: Polska Akademia Nauk działalność i zamierzenia na przyszłość [Polish Academy of Sciences – activity and plans for the future]. Nauka 1996, 4, 11-35.
- Mossakowski MJ: Polska na progu XXI wieku [Poland of the beginning of XXI century]. Edition of the Private High Commercial School, Warsaw, 1996, 1-12.
- Muzylak M, Maślińska D: DNA fragmentation and ultrastructural changes in the brain of rabbits treated with vincristine. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 3, 130-135.

- 109. Nauman JA: Radioactive fallout and thyroid neoplasia: The Chernobyl accident. *Thyroid International* 1996, 2, 2-12.
- 110. Nauman J, Glinoer D, Braverman LE, Hostalek U (eds): *The Thyroid and Iodine*. Schattauer, Stutgard, New York 1996.
- 111. Nawrocki G, Grieb P, Górski A, Danielewicz R, Rowiński W: Prolongation of cardiac allograft survival in rats following combination treatment with 2chloro-2'-deoxyadenosine and cyclosporine: a novel immunosupressive strategy. *Transplant Proc* 1996, 28, 6, 3538-3539.
- 112. Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Badania ogólno-lekarskie, kontrolne, diagnostyczne i prognostyczne w sporcie dzieci i młodzieży w dostosowaniu do wieku i dyscypliny sportu [General diagnostic and prognostic medical examination of children and adolescents involved in sports]. In: Proc. 2nd Interdisciplinary National Conference: "Health Promotion in Physical Education and Sport of Children and Youth". Warsaw, 1996, pp. 51-56.
- 113. Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Szczepanik J, Ziemba AW, Kruk B, Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Titow-Stupnicka E, Bicz B, Krotkiewicz M: Phosphate supplementation prevents a decrease of triiodothyronine and increases resting metabolic rate during low energy diet. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, 2, 373-383.
- Nowicka A, Grabowska A, Fersten E: Interhemispheric transmission of information and functional asymmetry of the human brain. *Neuropsychologia* 1996, 34, 2, 147-151.
- 115. Oja SS, Borkowska HD, Albrecht J, Saransaari P: Kainate and AMPA reeceptors in the rat brain in thiacetamide-induced hepatic encephalopathy. *Proc West Pharmacol Soc* 1996, 39, 15-17.
- Olszewski WL: Recurrent bacterial dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) is responsible for progression of lymphedema. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 331-334.
- 117. Olszewski WL: Episodic dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) in patients with lymphedema of the lower extramities before and after administration of benzathine penicillin: a preliminary study. *Lymphology* 1996, 29, 126-131.
- 118. Olszewski WL: Inflammatory changes of skin in lymphedema of extremities and efficacy of benzathine penicillin administration. *National Lymphedema Network* 1996, 8, 4, pp. 1-3 and 10.

- 119. Olszewski WL: Episodic dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) in patients with lymphedema of the lower extremities and benzathine penicillin administration. *Scope on Phlebology and Lymphology* 1996, 3, 20-24.
- 120. Olszewski WL, Jamal S, Manokaran G, Pani S, Kumaraswami V, Kubicka U, Łukomska B, Dworczyński A, Swoboda E, Mikołajczyk F: Bacteriological investigation of tissue fluid, lymph and lymph nodes in patients with filarial lymphedema. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 323-326.
- Olszewski WL, Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Łukomska B: Different mechanisms of rejection of organ and cell allografts. *Transplant Proc* 1996, 28, 6, 3444-3446.
- 122. Olszewski WL, Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Łukomska B: Transplanted allogeneic organs, tissue fragments and cells are rejected by different mechanisms. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 290-293.
- 123. Olszewski WL, Kubicka U: Immunohistochemical studies of skin secondary lymphedema of limbs reveal presence of chronic inflammatory reaction. *Lymphology* 1996, 29 (Suppl), 327-330.
- 124. Orlewska E, Olszewski WL: Natural elimination of intravenously transplanted nonlymphoid cells by unsensitized allogeneic recipients. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 21, 314-320.
- 125. Orlewska E, Olszewski WL: Unequal reaction to allogenic heart transplant and to lymphocytes of the same donor. *Central-Europ J Immunol* 1996, 21, 294-298.
- 126. Pfeffer-Baczuk A, Barcikowska M, Karwańska A: Zespół parkinsonowski w przebiegu choroby Alzheimera [Extrapyramidal signs in Alzheimer's disease brains]. *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30, 3, 389-398 (in Polish).
- 127. Pluta R, Barcikowska M, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW: Evidence of blood-brair barrier permeability/leakage for circulating human Alzheimer's β-amyloid-(1-42)-peptide. *NeuroReport* 1996, 7, 7, 1261-1265.
- 128. Pluta R, Misicka A, Barcikowska M, Januszewski S, Lipkowski AW: A promising rat model of Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology. *Folia Morphol (Warsaw)* 1996, 55, 417-419.
- 129. Pluta R, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW, Koźniewska E: Circulating human β-amyloid-(1-42)-peptide increases cerebral blood flow in anesthetized rats. *Alzheimer's Res* 1996, 2, 233-236.

- Pluta R, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Barcikowska M, Koźniewska W: Increase of cerebral blood flow in rats after human bamyloid peptide infusion. *Folia Morphol (Warsaw)* 1996, 55, 420-421.
- 131. Pokorski M: Kwas chenodezoksycholowy dla rozpuszczania kamieni żółciowych u młodych kobiet [Chenodeoxycholic acid for dissolving of gallatones in young women]. *Med Sci Monitor* 1996, 1, 584-587 (in Polish).
- 132. Pokorski M, Jernajczyk U: Patofizjologia obturacyjnego bezdechu sennego [Pathophysiology of abstructive sleep apnoea]. In: Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995. Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 39-44 (in Polish).
- 133. Pokorski M, Jernajczyk U: Rola tlenu w terapii obturacyjnego bezdechu sennego [Role of oxygen in the therapy of obstructive sleep apnoea]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 85-90 (in Polish).
- 134. Pokorski M, Walski M, Matysiak Z: A phospholipase C inhibitor impedes the hypoxic ventilatory response in the cat. In: *Frontiers in Arterial Chemoreception*. Eds: Zapata et al. Plenum Press, New York, 1996 (as a volume of *Advances in Experimental Medicine and Biology*), pp. 397-403.
- 135. Rafałowska J, Drac H, Jamrozik Z: Neuroacanthocytosis. Review of literature and case report. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 4, 178-183.
- 136. Rafałowska J, Dziewulska D: White matter injury in amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 2, 87-91.
- 137. Rafałowska U, Strużyńska L, Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Lenkiewicz A: Is lead toxicosis a reflection of altered energy metabolism in brain synaptosomes? Acta Neurobiol Exp 1996, 56, 611-617.
- 138. Ratajczak J, Meissner AJ, Soszyńska B, Papis A, Maryniak R, Pawlikowski J, Walski M: Sclerotherapy the effect of i.v. injection of 5% ethanolamine oleate (EO) on hemodynamics and lung gas exchange (experimental study). Acta Angiologica 1996, 2, 177-189.
- 139. Robak T, Błasińska-Morawiec M, Krykowski E, Kasznicki M, Płużańska A, Potemski P, Hellmann A, Zaucha JM, Lewandowski K, Dmoszyńska A, Hansz J, Komarnicki M, Konopka L, Durżyński T, Ceglarek B, Sikorska A, Kotlarek-Haus S, Mazur G, Urasiński I, Zdziarska B, Maj S, Kopeć I, Skotnicki AB, Dwilewicz-Trojaczek J, Kuratowska Z, Grieb P: Intermittent 2-hour intravenous infusions of 2-chlorodeoxyadenosine in the treatment of

110 patients with refractory or previously untreated B-cell chronic lymphocytic leukemia. *Leukemia and Lymphoma* 1996, 22, 509-514.

- 140. Robak T, Błasińska-Morawiec M, Krykowski E, Hansz J, Komarnicki M, Kazimierczak M, Konopka L, Maj S, Hellmann A, Zaucha JM, Urasiński L, Zdziarska B. Kotlarek-Haus S, Usnarska-Zubkiewicz L, Kuratowska Z, Dwilewicz-Trojaczek J, Hołowiecki J, Krawczyk-Kuliś M, Grieb P: 2-Chlorodeoxyadenosine (2CdA) in 2-hour versus 24-hour intravenous infusion in the treatment of patients with hairy cell leukemia. *Leukemia and Lymphoma* 1996, 22, 107-111.
- 141. Sadowski J, Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Walkowska A: Access to rat kidney with minimal anesthesia and surgery: a new experimental model. Am J Physiol 1996, 270 (Regulatory Integrative Comp Physiol 39), R298-R303.
- 142. Salińska E, Łazarewicz J: NMDA receptor-mediated calcium fluxes in the hippocampus: relevance to ischemia brain pathology. *Neurol Neurochir Pol*, 1996, 30, supl 2, 35-42.
- 143. Samochocki M, Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder J: Nitric oxide responsible for NMDA-evoked inhibition of arachidonic acid incorporation into lipids of brain membrane. *Molecul Chem Neuropathol* 1996, 29, 79-92.
- 144. Sarzyńska M, Kukwa A: Rynomanometria jako metoda diagnostyczna stosowana przed i po leczeniu chirurgicznym do oceny drożności górnych dróg oddechowych u pacjentów z obturacyjną postacią zespołu snu z bezdechami [Rhynomanometry as a diagnostic method used before and after surgical treatment for evaluation of the upper airway patency in patients with obstructive sleep apnoea]. In: *Proceedings of the 2nd National Meeting of the Polish Society for Sleep Research, Jurata, Poland, 29.09-1.10.1995.* Gdańsk, 1996, pp. 58-64 (in Polish).
- 145. Smol E, Langfort J, Górecka M, Czarnowski D, Żernicka E: Aktywność lipazy lipoproteinowej w mięśniu płaszczkowatym szczura po odnerwieniu [Lipase lipoprotein activity in soleus muscle of rat after denervation]. In: *Teoretyczne i praktyczne aspekty aktywności ruchowej człowieka*. Ed. J. Slężyński. PTNKFi AWF, Katowice, 1996, pp. 89-93 (in Polish).
- 146. Strosznjader J, Chalimoniuk M: Biphasic enhancement of nitric oxide synthase activity and cGMP level following brain ischemia in gerbils. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 71-81.
- Strosznajder J, Chalimoniuk M, Samochocki M: Activation of serotonergic 5-HT1A receptor reduces Ca²⁻- and glutamatergic receptor-evoked
arachidonic acid and NO/cGMP release in adult hippocampus. *Neurochem Int* 1996, 28, 439-444.

- Strosznajder J, Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder RP, Albanese V, Alberghina M: Arachidonate transport through the blood-retina and blood-brain barrier of the rat during aging. *Neurosci Lett* 1996, 209, 145-148.
- 149. Strosznajder J, Strosznajder RP: ATP a potent regulator of inositol phospholipids-phospholipase C and lipid mediators in brain cortex. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 527-534.
- Strosznajder RP: Acute hypoxia modulates arachidonic acid metabolism in cat carotid bodies. Role of dopamine. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 535-543.
- 151. Sypecka J: Pt point mutation in plp gene results in hyperexpression of MOG in hypomyelinated rabbit. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 9-14.
- Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Hypomyelinated pt mutant rabbit as a new model of Pelizeaus-Merzbacher disease. *Neurol Neurochir Pol*, 1996, 30, Suppl 2, 43-47.
- 153. Szereda-Przestaszewska M, Wypych B: Respiratory effects of serotonin challenge to pulmonary and laryngeal circulation in anaesthetized cats. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 889-896.
- 154. Szereda-Przestaszewska M, Wypych B: Laryngeal constriction produced by capsaicin in the cat. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, 2, 351-360.
- 155. Szumańska G: Lectin histochemistry in the rats brain in experimental postresuscitation syndrome. (Early and late changes). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 2, 77-86.
- 156. Taraszewska A, Barcikowska M, Zelman IB: Pattern of Tau-1 and ubiquitin immunoreactivity in the white matter of temporal lobe in senile and with Alzheimer's disease brains. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 1, 49-54.
- Tosic M, Gow A, Dolivo M, Domańska-Janik K, Lazzarini RA, Matthieu J-M: Proteolipid/DM-20 proteins bearing the paralytic tremor mutation in peripheral nerves and transfected Cos-7 cells. *Neurochem Res* 1996, 21, 423-430.
- 158. Wall J, Barsouk A, Stolarski C, Kiljański J, Stachura I, Nebes V, Peele K, Volpe R, Kennerdell J: Serum antibodies reactibe with eye muscle antigens and the TSH receptor in a euthyroid subject who developed ophthalmopathy and Graves' hyperthyroidism. *Thyroid* 1996, 6, 4, 363-368.

- 159. Wanyura H, Czernicki Z: Zasady zaopatrywania płynowych przetok nosowych w złamaniach czaszkowo-twarzowych z rozległymi uszkodzeniami kostno-oponowymi podstawy przedniego dołu czaszki [Treatment of CSF nasal fistulas in cranio-facial fractures involving severe damage of frontal fossa bone-dural structures]. *Czasopismo Stomatologiczne* 1996, XLIX, 5, 345-354 (in Polish).
- 160. Waśkiewicz J: Alterations of GABAB binding caused by acute and chronic lead administration. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 227-231.
- 161. Wiśniewski KE, Kida E, Brown WT: Consequences of genetic abnormalities in Down's syndrome on brain structure and function. Chapter 1. In: Down's syndrome. Psychological, psychobiological and socio-educational perspectives. Eds: J.A. Rondal, J. Perera, L. Nadel, A. Comblain. Whurr Publishers Ltd., London, 1996, pp. 3-19.
- 162. Wiśniewski T. Łałowski M, Bauman M, Rauvala H, Raulo E, Nolo R, Frangione B: HB-GAM is a cytokine present in Alzheimer's and Down's syndrome lesions. *NeuroReport* 1996, 7, 2, 667-671.
- 163. Wiśniewski T, Łałowski M, Bobik M, Russell M, Strosznajder J, Frangione B: Amyloid β 1-42 deposits do not lead to Alzheimer's neuritic plaques in aged dogs. *Biochem J* 1996, 313, 575-580.
- 164. Wiśniewski HM, Maślińska D: b-protein immunoreactivity in the human brain after cardiac arrest. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 2, 65-71.
- Zabłocka B, Domańska-Janik K: Enhancement of [3H]D-aspartate release during ischemia like conditions in rat hippocampal slices: source of excitatory amino acids. Acta Neurobiol Exp 1996, 56, 63-70.
- Zahorska R, Mazur N, Skierski JS, Grieb P:Antiviral activity of 2-chloro-2'-deoxyadenosine (2-CdA). Arch Immunol Therap Exp 1996, 44, 137-141.
- 167. Zalewska E, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: What is really important in MUAP
 is it its shape? *Neurol Neurochir Pol* 1996, 30 (Supl 3), 71-76.
- Zalewska E, Rowińska-Marcińska K, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Quantitative evaluation of double motor unit potentials' shape. *Med Biol Eng Comp* 1996, 34 (Suppl 1), Part 1, 271-272.
- 169. Zalewska T: Calpain as proposed target for neuroprotective treatment of brain ischemia. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, 3, 121-127.

- 170. Zalewska T, Białynicka-Birula K, Domańska-Janik K: Autophosphorylation as a possible mechanism of calcium/calmodulin-dependent protein kinase II inhibition during ischemia. *Neurochem Int* 1996, 28, 2, 175-181.
- 171. Zalewska T, Domańska-Janik K: Brain ischaemia transiently activates Ca^{2-/} calmodulin-independent protein kinase II. *NeuroReport* 1996, 7, 637-641.
- Zalewska T, Zabłocka B, Domańska-Janik K: Changes of Ca²⁻/calmodulindependent protein kinase-II after transient ischemia in gerbil hippocampus. *Acta Neurobiol Exp* 1996, 56, 41-48.
- 173. Zarzeczny R, Pilis W, Langfort J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K: Influence of thyroid hormones on exercise tolerance and lactate threshold in rats. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, 3, 503-513.
- 174. Zielonka P, Salińska E, Foltyński P, Łazarewicz JW: Application of a quartz fibre optic probe for the monitoring of changes in intracellular Ca²⁺ in the rat hippocampus slices. *Polish J Med Phys & Eng* 1996, vol. 2, 3, 49-58.

COMMUNICATIONS

- Alaraj M, Kosińska I, Łazarewicz JW: Kofeina a indukowany przez Ca²⁻ wyrzut wewnątrzkomórkowego Ca²⁻ w zakręcie zębatym szczura in vivo [Caffeine and calcium induced calcium release in rat dentate gyrus in vivo]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 43-44 (in Polish).
- Albrecht J: Ammonia-induced taurine release and glial functions in hyperammonemic conditions. *Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. J *Neurochem* 1996, 66 (Suppl 2), p. S102.
- 3. Albrecht J: Mechanisms of taurine release in glia cells. Conference of the All-German Neuropharmacological and Neurotoxicological Society, Magdeburg, Germany, September 13-14, 1996.
- 4. Albrecht J: Effect of OA on the blood-brain transport of amino acids. International Symposium "Ornithine aspartate (OA) and treatment of hepatic encephalopathy", Chollerford, England, May 2-4, 1996.
- 5. Albrecht J, Borkowska HD, Oja SS, Saransaari P: Wpływ encefalopatii wątrobowej w modelu tioacetamidowym na wiązanie ligandów receptorów jonotropowych kwasu glutaminowego w mózgu szczura [Effect of thioacetamide-induced hepatic encephalopathy on the binding of ionotropic glutamate receptor ligands in rat brain]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference* "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 36-37 (in Polish).
- 6. Albrecht J, Faff L, Reichenbach A: C-AMP-zależny wyrzut tauryny z komórek gleju Müllera królika indukowany przez różne czynniki patogenne i inhibitory metaboliczne [CAMP-dependent taurine release from Müller glia induced by different pathogenic factors and metabolic inhibitors]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-II (in Polish).
- 7. Albrecht J, Faff L, Reichenbach A: Taurine release from cultured rabbit Müller glia. First International Workshop "Müller Cells: Metabolism, Membrane Transport and Cellular Interactions", Leipzig, Germany, September 8-10, 1995. J Brain Res 1996, 37, p. 195.

- 8. Albrecht J, Gadamski R, Walski M, Reichenbach A: Hepatic encephalopathy model in rat: preliminary light and electron microscopic observations. *First International Workshop "Müller Cells: Metabolism, Membrane Transport and Cellular Interactions"*, Leipzig, Germany, September 8-10, 1995. *J Brain Res* 1996, 37, pp. 196-197.
- 9. Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z: Podskroniowy dostęp operacyjny do tętniaków górnego odcinka tętnicy podstawnej mózgu. Modyfikacja ze zdjęciem łuku jarzmowego [Subtemporal approach to aneurysms of the upper part of the basilar artery. Modification of the surgical approach with zygomatic arch removal. Anatomical considerations and potentials advantages of the approach]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.
- 10. Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z, Dowżenko A, Walecki J, Sapieja W, Mierzejewski M, Bogucki J: Objawy skurczu naczyń mózgowych oceniane metodą przezczaszkowego Dopplera po zabiegach wewnątrznaczyniowych oraz naczyniowych badaniach diagnostycznych [The TCD examination of the symptoms of the vasospasm after intravascular procedures and vascular diagnostic]. Scientific Conference organized by the Endovascular Section of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons "The endovascular treatment of the vascular malformations of the central nervous system", Łódź, Poland, November 8-9, 1996.
- Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z, Sapieja W, Dowżenko A, Bogucki J, Mierzejewski M: Dopplersonographische Beurteilung von Änderungen der Hirndurchblutung nach endovaskulären Eingriffen und Angiographien. Spontane Intracerebrale Blutungen: Veränderte Therapiekonzepte?, Giessen, Germany, September 25-26, 1996.
- 12. Andrychowski J, Nauman P, Czernicki Z, Walecki J, Dowżenko A, Sapieja W: Przepływ w naczyniach mózgowych po zabiegach wewnątrznaczynio-wych oraz po badaniach angiograficznych oceniany w badaniu dopple-rowskim TCD [Flow in cerebral arteries after endovascular procedures (balooning and coiling) and after angiography assessed by means of TCD]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.
- 13. Baranowska BI, Lipkowski AW, Marczak ED, Makulec IG: Utilization of protein waste. 4th International Symposium "Integrated Management and Processes for Waste from Industry and Human Settlements", Międzyzdroje, Poland, May 8-10, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 69-71.

- Barcikowska M: Choroba Alzheimera obraz kliniczny [Clinical picture of Alzheimer's disease]. Meeting of Rzeszów Department of the Polish Neurological Society, Iwonicz, Poland, June, 1 1996.
- 15. Barcikowska M: Early and late onset of Alzheimer's disease. 6th Alzheimer Europe Annual Meeting, Warsaw, Poland, April 18-20, 1996.
- Barcikowska M: Obraz kliniczny choroby Alzheimera [Alzheimer's disease - clinical picture]. Symposium of Olsztyn Department of Polish Medical Societies, Olsztyn, Poland, October 11, 1996.
- 17. Barcikowska M: Obraz kliniczny choroby Alzheimera [Clinical diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease]. Conference "Alzheimer's Disease Up Date", organized by Poznań Department of Polish Medical Societies, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- Barcikowska M: Obraz kliniczny i diagnostyka różnicowa choroby Alzheimera [Clinical picture and diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease]. Meeting of the Cracow Medical Society "Diagnosis and Treatment of Alzheimer's Disease", Cracow, Poland, December 11, 1996.
- Barcikowska M: Otępienie diagnostyczne wyzwanie dla neurologa [Dementia – diagnostic challenge for neurologist]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996.
- Barcikowska M: Trzy przypadki choroby Rozsianych Ciałek Lewy'ego opis kliniczny i badania neuropatologiczne [Three cases of diffuse Lewy body disease. Clinico-pathological study]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 5 (in Polish).
- 21. Barcikowska M, Kujawa M, Sotowski R: Zależność pomiędzy występowaniem amyloidowych blaszek starczych a uszkodzeniem istoty białej płata czołowego. Badania morfometryczne [White matter changes in Alzheimer's disease in the frontal lobe. Morphometric study]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 2-3 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 149 (in English).
- 22. Barcikowska M, Liberski PP, Marczewska J: Przypadek amyloidozy PrPdodatniej rozpoznanej jako zanik oliwkowo-mostowo-móżdżkowy [A case of sporadic CJD phenotypically identical with olivo-ponto-cerebellar atrophy]. *Meeting of Warsaw Department of the Polish Neurological Society*, Warsaw, Poland, March 21, 1996.

- 23. Barcikowska M, Marczewska M, Bratosiewicz J, Collinge J, Cervenkowa L, Brown P, Liberski PP: Przypadek PrP dodatniej amyloidozy bez mutacji genu PrP [A case of phenotypic expression of GSS without mutations in the PRNP gene]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 3-4 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 149-150 (in English).
- 24. Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Circulating human β-amyloid in rats after cardiac arrest induces expression it in viscera. The Fifth International Conference on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders, Osaka, Japan, July 24-29, 1996. Neurobiology of Aging 1996, 17 (Suppl), 4S, p. S24, no 96.
- Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Immunoreactivity for injected human β-amyloid in rat's ischemic viscera. *3rd Hungarian Congress of Alzheimer's Disease*, Budapest, Hungary, October 17-19, 1996. *Clin Neurosci* 1996, 49, Suppl 1, p.43, no 66.
- 26. Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Immunoreaktywność β-amyloidu w narządach wewnątrznych szczura po nagłym zatrzymaniu krążenia [Penetration of circulating human β-amyloid into rat's ischemic viscera]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 4-5 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 150 (in English).
- 27. Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Obecność beta-amyloidu w narządach wewnętrznych szczura po nagłym zatrzymaniu krążenia [Presence of β amyloid deposites in internal organs of rat after cardiac arrest]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 4 (in Polish).
- Barcikowska M, Pfeffer A, Łuczywek E, Gołębiowski M: Zaburzenia mowy w chorobie Alzheimera ["Atrophic disturbances in Alzheimer's disease]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 6 (in Polish).
- 29. Bartoszewicz ZP, Nauman J, Reddy BVB, Rebois RV: Wpływ modyfikacji kwasu sjalowego gonadotropiny kosmówkowej na przeniesienie sygnału [Modifying sialic acid on choriogonadotropin signal transduction]. XV Congress of the Polish Society of Endocrinology in cooperation with The European Federation of Endocrine Societies, Poznań, Poland, May 19-23, 1996. Pol J Endocrinol 1996, 47 (Suppl 1), p. 142 (in Polish).

- Bądzyńska B, Dobrowolski L, Sadowski J: Pressure natriuresis not mediated by wash-out of renal medullary electrolytes. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 131.
- 31. Bednarczuk T, Stolarski C, Ing E, Kennerdell J, Nebes V, Wall JR: Antibody and T lymphocyte reactivity against extracellular matrix proteins in patients with thyroid-associated ophtalmopathy. 69th Annual Meeting of the American Thyroid Association, San Diego, USA, November 13-17, 1996. Thyroid 1996, 6, Suppl 1, S-67.
- 32. Bielski R, Janiec K, Ochudło S, Grieb P, Waigt A: Wpływ leczenia immunosupresyjnego kladrybiną (2-CdA) na stężenie niektórych cytokin w surowicy krwi obwodowej pacjentów z powoli postępującą postacią stwardnienia rozsianego [The influence of immunosuppressive treatment with cladribine (2CdA) on plasma cytokine levels in patients with progressive multiple sclerosis]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996.
- 33. Bogucki J, Gielecki J, Czernicki Z: Anatomical aspects of surgical approach via the floor of the fourth ventricle. *Winter Meeting of the European Association of Neurosurgical Societies*, Messine-Taormina, Italy, February 22-25, 1996.
- Bogucki J, Gielecki J, Czernicki Z: Digital-image analysis of the rhomboid fossa surface. 17th Congress of the Polish Anatomical Society, Gdańsk, Poland, September 3-6, 1996.
- 35. Brudkowska J, Kozłowski P, Kraszpulski M, Dąmbska M: Zmiany populacji komórkowej w korze czołowej dziecięcych przypadków AIDS z mikroencefalopatią umiarkowanego stopnia – badania morfometryczne [Neuronal population changes in frontal cortex in microencephalic infants with AIDS]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 10-11 (in Polish).
- Brzezińska Z, Kruk B, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Greenleaf J: Effect of physical activity restriction on muscle metabolism during exercise in dogs. *XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p.79.
- 37. Budaj A, Kokot F, Herbaczyńska-Cedro K, Ceremużyński L: Early captopril treatment prevents the rise of angiotensin II and decreases adrenaline in acute myocardial infarction. 59 Congress of the Polish Cardiac Society, Warsaw, Poland, September 5-7, 1996. Abstracts, I-3, 002.

- 38. Budohoski L, Górecka M, Żernicka E, Synak M, Langfort J: Palmitate uptake by soleus muscle of the rat in vitro – The role of albumin unbound fatty acids. 24th Meeting of the Federation of European Biochemical Societies, Barcelona, Spain, July 7-12, 1996. Abstracts.
- Budohoski L, Górecka M, Żernicka E, Synak M, Langfort J: Palmitate uptake by soleus muscle of the rat *in vitro* – The role of albumin unbound fatty acids. *XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p.123.
- 40. Budzińska K: Aktywacja mięśni oddechowych stymulacją magnetyczną [Activation of respiratory muscles by magnetic stimulation]. Didactic Conference "Magnetic stimulation in the neurophysiological diagnostics of motor innervation", Warsaw, Poland, December 6, 1996. Abstracts of Lectures, Institute of Psychiatry and Neurology, 1996, pp. 28-35.
- 41. Budzińska K, Wojtal E: Enhancement of the respiratory short-term potentiation of superior laryngeal nerve origin by citicoline, a phospholipid precursor. ERS Annual Congress, Stockholm, Sweden, September 7-11, 1996. European Respiratory Journal 1996, 9, suppl 23, p. 131s.
- 42. Burkhard-Jagodzińska K, Nazar K, Ładyga M, Starczewska-Czapowska J, Borkowski L: Metabolic rate at rest and after glucose ingestion in circumpubertal girls involved in rowing training. *International Symposium "Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis, and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders"*, Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstracts Book*, p. 76.
- 43. Cąpała-Szczurko I, Krzeska D, Czarnocka B, Radomski R: Występowanie przeciwciał przeciwperoksydazowych i przeciwtyreoglobulinowych w pozatarczycowych chorobach autoimmunologicznych [Prevalence of antiperoxidase and antithyroglobulin autoantibodies in extrathyroidal autoimmune diseases]. XV Congress of the Polish Society of Endocrinology in cooperation with The European Federation of Endocrine Societies, Poznań, Poland, May 19-23, 1996. Pol J Endocrinol 1996, 47 (Suppl 1), p. 44 (in Polish).
- 44. Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder J: Zależne od receptora NMDA uwalnianie tlenku azotu i jego rola w patologii ischemicznej mózgu [NMDA receptor dependent nitric oxide release and its role in brain ischemic pathology]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP (in Polish).

- 45. Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder J: Mechanizm regulacji poziomu cGMP w mózgu starczym [Mechanism of regulation of cGMP concentration in aged brain]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 37-38 (in Polish).
- 46. Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder J: Udział NO w aktywacji procesów peroksydacji lipidów błon w okresie reperfuzji po krótkotrwałym niedokrwieniu mózgu [Role of nitric oxide in activation of membrane lipid peroxidation during reperfusion after transient brain ischemia]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 46-47 (in Polish).
- 47. Chamiec T, Herbaczyńska-Cedro K, Kłosiewicz B, Wąsek W, Cedro K, Ceremużyński L: Antioxidant vitamins prevent alterations of SAEG in acute myocardial infarction. 3rd International Dead Sea Symposium on Advances in Diagnosis and Treatment of Cardiac Arrhythmias, Israel, April 17-19, 1996. Abstracts.
- Chmura J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K: Effect of low-carbohydrate diet on psychomotor performance during graded exercise. *International Symposium* "Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders", Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 61-62, P-10.
- 49. Chmura J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Kruk B, Krzemiński K, Ziemba A, Wiśniak P, Konarska M: Effect of ambient temperature on psychomotor performance during graded exercise. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, 46.
- Chmura J, Krysztofiak H, Ziemba A, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Psychomotor performance during prolonged exercise above and below blood lactate threshold. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 80.
- 51. Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Krysztofiak H, Ziemba A, Krzemiński K, Kruk B, Nazar K: Relationships between EMG, blood lactate, and plasma catecholamine thresholds during graded exercise in men. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 124.

- 52. Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Krysztofiak H, Ziemba A, Krzemiński K, Kruk B, Nazar K: The EMG threshold as noninvasive indicator of blood lactate and plasma catecholamine thresholds during progressive exercise in athletes. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, 46.
- 53. Cybulski G, Kozera J: Dynamics of haemodynamic heart response to the graded exercise on cycloergometer. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, 47.
- 54. Cybulski G, Kozera J: Dynamika odpowiedzi hemodynamicznej serca na stopniowany wysiłek fizyczny [Dynamics of hemodynamic response to graded incremental exercise]. *IInd Conference of Noninvasive Electrocardiography Section of the Polish Cardiological Society*, Zakopane– Kościelisko, Poland, March 28-30, 1996. *Elektrofizjologia i Stymulacja Serca* 1996, 3, 92 (in Polish).
- 55. Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: Ambulatory monitoring system for central hemodynamics and ECG signal recording on PCMCIA flash memory card. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanislaw Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 96.
- 56. Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: Central hemodynamics and ECG ambulatory monitoring device with signals recording on PCMCIA flash memory cards. *The 10th Nordic-Baltic Conference on Biomedical Engineering*, Tampere, Finland, June 9-13, 1996. *Medical & Biological Engineering & Computing* 1996, 34, Suppl 1, Part 1, p. 79-80.
- 57. Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: Holter type device for ECG and central hemodynamics monitoring. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 47.
- Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: The device for ambulatory monitoring of central hemodynamics and ECG signals. *XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 49.

- 59. Cybulski G, Książkiewicz A, Łukasik W, Niewiadomski W, Pałko T: Uniwersalny 4-kanałowy rejestrator holterowski do reograficznej oceny hemodynamiki serca [Four channel Holter monitor for reographic evaluation of cardiac hemodynamics]. *IInd Conference of Noninvasive Electrocardiography Section of the Polish Cardiological Society*, Zakopane– Kościelisko, Poland, March 28-30, 1996. *Elektrofizjologia i Stymulacja Serca* 1996, 3, 92 (in Polish).
- 60. Cybulski G, Niewiadomski W, Krzemiński K, Nazar K: Influence of endurance training on transient haemodynamic response to orthostatic test. *XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine*, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. *Medycyna Sportowa* 1996, 12, p. 46.
- 61. Czernicki Z: Primary care of the central nervous system at the accident site. First Congress of the Euroacademy of Multidisciplinary Neurotraumatology, Salzburg, Germany, May 17-18, 1996. In: Brain Protection in Severe Head Injury. Eds: K.R.H. von Wild. W. Zuckschwerdt Verlag, 1996.
- 62. Czernicki Z: Zaburzenia reaktywności naczyń mózgowych [The disturbances of blood vessel reactivity in the brain]. *Neurosurgery Symposium of the Polenov Institute of Neurosurgery*, St. Petersburg, Russia, November 27-30, 1996.
- 63. Czernicki Z, Kuridze N, Gajkowska B, Jurkiewicz J, Cervos-Navarro J: The effect of dotarizine (calcium channel blocker) on cerebral vessel reactivity and endothelial mitochondria structure in animals subjected to hyper-ventilation and anoxia. *Tenth International Brain Edema Symposium Cellular Injury and Brain Edema 1996*, San Diego, California, USA, October 20-23, 1996.
- 64. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Jasińska R, Rafałowska U: Mielina ośrodkowego układu nerwowego w chronicznym zatruciu ołowiem. Wolnorodnikowe utlenianie i poziom fosfolipidów [Myelin of the central nervous system in chronic lead toxicity. Lipid peroxidation and the level of phospholipids]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 29 (in Polish).
- 65. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Strużyńska L, Rafałowska U: Grupy -SH w mózgu w warunkach chronicznego i ostrego zatrucia ołowiem *in vivo* [SH-groups in brain in chronic and acute lead toxicity conditions *in vivo*]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and*

pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, B-I (in Polish).

- 66. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Walski M, Jasińska R, Strużyńska L, Rafałowska U: Morphological and biochemical changes in myelin after chronic lead exposure. 11th Biennial Meeting of the International Society for Developmental Neuroscience, Tampere, Finland, July 30 - August 3, 1996. Int J Dev Neurosci 1996, 14, Suppl 1, p. 96.
- 67. Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Walski M, Strużyńska L, Rafałowska U: Wpływ chronicznego zatrucia ołowiem na morfologię i komponentę białkową mieliny mózgu szczura [The influence of chronic lead toxicity on the morphology and protein component of the rat brain myelin]. XXXII Meeting of the Polish Society of Biochemistry, Cracow, Poland, September 17-20, 1996. Abstracts, p. 41, II-19 (in Polish).
- 68. Dąmbska M: Układ nerwowy jako morfologiczne podłoże funkcji mowy i jej zaburzeń [The nervous system as morphological background of speech function and its disturbances]. *Materials from the Logopedic Conference* "*Diagnosis and treatment in different linguistic disorders*", Augustówka, Poland, May 1996, pp. 7-9 (in Polish).
- 69. Dąmbska M: Z patofizjologii rozwoju ośrodkowego układu nerwowego. Morfologiczne podłoże rozwoju i zaburzeń mowy [Pathophysiology of the CNS development: morphological background of speech development and its disturbances]. *Material from Conference "Intelectual and linguistic development of children with difficulties in speech communications"*, Warsaw, Poland, June 1-2, 1996 (in Polish).
- 70. Dąmbska M, Kuchna I, Maślińska D, Laure-Kamionowska M: Quantitative studies of nerve cell maturation and development of vascularization within human hippocampus during the second half of fetal life. *The Vth European Congress of Neuropathology*, Paris, France, April 23-27, 1996. *Neuropathol Appl Neurobiol* 1996, 22, Suppl 1, C37.
- 71. Dąmbska M, Maślińska D, Laure-Kamionowska M: Dojrzewanie odczynów astroglejowych w przebiegu uszkodzeń mózgów płodów i noworodków [Maturation of astroglial reaction in the course of fetal and neonatal brain lesions]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 13 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 152 (in English).
- 72. Dębicki G, Ryba M, Grieb P, Walski M, Gordon-Krajcer W, Januszewski S: Lipofilny antyoksydant idebenon zmniejsza uszkodzenia wolnorodnikowe

w tkankach mózgowych po odwracalnym zatrzymaniu krążenia [A antioxidant idebenone attenuates free radical damage in brain tissues after reversible cardiac arrest]. Ilnd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, SP (in Polish).

- 73. Dobrowolski L, Bądzyńska B, Sadowski J: Renal medullary electrolyte concentration during experimental changes in renal perfusion pressure. *The 2nd European Kidney Research Forum (EKRF)*, Baveno, Italy, May 24-27, 1996. *Kidney International* 1996, 50, 1780.
- 74. Dobrowolski L, Endlich K, Sadowski J: Cardiovascular and renal effects of endothelin receptor blockade and interaction with urodilatin. *XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. *J Physiol Pharmacol* 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 132.
- 75. Dobrzyński B, Lewicki R, Kaczorowski K, Nazar K: Aerobic capacity, anaerobic threshold and plasma levels of testosterone, growth hormone and cortisol in elite middle- and long-distance runners. *XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine*, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. *Medycyna Sportowa* 1996, 12, p. 56.
- 76. Dolińska M, Albrecht J: Właściwości transportera glutaminianowoasparaginianowego w mitochondriach mózgu szczura [Properties of the glutamate-aspartate transport in rat brain mitochondria]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 25-26 (in Polish).
- 77. Dolińska M, Hilgier W, Albrecht J: Wpływ amoniaku na wychwyt GLN przez mitochondria z mózgu szczura [Effect of ammonia on glutamine uptake by rat brain mitochondria]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP (in Polish).
- 78. Domańska-Janik K, Sypecka J, Taraszewska A: Obraz immunohistochemiczny ekspresji głównych białek mielinowych w oun królika – wpływ mutacji PLPpt [Immunochemical imaging of the main myelin proteins expression in rabbit CNS – the effect of PLPpt mutation]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 41-42 (in Polish).

- 79. Domańska-Janik K, Zabłocka B, Sypecka J: Doniesienie plakatowe nt. badań prowadzonych przy użyciu systemu do chromatografii (niskociśnieniowej): GradiFrac, Pharmacia, i czytnika reakcji na mikropłytkach: Microplate Reader 450, BioRad [Methodological presentation of the projects realized with use of the low-pressure chromatographic system GradiFrac, Pharmacia, and Microplate Reader 450, Biorad]. Conference of the beneficiaries of the Polish Science Foundation, Gdańsk, Poland, January 26, 1996. Abstracts, Poster no. 3 (in Polish).
- 80. Domańska-Janik K, Zabłocka B, Zalewska T: Calcium dependent proteolysis by calpains in brain ischemia. 8th International Congress of the Czech and Slovak Neurochemical Society, Martin, Slovakia, September 4-7, 1996. Abstracts, p. 98.
- 81. Domańska-Janik K, Zalewska T: Sekwencyjne zmiany aktywności kinazy białkowej zależnej od Ca²⁻ i kalmoduliny (CaMKII) w ischemii mózgu gerbila [Sequencial changes of calcium, calmodulin-dependent kinase II (CaMKII) activity in ischemic gerbil brain]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference* "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-I (in Polish).
- Domańska-Janik K, Zalewska T: Transient increase of calcium, calmodulindependent kinase II (CaMKII) activity in its autonomous state under brain ischemia. *Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *J Neurochem* 1996, 66 (Suppl 2), p. S58.
- 83. Domitrz I: Kędziorek A, Niebrój-Dobosz I: Badania immunologiczne surowicy krwi i płynu mózgowo-rdzeniowego w stwardnieniu zanikowym bocznym (SLA) [Immunological studies of serum and cerebrospinal fluid of amyolateral lateral sclerosis patients (ALS)]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Supl 3, p. 4816 (in Polish).
- 84. Drac H: Zmiany w nerwie łydkowym w przewlekłej zapalnej demielinizacyjnej polineuropatii [Morphological changes in the sural nerve in chronic inflammatory demyelinating polyneuropathy]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 15 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 153 (in English).
- 85. Drac H, Jamrozik Z: Przydatność biopsji nerwu łydkowego w polineuropatiach towarzyszących kolagenozom [Diagnostic value of sural nerve biopsy

in necrotizing vascular polyneuropathy]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 52 (in Polish).

- 86. Drac I, Mieszkowski J, Gołębiewski P, Kwieciński H: Rzadki zespół kliniczny z ciężką polineuropatią [POEMS a rare multiorgan syndrome with severe polyneuropathy]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 53 (in Polish).
- 87. Dubaniewicz A, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Langfort J, Budohoski L, Górecka M, Porta S, Nazar K: Sensitivity of muscle glucose utilization to insulin in hypothyroid rats during prolonged hyperadrenalinemia. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl. 2, p. 124.
- 88. Durlik M, Kuska A, Muszyński M: Zakażenia w chirurgii naczyniowej [Infections in vascular surgery]. *Symposium "Advances in prevention and treatment of postoperative infections"*, Warsaw, Poland, June 21, 1996.
- Durlik M, Łukomska B, Namysłowski A, Olszewski WL: The kinetics of seeding of syngeneic and allogeneic cells from vascularized bone marrow graft. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, Suppl, p. 26.
- Durlik M, Łukomska B, Olszewski WL: Long term survival of limb allografts after weaning of CsA – possible role of microchimerism. XVI International Congress of the Transplantation Society, Barcelona, Spain, August 25-30, 1996. Book of Abstracts, p. 466.
- 91. Durlik M, Olszewski WL: Allogeneic transplanted bone marrow cells can survive in recipient lymphoid tissue after weaning of CsA. *31st Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research*, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. *European Surgical Research* 1996, 28 (Suppl 1), p. 30.
- 92. Durowicz S, Olszewski WL: Liver associated lymphocytes adherence and release mechanism. 8th International Symposium on Cells of the Hepatic Sinusoid, Bordeaux, France, September 1-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 43.
- Durowicz S, Olszewski WL: Mechanism of trapping of intravenously transplanted lymphocytes in the liver. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, Suppl, p. 27.

- 94. Falęcka-Wieczorek I, Turlejska E: Effect of dehydration on rectal temperature, some blood metabolites and catecholamines in exercising rats. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl. 2, p. 124.
- 95. Fidziańska A: Apoptoza mięśnia w rdzeniowym zaniku mięśni [Muscle apoptosis in spinal muscular atrophy]. *Meeting of the Committee of Neuromuscular Pathology Polish Academy of Sciences*, Katowice, Poland, September 27, 1996.
- 96. Fidziańska A: Apoptoza zaprogramowana śmierć komórki mięśniowej [Apoptosis – programmed muscle cell death]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 18 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 154 (in English).
- 97. Fidziańska A: Dystrofina marker nosicielski dystrofii typu Duchenn'a i Beckera [Dystrophin as a marker of DMA and BMD carriers]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 63 (in Polish).
- Fidziańska A: Apoptosis in human embrynic and diseased skeletal muscle. First International Conference on "Apoptosis in Skeletal and Cardiac Muscles", Abano Terme (Padova), Italy, June 1-4, 1996. Abstracts, p. 300.
- 99. Fidziańska A, Drac H, Kamińska A: Wtrętowe zapalenie mięśni kryteria kliniczne, morfologiczne i związek z innymi chorobami nerwowo-mięśniowymi [Inclusion body myositis clinical and morphological criteria and relation to other neuromuscular disorders]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 64 (in Polish).
- 100. Flippen-Anderson JL, Deschamps J, George C, Hruby VJ, Lipkowski AW, Misicka A: Biphalin, a highly potent dimeric enkephalin analog. XVII Congress of International Union of Crystalography, Seattle, Washington, USA, August 8-17, 1996. Abstracts, PS05.01.19.
- 101. Gajkowska B: Endotelina w układzie podwzgórzowo-przysadkowym szczura ischemicznego. Badania immunocytochemiczne [Endothelin in rat's hypothalamo-hypophyseal system after ischemia. Immunocytochemical study]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 18-19 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 154 (in English).
- 102. Gajkowska B: Localization and role of endothelin-like immunoreactivity in neurosecretory system of the rat after ischemia. *Scientific Conference of*

Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań of Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.

- 103. Gajkowska B: Rola endoteliny w układzie neurosekrecyjnym szczura w globalnym niedokrwieniu mózgu [The role of endothelin in neurosecretory system of the rat in global cerebral ischemia]. V International Symposium of Polish Network of Cellular and Molecular Biology UNESCO/PASci "Molecular and physiological aspects of the systemic regulation", Cracow, Poland, June 4-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 102 (in Polish).
- 104. Gajkowska B, Frontczak-Baniewicz M, Gadamski R: Capillary vessels of the rats brain cortex after ischemia. Observation in transmission and scanning electron microscopy. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań of Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 105. Gajkowska B, Gajewska A, Kochman: The LH-RH-containing synapses in preoptic area of the female rat. Immunocytochemical study. V International Symposium of Polish Network of Cellular and Molecular Biology UNESCO/ PASci "Molecular and physiological aspects of the systemic regulation", Cracow, Poland, June 4-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 103.
- 106. Gajkowska B, Mossakowski MJ: Endothelin-like immunoreactivity in the brain after ischemia. 11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. J Neurochem 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p.S109.
- 107. Gajkowska B, Mossakowski MJ: Immunocytochemical evaluation of endothelin in rats hippocampus after ischemia. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań of Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 108. Gajkowska B, Śmiałek M: Localization of endothelin-like immunoreactivity in neurosecretory system of the rat after ischemia. *11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *J Neurochem* 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p.S109.
- 109. Gałązka-Friedman J, Bauminger ER, Friedman A, Barcikowska M, Tymosz T, Hechel D, Nowik I, Marczewska JM: Mössbauer spectroscopy and electron microscopy studies of human substantia nigra – possible relations with Parkinson's disease. *All-Seminar on Mössbauer Spectroscopy*, Lublin, Poland,

May 27-29, 1996. In: *Proceedings All-Seminar on Mössbauer Spectroscopy*. Ed.: J. Starzyński. Institute of Physics Maria Curie-Skłodowska University and Department of Physics Technical University of Lublin, 1996, pp. 36-40.

- 110. Gałkowska H: A novel monoclonal antibody specific for dendritic cells from skin afferent lymph. 4th International Symposium on Dendritic Cells in Fundamental and Clinical Immunology, Lido/Venice, Italy, October 5-10, 1996. Abstracts Book, p. 62.
- Gałkowska H, Interewicz B, Wojewódzka U, Olszewski WL: Skin transplantation biology – how to control activation of cutaneous dendritic cells. XXXIst Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. European Surgical Research 1996, 28, Suppl 1, p. 1.
- 112. Głód B: Mechanism of the retention control by β-cyclodextrin in ionexclusion chromatography. V Polish Chromatographic Conference and XX Scientific Seminar "Chromatographic methods in the studies of organic compounds", Katowice–Szczyrk, Poland, June 12-14, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 119.
- 113. Gołębiowski M, Barcikowska M: Analiza objętościowa struktur hipokampa w badaniu MRI u pacjentów z chorobą Alzheimera [MR based hippocampal volumetry in patients with dementia of Alzheimer type]. *IInd Conference of the Polish Society of Magnetic Resonance*, Cracow, Poland, October 10-13, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 20, nr 005 (in Polish).
- 114. Gordon-Krajcer W, Yang L-S, Księżak-Reding H: Efficient dephosphorylation of Tau in paired helical filaments is blocked at the C-terminus. 36th American Society for Cell Biology Annual Meeting, San Francisco, USA, December 7-11, 1996. Poster.
- 115. Grieb P, Królicki L, Bąk M: Protonowa spektroskopia rezonansu magnetycznego ludzkiego mózgu [Proton magnetic resonance of the human brain]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 32-33 (in Polish).
- 116. Grieb P, Ryba M, Stelmasiak Z, Nowicki J, Solski J, Jakubowska B: Bezpieczeństwo stosowania cladribine (2-CdA) w leczeniu stwardnienia rozsianego [The safety of cladribine (2CdA) treatment in multiple sclerosis]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological

and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, SP (in Polish).

- 117. Grucza R, Pekkarinen H, Timonen K, Titov E, Hanninen O: Physiological responses to cold in relation to the phase of the menstrual cycle and oral contraceptives. *Tenth International Symposium "Pharmacology of Thermoregulation"*, Memphis, USA, August 16-22, 1996.
- 118. Grzelak I: Cytokinowa regulacja proliferacji komórek nowotworowych w płynie tkankowym skóry ludzkiej [Cytokine regulation of tumor cell proliferation in tissue fluid from human skin]. Symposium "Skin infection Adhesion Molecules and Cytokines in Skin Inflammation and Tumors", Warsaw, Poland, November 16, 1996.
- 119. Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Olszewski WL: Immune response after syngeneic and allogeneic blood cell transplantation. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. Cell Transplantation 1996, 5, Suppl 2, p. 63.
- 120. Grzelak I, Zaleska M, Olszewski WL: Syngeneic and allogeneic blood transfusions produce hematopoietic and immune effects. *XXXIst Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research*, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. *European Surgical Research* 1996, 28, Suppl 1, 2.
- 121. Gujski M, Maślińska D, Poppe P, Szukiewicz F, Rommerts F, Ryżewski J: Effect of temperature on the course of apoptosis induced by ethane dimethane sulphonate (EDS). An International Symposium: "Apoptosis and Its Role in Immunity", Warsaw, Poland, October 20, 1996. Abstract Book, p. P5.
- 122. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Clinical features of Emery-Dreifuss dystrophy. European NeuroMuscular Center Workshop on Cardiomyopathies in Xlinked Muscular Dystrophy and Satellite Workshop on Non-cardiological Aspects of Emery-Dreifuss Muscular Dystrophy, Narden, The Netherlands, June 21-23, 1996.
- 123. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Reintegracja jednostki ruchowej po uszkodzeniach obwodowego układu nerwowego (obraz elektromiograficzny) [Motor unit reintegration in lower motor neuron lesion (electromyographic picture)]. IIIrd Springs Neurological School "Functional recovery after damage to the central and peripheral nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, May 24-25 1996.
- 124. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Zanik rdzeniowy mięśni klasyfikacja, patogeneza, metody diagnostyczne [Spinal muscular atrophy classification,

pathogenesis and diagnostic procedures]. *Meeting of the Committee of Neuromuscular Pathology Polish Academy of Sciences*, Katowice, Poland, September 27, 1996.

- 125. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Fidziańska A, Niebrój-Dobosz I: Dystrofia sprzężona z chromosomem X może występować również u kobiet [X-linked muscular dystrophy in women]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 89 (in Polish).
- 126. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Niebrój-Dobosz I: Problem bloku przewodzenia w SLA i neuropatii ruchowej [Conduction block in ALS and multifocal motor neuropathy]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 88 (in Polish).
- 127. Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Zaremba, Borkowska J: Is chronic proximal spinal muscular atrophy a sex influenced condition? *Symposium on Recent Advances in Diagnosis and Therapy of Neuromuscular Diseases*, Prato, Italy, March 21-24, 1996.
- 128. Herbaczyńska-Cedro K, Budaj A, Kłosiewicz-Wąsek B, Panczenko B, Ceremużyński L: Captopril does not change free radical activity in acute myocardial infarction. 59 Congress of the Polish Cardiac Society, Warsaw, Poland, September 5-7, 1996. Abstracts, I-227, P226.
- 129. Hilgier W, Januszewski S, Quack G, Albrecht J: Wpłwy toksycznego uszkodzenia wątroby i leczenia ornitynoasparaginianem (OA) na transport aminokwasów zasadowych i asparaginianu z krwi do mózgu szczura [Effect of toxic liver damage and ornithine aspartate (OA) treatment on the bloodto-brain transport of basic amino acids and aspartate]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP (in Polish).
- Hines T, Kołodziejak A, Mempel E, Tarnecki R: Motor preparation in surgically treated parkinsonian patients. *Symposium Cognitive Neuroscience Society*, San Francisco USA, 1996.
- 131. Horsztyński D, Dziduszko J, Kołodziejak A, Walerian P: Charakterystyka somatosensorycznych potencjałów wywołanych (SEP) badanych metodą mapingu w ogniskowych uszkodzeniach mózgu [The characteristics of somatosensory evoked potentials assessed by mapping in focal cerebral

lesions]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.

- 132. Iwanowski L, Kuchna I, Matyja E, Wierzba-Bobrowicz T, Kupryjańczyk J, Ząbek M: Przypadek raka zarodkowego szyszynki z elementami potworniaka potwierdzony badaniami histologicznymi i immunohistochemicznymi [A case of an embryonal carcinoma with teratoma components of the pineal gland diagnosed histologically and immunohistochemically]. *Xth Conference* of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 21-22 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 155 (in English).
- 133. Jakubiec-Puka A, Wieczorek U, Langfort J, Morga J: Influence of thyroid hormone on the myosin heavy chains in the denervated and self-reinervated skeletal muscle. *International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski)*, Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 51.
- 134. Janczewska S, Łukomska B, Durlik M, Ziółkowska A, Olszewski WL: Immunologic reconstitution induced by vascularized bone marrow transplantation. *Fourth Central European FACS/CAS Users' Meeting –* Portoroze, Slovenia, September 29 – October 2, 1996. Abstracts.
- Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Olszewski WL, Maksymowicz M, Ziółkowska A: Split tolerance for lymphocyte and heart allografts. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. Cell Transplantation 1996, 5, Suppl 2, p. 64.
- 136. Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Olszewski WL, Wojciechowska B, Ziółkowska A, Maksymowicz M: Donor-specific transfusions attenuate heart allograft rejection reaction through antibodies binding to endothelial cells other than against MHC class I and II. *31st Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research*, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. *European Surgical Research* 1996, 28 (Suppl 1), p. 34-35.
- 137. Jurkiewicz J: Diagnosis of low pressure hydrocephalus. New mathematic formula. *Central European Codman-Medos Symposium*, Praha, Czech Republic, May 29-30, 1996.
- 138. Jurkiewicz J: Diagnostyka wodogłowia [Diagnostic of hydrocephalus]. *Neurosurgery Symposium of the Polenov Institute of Neurosurgery*, St. Petersburg, Russia, November 27-30, 1996.

- 139. Jurkiewicz J: New mathematic formula in diagnosis of low-pressure hydrocephalus. 40th Annual Meeting of the Society for Research into Hydrocephalus and Spina Bifida, Utrecht, The Netherlands, July 10-13, 1996.
- 140. Jurkiewicz J: Ventrico-lumbar drainage in the treatment of obstructive hydrocephalus. Scientific Conference "Advances in Treatment of Hydrocephalus", Pułtusk, Poland, December 6-7, 1996.
- 141. Jurkiewicz J, Bogucki J: Usprawnienia operacyjne podwójny układ zastawkowy oraz system on-off [Technical advances – double valve system and on-off system]. Scientific Conference "Advances in Treatment of Hydrocephalus", Pułtusk, Poland, December 6-7, 1996.
- 142. Jurkiewicz J, Bogucki J, Marszałek P, Czernicki Z: Two-valve shunting system in the treatment of overdrainage syndrome. *Scientific Conference* "Advances in Treatment of Hydrocephalus", Pułtusk, Poland, December 6-7, 1996.
- 143. Jurkiewicz J, Marszałek P, Bogucki J, Czernicki Z: Multistage method of low-pressure hydrocephalus diagnosis. *Neurochirurgische Konferenze im Neurochirurgische Klinik Aarau*, Aarau, Switzerland, June 10-14, 1996.
- 144. Jurkiewicz J, Marszałek P, Fersten E, Łuczywek E, Czernicki Z, Bogucki J, Gielecki J: Multistage method of diagnosis of LPH. *40th Annual Meeting of the Society for Research into Hydrocephalus and Spina Bifida*, Utrecht, The Netherlands, July 10-13, 1996.
- 145. Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Chmura J, Ziemba A, Konarska M: Effect of high ambient temperature on psychomotor performance and plasma catecholamines during graded exercise. XXth Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 47, Suppl. 2, p. 70.
- 146. Kamińska A: Zdolność regeneracji mięśnia szkieletowego w zależności od wieku [The ability of skeletal muscle to regenerate is related to the age]. IIIrd Springs Neurological School "Functional recovery after damage to the central and peripheral nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, May 24-25 1996 (in Polish).
- 147. Kamińska A, Fidziańska A: Apoptoza wywołana doświadczalnie w niedojrzałym mięśniu szkieletowym szczura [Experimentally induced apoptosis in immature rat skeletal muscle]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 26 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 156 (in English).

- 148. Kamińska A, Fidziańska A: Experimentally induced apoptosis in immature rat skeletal muscle. First International Conference on "Apoptosis in Skeletal and Cardiac Muscles", Abano Terme (Padova), Italy, June 1-4, 1996. Abstracts, p. 303.
- 149. Kapuściński A: Brain uptake of amino acids after resuscitation of rats from 10-min cardiac arrest. 11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. J Neurochem 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p.S21.
- 150. Kapuściński A: Catecholamines levels in the rat brain and plasma during cardiac arrest and after resuscitation. *11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *J Neurochem* 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p.S30.
- 151. Kapuściński A, Nikolaishvili LS: Blood-brain barrier (BBB) methionine transport after resuscitation from 10-min cardiac arrest in rats. *Vth European Congress of Neuropathology*, Paris, France, April 23-27, 1996. *Neuropathol Appl Neurobiol* 1996, 22, Suppl 1, p. 11.
- 152. Kapuściński A, Nikolaishvili LS: Transport aminokwasów do mózgu w warunkach encefalopatii poischemicznej [Amino acids transport into brain in the conditions of postischemic encephalopathy]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 27 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 156 (in English).
- 153. Kida E, Wiśniewski KE: Apolipoprotein E and dystrophic neurite pathology. Fifth International Conference on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders, Osaka, Japan, July 24-29, 1996. Neurobiology of Aging 1996, 17 (Suppl), 4S, p. S180.
- 154. Kiljański JI, Wall JR, Borsouk A, Peele K, Stachura I, Pickeral J, Kennerdell JS: Prevalence of antibodies against nuclear, striated muscle and connective tissue antigens in patients with endocrine orbitopathy. XV Congress of the Polish Society of Endocrinology in cooperation with The European Federation of Endocrine Societies, Poznań, Poland, May 19-23, 1996. Pol J Endocrinol, 1996, 47, Suppl 1, 66.
- 155. Kiljański JI, Wall JR, Borsouk A, Peele K, Stachura I, Pickerał J, Kennerdell JS: Prevalence of antibodies against nuclear, striated muscle and connective tissue antigens in patients with endocrine orbitopathy. *J Endocrinol Invest* 1996, 19, (Suppl. to no 3), p. 26.

- 156. Kodrzycka A, Niewiadomski W, Cybulski G: Time domain and Fourier analysis of respiratory arrhythmia during deep breathing test. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 47, Suppl. 2, p. 51.
- 157. Kodrzycka A, Niewiadomski W, Cybulski G: Intensive training increases parasympathetic activity in supine but not in standing position. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 55.
- 158. Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Walkowska A, Sadowski J: Water diuresis in the acutely exposed vs. chronically explanted rat kidney. The 2nd European Kidney Research Forum (EKRF), Baveno, Italy, May 24-27, 1996.
- 159. Kopczyńska B, Szereda-Przestaszewska M: Wzorce odpowiedzi mięśni oddechowych w bezdechu doświadczalnym u kota [Patterns of respiratory muscle responses in the experimental apnoea in the cat]. *Meeting of the Section of Breathing Disorders in Sleep of the Polish Society of Phthisiopneumology*, Warsaw, Poland, November 14, 1996. *Pneumonol Alergol Pol*, 1997, 65, p. 572 (in Polish).
- 160. Koszewski W, Kroh H: Osteoblastoma kręgosłupa opis przypadku [Osteoblastoma of the vertebral column – case report]. Symposium "Vertebral column tumors", Konstancin, Poland, May 9-11, 1996.
- Kowalska-Olędzka E: Clinical, serological and genetical studies on inflammatory myopathies. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 127.
- 162. Kozłowska M: Dystrofie mięśniowe postępujące [Progressive muscular dystrophies]. *Conference on rehabilitation of the patients with neuromuscular disorders in Poland*, Dziwnówek, Poland, December 13, 1996.
- 163. Kozłowska M: Genetyka chorób nerwowo-mięśniowych [Genetic problems in neuromuscular disorders]. Conference on rehabilitation of the patients with neuromuscular disorders in Poland, Dziwnówek, Poland, December 13, 1996.
- 164. Kozłowska M, Szmidt-Sałkowska E, Drac H, Harding A, Kwieciński H: Dziedziczna neuropatia z nadwrażliwością nerwów na ucisk spowodowana delecją DNA w obrębie 17p11.2-12 [Hereditary neuropathy with liability to pressure palsy due to deletion within chromosome 17p11.2-12]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 129 (in Polish).

- 165. Koźniewska E, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Transient impairment of the reactivity of cerebral circulation to acetylcholine but not to NOS inhibition following cardiac arrest-induced global cerebral ischemia in rats. *Joint 3rd World Stroke Congress and 5th European Stroke Conference*, Munich, Germany, September 1-4, 1996. *Cerebrovasc Dis* 1996, 6 (Suppl 2), p.175, P861.
- 166. Koźniewska E, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Pluta R: Reactivity of cerebral circulation to endothelium-dependent and endothelium-independent vasodilators following cardiac arrest-induced global cerebral ischemia in rats. 6th International Symposium on Pharmacology of Cerebral Ischemia, Marburg, Germany, July 21-24, 1996. Abstract Book - Poster Presentation, p. 79.
- 167. Kroh H, Figols J, Sobieraj A: Intracranial haemangiopericytomas: histological and immunohistochemical study. *The Vth European Congress* of Neuropathology, Paris, France, April 23-27, 1996. Neuropathol Appl Neurobiol 1996, 22, Suppl 1, p. 70.
- 168. Kroh H, Figols J, Sobieraj A: Obłoniaki śródczaszkowe [Intracranial hemangiopericytomas]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 32-33 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 158 (in English).
- Kroh H, Matyja E: Disorganization of cortical structure and brain gliomas. *The Vth European Congress of Neuropathology*, Paris, France, April 23-27, 1996. *Neuropathol Appl Neurobiol* 1996, 22, Suppl 1, p. 52.
- 170. Kroh H, Matyja E, Bidziński J: Komponent neuronalny zwojako-glejaków mózgu w materiale biopsyjnym [Neuronal component of ganglioglioma in biopsy material]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 33 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 158 (in English).
- 171. Kroh H, Taraszewska A, Zwolińska B: Zespół Rasmussena. Opis przypadku [Rasmussen's syndrome. Case report]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association* of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 34 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 158 (in English).
- 172. Kruk B, Brzezińska Z, Falęcka-Wieczorek I, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Greenleaf JE: Effect of 8-week cage confinement on muscle metabolism during exercise in dogs. *The 17th Annual International Gravitational Physiology Meeting*, Warsaw, Poland, April 14-19, 1996. *Abstracts*, no 30.

- 173. Kruk B, Krzemiński K, Krysztofiak H, Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Ziemba A, Pekkarinen H: Effects of cold exposure and caffeine ingestion on lactate threshold. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 57.
- 174. Kruk B, Pekkarinen H, Timonen K, Hanninen O: Effect of caffeine ingestion on exercise performance at low and neutral ambient temperature. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 47, Suppl. 2, p. 72.
- 175. Krysztofiak H: Analysis of relation between lactate threshold and heart rate changes during exercise. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 57.
- 176. Krysztofiak H, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Threshold increase in plasma growth hormone concentration during graded exercise with various muscle groups. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 47, Suppl. 2, p. 83.
- 177. Krzemiński K, Cybulski G, Niewiadomski W, Nazar K: Influence of endurance training on the transient haemodynamic response to orthostatic manoeuvre. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 47, Suppl. 2, p. 53.
- 178. Kubala P, Smorawiński J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Bicz B, Greenleaf JE: Effects of three day bed-rest on circulatory and hormonal responses to active orthostatic test in endurance trained athletes and untrained subjects. *The 17th Annual International Gravitational Physiology Meeting*, Warsaw, April 14-19, 1996. *Abstracts*, no 31.
- 179. Kubicka U, Olszewski WL, Tarnowski W, Tyszer I, Ziółkowska A, Bielecki K: Adhesion molecule expression and cytokine profile of peritoneal phagocytes (Ph) in patients with gastrointestinal tumors. 2nd International Congress on Phagocytes, Pavia, Italy, September 4-7, 1996. Europ J Haematol 1996, 57 (Suppl), p. 59.
- 180. Kubicka U, Olszewski WL, Tarnowski W, Tyszer I, Ziółkowska A, Bielecki K: Adhesion molecule expression and cytokine profile of peritoneal phagocytes in patients with gastrointestinal tumors. *6th International Meeting of the Omentum Club*, Wolfratshausen (Munich), Germany, September 19-21, 1996. *Abstracts.*
- 181. Kukwa A, Czerwosz L, Baczewska A, Jernajczyk U: Computer monitoring and analysis of nystagmus in patients with vestibular disorders. XX Congress

of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 150.

- 182. Kwiatkowska-Patzer B, Baranowska B, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW: Modulujący wpływ hydrolizatu rdzenia na przebieg eksperymentalnego alergicznego zapalenia mózgu u szczura [Modulatory effect of spinal cord proteins hydrolysate upon experimental allergic encephalomyelitis in the rat]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 36 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 159 (in English).
- 183. Kwiatkowska-Patzer B, Baranowska B, Barcikowska-Litwin M, Lipkowski AW: Suppression of experimental autoimmune encephalomyelitis in the rat by oral administration of spinal cord proteins hydrolysate. *11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *J Neurochem* 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p. S41, C.
- 184. Kwiatkowska-Patzer B, Barcikowska-Litwin M, Baranowska B, Sagan B, Lipkowski AW: Hydrolizaty rdzenia kręgowego zwierząt hodowlanych do wywoływania tolerancji pokarmowej w zwierzęcym modelu doświadczalnego zapalenia mózgu (EAE) [Bovine spinal cord hydrolysate induces oral tolerance in animal model of experimental allergic encephalomyelitis]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 16 (in Polish).
- 185. Langfort J, Żernicka E, Desplanches D, Mayet-Sorrnay MH, Dubaniewicz A: Effects of acute and chronic hindlimb suspension on sensitivity and responsiveness to insulin in the rat soleus muscle. *The 17th Annual International Gravitational Physiology Meeting*, Warsaw, Poland, April 14-19, 1996. *Abstracts*, no 32.
- 186. Laure-Kamionowska M: Neuropatologia zmian okołoporodowych [Neuropathology of perinatal lesions]. Conference "The child with pre- and perinatal lesions of the CNS". The Children's Memorial Health Institute, Warsaw, Poland, April 26, 1996. Materials from Conference, pp. 7-11.
- 187. Lipkowski AW, Misicka A, Maszczyńska I: Współdziałanie bifaliny z peptydowym ligandem receptora NMDA [Interaction between biphalin and peptide NMDA receptor ligand]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 9-10.

- 188. Lipkowski AW, Misicka A, Maszczyńska I, Stropova D, Yamamura HI, Davis P, Porreca F, Carr DB, Kream R, Hruby VJ: An approach for developing of biphalin analogues for clinical use. 27th Meeting of the International Narcotics Research Conference, Long Beach, California, USA, July 21-26, 1996. Abstracts, M51.
- 189. Lossinsky AS, Buttle K, Marko M, Pluta R, Mossakowski MJ, Wiśniewski HM: Immunoultrastructural and high-voltage electron microscopic studies of endothelial cell tubules and vesicular-vacuolar organelles in human brain tumors. 26th Annual Meeting of Society for Neuroscience, Washington, DC, USA, November 16-21, 1996. Soc Neurosci Abstr 1996, vol. 22, part 1, p. 774.
- 190. Lossinsky AS, Wiśniewski HM, Mossakowski MJ: Mikroskopowoelektronowe badania ekspresji cząsteczek adhezyjnych w dojrzewającej barierze krew-mózg u myszy [Immunoelectron microscopic studies of adhesion molecule expression in the developing mouse blood-brain barrier]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 40-41. *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 160 (in English).
- 191. Łałowski M, Baumann M, Rauvala H, Raulo E, Nolo R, Frangione B, Wiśniewski T: HB-GAM is a cytokine present in Alzheimer's and Down's syndrome lesions and it binds amyloid β *in vitro. 24th Meeting of the Federation of European Biochemical Societies*, Barcelona, Spain, July 7-12, 1966. *Abstracts*, p. 229.
- 192. Łałowski M, Gołąbek A, Lemere CA, Selkoe DJ, Kolodny E, Frangione B, Wiśniewski T: Amyloid β peptides in cerebellar preamyloid and neuritic plaques of Down's syndrome patients. 26th Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, Washington DC, USA, November 16-21, 1966.
- 193. Łałowski MM, Gołąbek AA, Lamiere CA, Selkoe DJ, Wisniewski HM, Beavis RC, Frangione B, Wiśniewski T: "Nie-amyloidogenny" peptyd Aβ17-42 jest głównym składnikiem złogów rozproszonych amyloidu β w korze móżdżku, w zespole Downa [Non-amyloidogenic peptide Aβ 17-42 the principal compound of diffuse amyloid in cerebellum cortex of Down Syndrome]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 30-31 (in Polish).
- 194. Łałowski MM, Gołąbek AA, Wiśniewski T, Frangione B: Znaczenie apolipoproteiny E w chorobie Alzheimera [The role of apolipoprotein E in

Alzheimer's disease]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-III (in Polish).

- 195. Łałowski MM, Strosznajder J, Bobik M, Russel M, Frangione B, Wiśniewski T: Amyloid β w mózgu starczym oraz w chorobie Alzheimera. Amyloid β 1-42 nie jest czynnikiem samoistnym rozwoju blaszek starczych w psim modelu choroby Alzheimera [Amyloid β in aged brain in Alzheimer's disease. Amyloid β 1-42 itself is not responsible for the amyloid plaque formation in dogs form of Alzheimer's disease]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP-3 (in Polish).
- 196. Łazarewicz JW, Gadamski R, Danysz W: Przypuszczalna rola hipotermii w ochronnym działaniu antagonistów receptorów glicynowych_B i AMPA po niedokrwieniu mózgu [Possible role of hypothermia in protective effects of glycine B and AMPA antagonists in brain ischemia]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 8-9 (in Polish).
- 197. Łazarewicz JW, Gordon-Krajcer W, Rybkowski W, Salińska E: Zależna od receptorów NMDA, indukowana przez Ca²⁻ mobilizacja wewnątrzkomórkowego Ca²⁻ w hipokampie szczura in vivo [NMDA receptordependent calcium induced calcium release in rat hippocampus in vivo]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-I (in Polish).
- 198. Łazarewicz JW, Rybkowski W, Salińska E, Gordon-Krajcer W, Ziemińska E, Ziembowicz A, Puka-Sundvall, Hagberg H: Generation of Ca²⁻ signal in NMDA receptors of rat and rabbit hippocampus *in vivo*: Ca²⁻ influx and mobilisation. *11th Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *J Neurochem* 1996, 66, Suppl 2, p. S58.
- 199. Łazarewicz JW, Salińska W, Gordon-Krajcer W, Ziembowicz A: Transcellular messengers in NMDA receptor signalling: in vivo studies in the rabbit hippocampus. 8th International Congress of the Czech and Slovak Neurochemical Society, Martin, Slovakia, September 4-7, 1996. Abstracts, p. 107.

- 200. Łazarewicz JW, Salińska E, Rybkowski W, Gordon-Krajcer W, Ziembowicz A: Occurence of NMDA receptor-mediated Ca²⁻ induced Ca²⁻ release in the rat and rabbit hippocanmpus in vivo. 8th International Congress of the Chech and Slovak Neurochemical Society, Martin, Slovakia, September 4-7, 1996. Abstracts, p. 108.
- Łuczywek E: Hipokampalny model pamięci [Hippocampal model of memory]. XXIXth Scientific Congress of the Polish Psychological Society, Gdańsk, Poland, September 12-15, 1996.
- 202. Łuczywek E, Barcikowska M, Pfeffer A, Gołębiowski M: Zaburzenia w odzyskaniu informacji z pamięci semantycznej u osób z chorobą Alzheimera [Disorders of semantic memory in Alzheimer's disease]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 169 (in Polish).
- 203. Łukomska B: Limfocyty zatok wątroby mechanizmy ich gromadzenia w warunkach fizjologicznych i nowotworach wątroby [Human liver lymphocytes – the mechanisms of their margination in normal and pathological conditions]. *Symposium "Skin Infection – Adhesion Molecules* and Cytokines in Skin Inflammation and Tumors", Warsaw, Poland, November 16, 1996.
- 204. Łukomska B, Gawron M, Garcia-Barcina M, Winnock M, Bioulac-Sage P, Balabaud Ch, Polański J, Olszewski WL: Different adhesion of liver lymphocytes to normal liver tissue primary and metastatic hepatic tumors. *Ist Scientific Conference of the Polish Association for the Study of the Liver*, Szczecin, Poland, May 30, 1996. *Abstracts*.
- 205. Łukomska B, Winnock M, Balabaud Ch, Polański J, Olszewski W: Passenger lymphocytes transplanted with liver grafts display suppressive properties in human. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, (Suppl 2), p. 70.
- 206. Łukomska B, Winnock M, Gawron W, Balabaud Ch, Polański J, Olszewski WL: Liver associated lymphocytes isolated from peritumoral regions of colon metastases are highly responsive to mitogens. Second World Congress of the International Hepato-Pancreato-Biliary Association, Bologna, Italy, June 2-4, 1996. A World Journal of Hepatic, Pancreatic and Biliary Surgery 1996, 9, Suppl 2, p. 98.
- 207. Łukomska B, Winnock M, Interewicz B, Balabaud C, Rosenbaum J, Olszewski WL: Immune events in liver – molecular mechanism of retention

of portal blood in the human liver sinusoids. *31st Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research*, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. *European Surgical Research* 1996, 28 (Suppl 1), pp. 9-10.

- 208. Łukomska B, Winnock M, Saric J, Balabaud C, Polański J, Olszewski WL: Passenger lymphocytes in human liver graft and their potential role in the suppression of host alloresponse. 8th International Symposium on Cells of the Hepatic Sinusoid, Bordeaux, France, September 1-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 103.
- 209. Maksymowicz M, Olszewski WL: A new mechanism of action of cyclosporin A – in vivo inhibition of lymphocyte migration. XXXth Anniversary of Organ Transplantation in Poland "Progress in Transplantation", Warsaw, Poland, January 25-26, 1996. Abstracts, p. 25.
- 210. Maksymowicz M, Olszewski WL: Migration of recipient lymphocytes to allograft depends on their intrinsic migratory capacity – unknown mechanism of graft infiltration. *31st Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research*, Southampton, England, April 1-3, 1996. *European Surgical Research* 1996, 28 (Suppl 1), p. 31.
- Maksymowicz M, Olszewski WL: Migration of recipient lymphocytes to allograft depends on their intrinsic migratory capacity. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, Suppl., p. 64.
- 212. Makulec-Niewiarowska I, Lipkowski AW, Marczak E, Baranowska B: Additive antibacterial effect of glucosinolates and β-lactam antibiotics. XIVth International Symposium on Medicinal Chemistry, Maastricht, The Netherlands, September 8-12, 1996. Abstracts, P-10.15
- 213. Manowska B, Fabiańczyk U, Żebrowska A, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Effect of protein/fat diet on hormonal and metabolic responses to prolonged exercise in women in different menstrual phase. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 83.
- 214. Marszałek P: Wieloetapowa metoda diagnostyki wodogłowia niskociśnieniowego [Multistage method for diagnosis of low-pressure hydrocephalus]. Scientific Conference "Advances in Treatment of Hydrocephalus"", Pułtusk, Poland, December 6-7, 1996.
- 215. Marszałek P, Chojnacka E, Walecki J: Przydatność badań TK i MRI w rozpoznawaniu wznowy glejaków nadnamiotowych [Usefulness of CT and

MRI in the diagnosis of recurrent supratentorial gliomas]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.

- 216. Marszałek P, Horsztyński D, Czernicki Z, Walecki J: Ukrwotocznienie ognisk stłuczeń u chorych po urazach czaszkowo-mózgowych [Delayed hematoma as a consequence of brain contusion]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.
- 217. Maszczyńska I, Goudas LC, Lipkowski AW, Carr DB, Kream RM: AA501, A putative opioid agonist and neurokinin antagonist: Characterization of spinal antinociceptive effects. 15th Annual Scientific Meeting of the American Pain Society, Washington DC, USA, November 14-17, 1996.
- 218. Maszczyńska I, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Carr DB, Szyfelbein SK: Współdziałanie neuropeptydów w regulacji sygnałów bólowych [Interaction of neuropeptides in pain signals modulation]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference* "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, SP (in Polish).
- 219. Maślińska D: Lokalizacja i charakterystyka immunohistochemiczna komórek tucznych w oponiakach zawierających zmiany torbielowate [Location and immunohistochemical identification of mast cells in meningiomas with cystic changes]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 42-43 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 161 (in English).
- 220. Maślińska D, Zjawisko apoptozy w chorobach reumatycznych [Apoptosis in rheumathology]. *IIIth Conference "Rheumathology in house-physician practice"*, Inowrocław, Poland, October 4-6, 1996 (in Polish).
- 221. Maślińska D, Deręgowski K, Kierska D, Fogel WA, Maśliński C: Mast cells in different functional periods of mouse mammary gland. VIIth Conference of Polish Histamine Research Society: Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds, Ustroń, Poland, November 28-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 13.
- 222. Maślińska D, Gujski M, Wagner T, Górnicka M: Expression of histamine in tumors of human mammary gland. VIIth Conference of Polish Histamine Research Society: Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds, Ustroń, Poland, November 28-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 20.
- 223. Maślińska D, Kuchna I, Szukiewicz D, Watroba M: Localization of mast cells in cystic meningiomas. *VIIth Conference of Polish Histamine Research*

Society: Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds, Ustroń, Poland, November 28-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 19.

- Maślińska D, Maśliński K: Neuronal expression of p53 in the brain of intoxicated individuals. An International Symposium: "Apoptosis and Its Role in Immunity", Warsaw, Poland, October 20, 1996. Abstract Book, p.P11.
- 225. Maślińska KT, Maślińska D: Localization of amyloid precursor protein (APP), C-Jun and P53 expression in the brain neurons undergoing induced apoptosis. 11th Biennial Meeting of the International Society for Developmental Neuroscience, Tampere, Finland, July 30 - August 3, 1996. Int J Dev Neurosci 1996, 14, p. 107, no 233.
- 226. Maśliński KN, Muzylak M, Maślińska D: Phagocytosis of apoptotic bodies in the brain of vincristine treated rabbits. 2nd International Congress on Phagocytes, Biological and Clinical Aspects, Pavia, Italy, September 4-7, 1996. Europ J Haematol 1996, 57, Suppl 56, p. 47, EP 8.
- 227. Maśliński KT, Szukiewicz D, Maślińska KN, Maślińska D: Udział apoptozy w rozwoju jądra zębatego móżdżku u człowieka [Apoptosis in the development of human dentate nucleus of the cerebellum]. *Research-teaching in Pathophysiology. Xth Conference of Polish Physiological Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 7, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 37.
- 228. Matyja E, Albrecht J: Kwas glutaminowy jako mediator neurotoksyczności rtęci nieorganicznej [Glutamic acid as a potential mediator of inorganic mercury neurotoxicity]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP (in Polish).
- 229. Mempel E: Kriochirurgiczne zabiegi mózgowe, obecnie stosowane, w zależności od rodzajów zespołów w chorobie Parkinsona [Criosurgical procedures, currently applied in Parkinson's disease depending on the type of the syndrom]. *VIIth Scientific and Training Meeting and IIIrd Symposium of the Polish Cryomedical Society*, Wrocław, Poland, September 27-28, 1996.
- 230. Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Romanowski M, O'Brien D, Stropova D, Yamamura HI, Davis P, Porreca F, Hruby VJ: Analogues of delta selective, super active DPLPE-Phe for study of aromatic acid residue topography. 27th Meeting of the International Narcotics Research Conference, Long Beach, California, USA, July 21-26, 1996. Abstracts, M50.
- 231. Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Stropova D, Davis P, Porreca F, Yamamura HI, Hruby VJ:An approach for developing of highly active opioid analogues.

2nd Australian Peptide Conference "From Discovery to Therapeutics", Fraser Island, Queensland, Australia, October 6-11, 1996. Proceedings.

- 232. Misicka A, Maszczyńska I, Lipkowski AW, Trojnar J: Analogi neuropeptydów jako selektywne nośniki NO [Neuropeptide analogues as selective carrier of NO]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, SP (in Polish).
- 233. Misicka A, Olma A, Sagan B, Tourwe D, Lipkowski AW: Amphiphilic amino acids: Deltorphin analogues with Phe(3) replaced by D- and L-alfahydroxymethylphenylalanine. 24th Symposium of the European Peptide Society, Edinburg, Scotland, September 8-13, 1996. Abstracts, P.351.
- 234. Moryś J, Sadowski M, Barcikowska M, Berdel B, Narkiewicz O: Analiza morfometryczna zmian patologicznych i odpowiedzi komórek glejowych w hipokampie w chorobie Alzheimera [Morphometric evaluation of pathological alterations and glia responses intensity in the hippocampus in Alzheimer's disease]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 44-45 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, pp. 161-162 (in English).
- Mossakowski MJ: Microcirculation in the brain in normal conditions and in cerebral ischemia. 17th Congress of the Polish Anatomical Society, Gdańsk, Poland, September 3-6, 1996.
- 236. Mossakowski MJ: Professor Stanisław Kozłowski. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozlowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996.
- Mossakowski MJ: Zespoły neuropatologiczne w przebiegu pełnoobjawowego AIDS u dorosłych w materiale polskim [Neuropathology of acquired immune deficiency syndrome in Polish material]. *Xth Conference* of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 45 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 162 (in English).
- 238. Mossakowski MJ: Zmiany starcze w ośrodkowym układzie nerwowym [Agedependent pathology of the central nervous system]. *Meeting of the Warsaw Scientific Society "5 Years of the decade of the Brain"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 10, 1996.
- 239. Mossakowski MJ, Kida E, Gołąbek AA, Pluta R: Role of amyloid in ischemic damage. *The Second International Workshop on Maturation Phenomenon*
in Cerebral Ischemia, Neuronal Recovery and Plasticity, Tokyo, Japan, June 1, 1996.

- 240. Muzylak M, Maślińska D: Phagocytosis clearance of apoptotic debris in the brain. An International Symposium: "Apoptosis and Its Role in Immunity", Warsaw, Poland, October 20, 1996. Abstract Book, p.P13.
- 241. Nauman J: Environmental surveillance: stable and isotopic iodine. South Pacific Symposium on Iodine Deficiency, Diabetes and Environment, Papeete, Tahiti, June 18-20, 1996.
- 242. Nauman J: Iodine prophylaxis in case of nuclear accident. *European Thyroid* Symposium, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, August 30 - September 4, 1996.
- 243. Nauman J: Nadczynność tarczycy i jej leczenie referat otwarcia [Hyperthyroidism, pathogenesis and treatment. Opening lecture]. XV Congress of the Polish Society of Endocrinology in cooperation with The European Federation of Endocrine Societies, Poznań, Poland, May 19-23, 1996.
- 244. Nauman J, Nauman A: Thyroid cancer in children following Chernobyl. South Pacific Symposium on Iodine Deficiency, Diabetes and Environment, Papeete, Tahiti, June 18-20, 1996.
- 245. Nazar K: Fizjologiczne podstawy wytrzymałości w sporcie [Physiological basis of endurance in sports]. *Conference of the Polish Olympic Committee Atlanta*'96, Bydgoszcz, Poland, January 10-12, 1996.
- 246. Nazar K: Zmiany reakcji hemodynamicznej na wysiłek fizyczny w przebiegu nadciśniernia pierwotnego [Changes in hemodynamic response to exercise in the course of essential hypertension]. V Congress of the Polish Society of Hypertension, Warsaw, Poland, November 15-16, 1996. Monitor Science 1996, 2, Suppl 4, abstr. no. 3.5 (in Polish).
- 247. Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Ziemba AW, Wójcik-Ziółkowska E, Niewiadomski W, Chwalbińska-Moneta J, Bicz B, Stupnicka E, Okińczyc A: Hemodynamic and hormonal responses to physiological stimuli in normotensive men with exaggerated blood pressure response to exercise. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 42.
- 248. Niebrój-Dobosz I: Czy myszy mdx stanowią dobry model dystrofii mięśniowej typu Duchenne'a? [Is the mdx mouse an adequate model of Duchenne's dystrophy?]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological

Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 202 (in Polish).

- 249. Niebrój-Dobosz I: Is the mdx mouse an adequate model of Duchenne's dustrophy? *Symposium on Recent Advances in Diagnosis and Therapy of Neuromuscular Diseases*, Prato, Italy, March 21-24, 1996. *Abstracts*.
- 250. Niewiadomski W, Kodrzycka A, Cybulski G: Computerized measurement of respiratory arrhythmia with automatic simultaneous analysis of ECG and respiratory signals. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 56.
- 251. Obmiński Z, Burkhard-Jagodzińska K, Nazar K: The effect of physical activity on steroid hormones levels in serum of girls aged 14-15 years. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 64.
- 252. Okada S, Rider L, Prasad K, Garcia-De La Torre I, Burgos Vargas R, Vazquez-Mellado J, Alcocer Varela J, Pandey I, Behan P, Behan W, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Jabłońska S, Samavoa E, Song Y, Love L, Plotz P, Targoff I, Miller F: Latitudinal gradients in the relative prevalence of dermatomyositis (DM) and its associated autoantibody, anti-Mi-2, in idiopathic inflammatory myopathy (IIM). American College of Rheumatism, Orlando, Florida, USA, October 16, 1996. Abstracts.
- 253. Okladnikov G, Czernicki Z: Urazowe krwiaki śródmóżdżkowe [Traumatic intracerebellar hematomas]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996.
- 254. Olszewski WL: Cząsteczki adhezyjne i cytokiny skóry ludzkiej w normie i zapaleniu [Adhesion molecules and cytokines in human skin]. *Symposium* "Skin Infection Adhesion Molecules and Cytokines in Skin Inflammation and Tumors", Warsaw, Poland, November 16, 1996.
- 255. Olszewski WL: Global incidence of lymphoedema. *First Annual Conference of Lymphology Society of India*, Thanjavur, India, May 12, 1996.
- 256. Olszewski WL: Guest oration: What is lymphology? What is the lymphatic system (LS)? *First Annual Conference of Lymphology Society of India*, Thanjavur, India, May 12, 1996.
- 257. Olszewski WL: Heat therapy. First Annual Conference of Lymphology Society of India, Thanjavur, India, May 12, 1996.

- 258. Olszewski WL: Immune cells traffic to skin and connective tissue. *Ist Conference: Autoimmunity and infection in rheumatoidal diseases"*, Warsaw, February 24, 1996.
- 259. Olszewski WL: Perspectives in biological methods controlling host reaction to organ and cell allografts. XXXth Anniversary of Organ Transplantation in Poland "Progress in Transplantation", Warsaw, Poland, January 25-26, 1996.
- 260. Olszewski WL: Studies on prevention of dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) and progression of lymphedema after mastectomy and groin dissection. 4th International Lymphology Symposium of Brussels, Brussels, Belgium, October 3-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 33.
- 261. Olszewski WL: Studies on prevention of dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) and progression of lymphedema after mastectomy and groin dissection. XXXIst Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research, Southampton, UK, March 31– April 3, 1996. Posters, 53.
- 262. Olszewski WL: Studies on prevention of dermatolymphangioadenitis (DLA) and progression of lymphedema after mastectomy and groin dissection. XXIst Congress "European Group of Lymphology (GEL)", Roma, Italy, May 23-25, 1996. Europ J Lymphol 1996, 6, Suppl 1, p. 9.
- Olszewski WL: Surgery in treatment of lymphedema current status 1996.
 4th International Lymphology Symposium of Brussels, Brussels, Belgium, October 3-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 53.
- 264. Olszewski WL: Video presentation of nodo-venous shunt operation. First Annual Conference of Lymphology Society of India (Workshop: Lymphoedema Management), Thanjavur, India, May 12, 1996.
- 265. Olszewski WL: What is lymphology an updated view 1996. *The Second National Lymphedema Network Conference: Lymphedema: the Problem and the Challenge*, San Francisco, USA, September 19-22, 1996. Abstracts.
- 266. Olszewski WL: The value of tissue pressure measurement before pressotherapy of lymphedematous limbs. *The Second National Lymphedema Network Conference: Lymphedema: the Problem and the Challenge*, San Francisco, USA, September 19-22, 1996. *Abstracts*.
- 267. Olszewski WL, Dworczyński A, Swoboda E, Meisel-Mikołajczyk F: Referat główny: Flora bakteryjna skóry kończyn dolnych w normie, zapaleniu skóry i naczyń chłonnych oraz owrzodzeniach podudzia – wrażliwość na

antybiotyki [Bacterial flora of skin from lower extremities in patients with dermatolymphangioadenitis and venous ulcer – sensitivity to antibiotics]. Symposium "Advances in prevention and treatment of postoperative infections", Warsaw, Poland, June 21, 1996.

- 268. Olszewski WL, Jamal S: The role of antibiotics in control of progression of lymphedema. *The Second National Lymphedema Network Conference: Lymphedema: the Problem and the Challenge*, San Francisco, USA, September 19-22, 1996. *Abstracts*.
- 269. Olszewski WL, Jaskłowska-Englisz M: Hepatocyte transplantation granulocytes recognize surface of isolated autologous hepatocytes as nonself and destroy them. XVI International Congress of the Transplantation Society, Barcelona, Spain, August 25-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 424.
- Olszewski WL, Jaskłowska-Englisz M, Interewicz B: Transplanted isolated hepatocytes mobilize syngeneic granulocytes and are lyzed. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, Suppl, p. 33.
- 271. Olszewski WL, Kubicka, Laszuk D: Lymphedema is edema + chronic inflammatory process. The Second National Lymphedema Network Conference: Lymphedema: the Problem and the Challenge, San Francisco, USA, September 19-22, 1996. Abstracts.
- Olszewski WL, Łukomska B, Durlik M, Namysłowski A: Nonspecific rapid elimination of transplanted allogeneic bone marrow cells. *Third International Congress of the Cell Transplant Society*, Miami Beach, USA, September 29 – October 2, 1996. *Cell Transplantation* 1996, 5, Suppl, p. 33.
- 273. Olszewski WL, Łukomska B, Winnock M, Balabaud Ch: Lymphocytes adhere to specific liver structures in an in vitro adherence test. 8th International Symposium on Cells of the Hepatic Sinusoid, Bordeaux, France, September 1-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 136.
- 274. Olszewski WL, Szczęsny G, Piotrowicz W: Transplantation of venolymphatic bundles and vascularized lymph nodes for restoration of lymphatic pathways. XXXIst Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research, Southampton, England, March 31 - April 3, 1996. Posters, p. 24.
- 275. Olszewski WL, Szczęsny G, Piotrowicz W: Transplantation of venolymphatic bundles and vascularized lymph nodes for restoration of lymphatic pathways. *XXIst Congress of the European Group of Lymphology (G.EL.)*, Roma, Italy, May 23-25, 1996. *Europ J Lymphol* 1996, 6 (Suppl 1), 27.

- 276. Owczarska K, Walski M, Wróblewski T: Przydatność badań mikroskopowoeleketronowych w ocenie miąższu wątroby ludzkiej po dokonanym przeszczepie w okresie wczesnym oraz późnym [Useful electron-microscopy study in evaluation human liver in early and late period after transplantation]. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań of Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 277. Pawłowska-Jenerowicz W, Wójcik-Ziółkowska E: Test wysiłkowy po nitroglicerynie (NTG) u kobiet z podejrzeniem choroby wieńcowej [Exercise test after nitroglycerine (NTG) administration in women with suspected coronary heart disease]. *International Symposium Exercise in Prevention*, *Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanislaw Kozlowski*), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 97 (in Polish).
- 278. Pfeffer A: Rozpoznanie i różnicowanie choroby Alzheimera [Clinical, differential diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease]. Symposium of Olsztyn Department of Polish Medical Societies, Olsztyn, Poland, October 11, 1996.
- 279. Pfeffer A, Barcikowska M, Łuczywek E, Gołębiowski M: Czy palenie zmniejsza ryzyko zachorowania na chorobę Alzheimera? [Does smoking diminish risk of Alzheimer's disease]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 222 (in Polish).
- 280. Pluta R, Barcikowska M, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW: Ischemia with open blood-brain barrier and circulating human b-amyloid peptide trigger Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology. *The Fifth International Conference on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders*, Osaka, Japan, July 24-29, 1996. *Neurobiology of Aging* 1996, 17 (Suppl), 4S, pp. S24-S25, no 97.
- 281. Pluta R, Barcikowska M, Kida E, Zelman I, Mossakowski MJ: Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology following cardiac arrest. *Reanimatology on the Eve of the XXIst Century. International Symposium, devoted to the 60th Anniversary of the Institute for General Reanimatology, RAMSci*, Moscow, Russia, December 2-4, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 155-156.
- 282. Pluta R, Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Januszewski S, Lipkowski AW: Poniedokrwienne otwarcie bariery naczyniowo-mózgowej i krążący ludzki β-amyloid naśladują neuropatologiczne zmiany występujące w chorobie

Alzheimera [Post-ischemic opening of blood-brain barrier and circulating human β -amyloid peptide mimic Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 50 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 163 (in English).

- 283. Pluta R, Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Januszewski S, Lipkowski AW: A promising animal model of Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology. 3rd Hungarian Congress of Alzheimer's Disease, Budapest, Hungary, October 17-19, 1996. Clinic Neurosci 1996, 49, Suppl 1, p. 19, no 28.
- 284. Pluta R, Januszewski S, Barcikowska M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW: A promising animal model of Alzheimer type pathology. *12th Alzheimer's Disease International Conference*, Jerusalem, Israel, October 8-11, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 34.
- 285. Pluta R, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW: Obiecujący model neuropatologicznych zmian charakterystycznych dla choroby Alzheimera [Promising model of neuropathological changes typical for Alzheimer's disease]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 231 (in Polish).
- 286. Pluta R, Misicka A, Barcikowska M, Januszewski S, Lipkowski AW: A promising rat model of Alzheimer's disease-like neuropathology. *The 17th Congress of the Polish Anatomical Society*, Gdańsk, Poland, September 3-6, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 102-103. *Folia Morphol (Warsaw)* 1996, 55, 417-419.
- 287. Pluta R, Misicka A, Januszewski S, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW: Transport of human β-amyloid peptide through the rat blood-brain barrier after global cerebral ischemia. *Brain Edema 1996. The Tenth International Symposium*, San Diego, USA, October 20-30, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 32.
- 288. Pluta R, Osęka M, Januszewski S, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Barcikowska M, Koźniewska E: Increase of cerebral blood flow in rats after human betaamyloid peptide infusion. *The 17th Congress of the Polish Anatomical Society*, Gdańsk, Poland, September 3-6, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 103. *Folia Morphol (Warsaw)* 1996, 55, 420-421.
- 289. Pluta R, Osęka M, Lipkowski AW, Koźniewska E: Circulating β-amyloid peptide increases cerebral blood-flow in anesthetized rats. *Vth European Congress of Neuropathology*, Paris, France, April 23-27, 1996. *Neuropathol Appl Neurobiol* 1996, 22, Suppl 1, p. 11.

- 290. Pluta R, Osęka M, Misicka A, Januszewski S, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW, Koźniewska E: Wzrost mózgowego przepływu krwi po infuzji ludzkiego β-amyloidu [Increase of cerebral blood flow following infusion of human β-amyloid peptide]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-III (in Polish).
- 291. Pluta R, Osęka M, Misicka A, Lipkowski AW, Januszewski S, Barcikowska M: Wpływ beta-amyloidu na wzrost mózgowego przepływu krwi w warunkach doświadczalnych [Influence of β-amyloid on increase of cerebral blood flow in experimental condition]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 230 (in Polish).
- 292. Pluta R, Osęka M, Misicka A, Januszewski S, Barcikowska M, Lipkowski AW, Koźniewska E: Nowe dane na temat fizjologicznych właściwości β-amyloidu [What's new in the physiological properties of β-amyloid peptide?]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 49 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 163 (in English).
- 293. Pokora I, Grucza R: Oxygen uptake and heart rate in men and women exercising after fat/protein diet. International 14th Puijo Symposium "Physical Activity, Diet and Cardiovascular Diseases – A Fresh Look beyond Old Facts", Kuopio, Finland, June 24-28, 1996.
- 294. Pokora I, Grucza R, Chmura J: Influence of fat/protein diet on thermoregulatory responses to exercise in men and women. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 86.
- 295. Pokora I, Grucza R, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Oxygen uptake and blood lactate in women performing bicycle VO2max test after low-carbohydrate diet. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 24.
- 296. Pokora I, Pilis W, Grucza R, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Effect of low-carbohydrate diet on metabolic and heart rate responses to exercise in women. *International Symposium "Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Theraphy of Metabolic Disorders"*, Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 64, P-12.

- 297. Pokorski M, Walski M, Strosznajder R: A phospholipase C inhibitor impedes the hypoxic ventilatory response in the cat. *XIIIth International Symposium on Arterial Chemoreceptors*, Santiago, Chile, March 25-29, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 74.
- 298. Rafałowska J: AIDS a układ nerwowy [AIDS and nervous system]. Conference of Medical Association of Warsaw, Warsaw, Poland, January 14, 1996.
- 299. Rafałowska J, Dziewulska D, Jamrozik Z: Zakrzepica żyły Galena. Opis kliniczny i morfologiczny przypadku [Thrombosis of Galen's vein. Clinical and morphological picture]. Meeting of the Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, November 29, 1996 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1997, 35, p. 69 (in English).
- 300. Rafałowska J, Podlecka A: Reakcja astrocytów w rdzeniu kręgowym w sclerosis lateralis amyotrophica (SLA) [Astrocytic reactivity within spinal cord in amyotrophic lateral sclerosis]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 51 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 163 (in English).
- 301. Rafałowska U, Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Jasińska R: Chroniczne zatrucie ołowiem a skład komponenty fosfolipidowej oraz wolnorodnikowe utlenianie w mielinie mózgu szczura [Chronic lead toxicity, phospholipid component and peroxidation processes in myelin of rat brain]. XXXII Meeting of the Polish Society on Biochemistry, Cracow, Poland, September 17-20, 1996. Abstracts, p. 42, II-20 (in Polish).
- 302. Rafałowska U, Strużyńska L, Dąbrowska-Bouta B: Chroniczne zatrucie ołowiek a procesy energetyczne w synaptosomach mózgu szczura [Chronic lead toxicity and energetic processes in rat brain synaptosomes]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, B-I (in Polish).
- 303. Rak L, Cybulski G, Zarzeczny R, Zając A: Cardiovascular changes in response to static exercise and different body position. XXIII Congress of the Polish Society of Sports Medicine, Cracow, Poland, September 15-18, 1996. Medycyna Sportowa 1996, 12, p. 64.
- 304. Rap ZM, Czernicki Z, Mueller HW, Schoner W: Hipotetyczna rola endogennego strofantyno-podobnego czynnika (ESPC) w doświadczalnym obrzęku mózgu [Hypothetical role of the endogenous ouabain-like substance (EOLS) in experimentally induced vasogenic brain edema]. Xth Conference

of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 51-52 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, pp. 163-164 (in English).

- 305. Rowińska-Marcińska H, Drac H: Badania elektrofizjologiczne w ostrych i przewlekłych demielizacyjnych polineuropatiach zapalnych [Electrophysiological changes in acute and chronic inflammatory demyelinating polyneuropathy]. XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, Suppl 3, p. 250 (in Polish).
- 306. Rudnik-Schöenborn S, Borkowska J, Forrest E, Zaremba J, Zerres K, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Further evidence for a sex difference in proximal spinal muscular atrophy type III. Second Congress of the European Federation of Neurological Sciences, Rome, Italy, October 30 - November 3, 1996. Europ J Neurol 1996, 3, Suppl 5, pp. 129.
- 307. Rudnik-Schöenborn S, Thiele S, Borkowska J, Karwańska A, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I, Zerres K: Analysis of the CK activity in 469 patients with proximal spinal muscular atrophy (SMA) types I-III. Second Congress of the European Federation of Neurological Sciences, Rome, Italy, October 30 - November 3, 1996. Europ J Neurol 1996, 3, Suppl 5, pp. 128-129.
- 308. Ryba M, Grieb P, Janczewski W, Sawicki J, Jagielski J, Andrychowski J, Mantużyk J, Janisz M: Morfologiczne i funkcjonalne dojrzewanie wszczepów płodowego pnia mózgu szczura w mózgu dorosłych królików [Morphological and functional maturation of fetal brain stem implants in the adult rabbit brain]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, SP (in Polish).
- 309. Ryba M, Grieb P, Janisz M, Walski M, Jagielski J, Bero M, Kasperczyk J: Biokompatybilność biodegradowalnego polimeru laktydowo-kaprolaktamowego z tkankami mózgowymi szczura [Biocompatibility of a lactidecaprolactone biodegradable polymer with rat brain tissues]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, SP (in Polish).
- 310. Sadowski J, Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Walkowska A: Tissue NaCl and blood flow in the medulla of the explanted rat kidney (a new experimental model). *The 2nd European Kidney Research Forum (EKRF)*, Baveno, Italy, May 24-27, 1996.

- 311. Sadowski J, Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Walkowska A: The chronically explanted rat kidney: Evaluation of a new experimental model. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 134.
- 312. Salińska E, Ziembowicz A, Stafiej A, Ziemińska E, Łazarewicz JW: Niska aktywność zależnego od Ca²⁻ wyrzutu Ca²⁻ w hipokampie królika [Low activity of calcium induced calcium release in rabbit hippocampus]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 43 (in Polish).
- 313. Samochocki M, Koładkiewicz I, Chalimoniuk M, Strosznajder J: Wpływ starzenia na receptorowo-zależną degradację fosfoinozytydów i mobilizację wewnątrzkomórkowego wapnia w korze mózgu [Effect of aging on receptors-dependent phosphoinositides degradation and intracellular mobilization of calcium ions in brain cortex]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, A-III (in Polish).
- 314. Samochocki M, Treiman M, Strosznajder J: Mechanizm regulacji cytozolowego poziomu jonów wapnia w mózgu starczym [Mechanism of regulation of cytosolic ion concentration in aged brain]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 33-34 (in Polish).
- Sapieja W, Czernicki Z: Anterior cervical dissectomy without fusion. Ist Polish-Czech-Slovak Symposium of Neurosurgicals Societes, Polanica Zdrój, Poland, October 10-12, 1996.
- 316. Sapieja W, Kuridze N, Czernicki Z: Regional differences in the cerebrovascular reserves following acute global ischemia in rabbits. *Tenth International Brain Edema Symposium Cellular Injury and Brain Edema* 1996, San Diego, California, USA, October 20-23, 1996.
- 317. Saran T, Albrecht J, Kocki T, Kleinrok Z, Urbańska EM, Turski WA: Przeciwstawny wpływ amoniaku *in vitro* i hiperamonemii w modelu tioacetamidowym *in vivo* na syntezę kwasu kynureninowego w skrawkach kory mózgu szczura [Opposite effects of ammonia *in vitro* and hyperammonemia in the thioacetamide model on the kynurenic acid synthesis in cerebral cortical slices of rat]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference*

"Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 24-25 (in Polish).

- 318. Smol E, Czarnowski D, Langfort J, Żernicka E: Lipoprotein lipase activity in the rat soleus muscle after denervation, tenotomy and electrostimulation. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 58.
- 319. Smol E, Pilis W, Langfort J, Żernicka E: Lipoprotein lipase activity and triacylglicerol content in the rat skeletal muscles after denervation and electrostimulation. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 125.
- 320. Smorawiński J, Kubala P, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Titow-Stupnicka E, Greenleaf JE: Effects of three day bed-rest on circulatory, metabolic and hormonal responses to oral glucose load in endurance trained athletes and untrained subjects. *The 17th Annual International Gravitational Physiology Meeting*, Warsaw, Poland, April 14-19, 1996. *Abstracts*, no 48.
- 321. Smorawiński J, Kubala P, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K, Titow-Stupnicka E: Plasma catecholamine responses to active orthostatic test and oral glucose load in endurance trained and untrained subjects after bed-rest. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 60.
- 322. Stelmach W, Dąbrowiecki Z, Walski M, Gadamski R, Zelman IB, Kierznikowski B: Effect of dietry on development of cerebral malaria in rats. International Conference: "The Molecular and Free Radical Basis of Wide Spectrum Disease", Łódź-Płock, Poland, May 7-8, 1996. Abastracts, p. 9-10.
- 323. Stelmasiak Z, Solski J, Nowicki J, Jakubowska B, Ryba M, Grieb P: Cladribine reduces relapse rate in remitting-relapsing multiple sclerosis – results of 2 year pilot open study. *II Meeting of the European Federation of Neurological Sciences*, Roma, Italy, September, 1996.
- 324. Strosznajder J, Samochocki M, Chalimoniuk M: Regulation of receptors mediated phosphoinositides degeneration and calcium mobilisation in brain cortex. Effect of aging. *Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. J *Neurochem* 1996, 66, Suppl 2.

- 325. Strosznajder RP: Effect of acute hypoxia and dopamine on arachidonic acid metabolism in cat carotid bodies. *ERS Annual Congress*, Stockholm, Sweden, September 7-11, 1996. *Europ Respir J* 1996, 9, Suppl 23, P2098.
- 326. Strużyńska L, Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Rafałowska U: Ostre zatrucie ołowiem a procesy energetyczne w synaptosomach mózgu szczura [Acute lead toxication and energetic processes in rat brain synaptosomes]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 28 (in Polish).
- 327. Strużyńska L, Walski M, Gadamski R, Dąbrowska-Bouta B, Rafałowska U: Zmiany morfologiczne i funkcjonalne bariery krew-mózg w chronicznym zatruciu ołowiem [Morphological and functional changes in the blood-brain barrier in chronic lead toxicity]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, B-I (in Polish).
- 328. Strużyńska L, Walski M, Rafałowska U: Wpływ ołowiu na barierę krewmózg u dorosłych szczurów w chronicznym zatruciu ołowiem. Badania elektronowo-mikroskopiwe [The influence of lead on the blood-brain barrier of adult rats in chronic lead intoxication]. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań' Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 329. Swoboda-Kopeć E, Dworczyński A, Kubicka U, Meisel-Mikołajczyk F, Olszewski WL: Bakteryjne zakażenia skóry w filariazie [Bacterial infections of skin in patients with filarial lymphedema]. XIIth International Conference: Microbiological Diagnostic, Puławy, Poland, June 19-20, 1996. Rocznik Wojskowego Instytutu Higieny i Epidemiologii [Annals of Military Institute of Higiene and Epidemiology] 1996, 33, Suppl 1 (poster).
- 330. Synak M, Żernicka E, Budohoski L, Terjung R, Langfort J, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K: Palmitate uptake by different skeletal muscles in perfused rat hindquarter. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 126.
- 331. Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Major myelin-specific gene expression in pt PLP gene mutant rabbit. Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. J Neurochem 1996, 66 (Suppl 2), p. S50.

- 332. Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Mutacja pt genu PLP i jej wpływ na tworzenie się mieliny [Mutation of pt PLP gene and its influence on myelinogenesis]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 57 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 165 (in English).
- 333. Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Oligodendrocyte and myelin biogenesis in dysmyelinating PLP mutant pt-rabbit. 11th Biennial Meeting of the International Society for Developmental Neuroscience, Tampere, Finland, July 30-August 3, 1996. Int J Develop Neurosci 1996, 14 (Suppl C), p. 57.
- 334. Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Phenotypic differences in myelin specific genes expression in pt PLP gene mutant rabbit. 11th Biennial Meeting of the International Society for Developmental Neuroscience, Tampere, Finland, July 30 – August 3, 1996. Int J Develop Neurosci 1996, 14 (Suppl C), p. 81.
- 335. Sypecka J, Domańska-Janik K: Wpływ mutacji pt genu plp na dojrzewanie i funkcjonowanie oligodendrocytów [Influence of pt mutation of PLP gene on maturation and function of oligodendrocytes]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, A-II (in Polish).
- 336. Szczęsny G, Olszewski WL: The effect of tissue glue tissuecol on healing of damaged lymph vessels and nodes. XXXIst Congress of the European Society for Surgical Research, Southampton, England, March 31 - April 3, 1996. Posters, p. 52.
- Szereda-Przestaszewska M: Role of the larynx in apnoea. International Congress on Sudden Infant Death Syndrome, Kosice, Slovakia, April 18-20, 1996. Abstracts, p.14.
- 338. Szereda-Przestaszewska M, Wypych B: Contribution of lung vagi to the respiratory response to nicotine in cats. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 140.
- 339. Szereda-Przestaszewska M, Wypych B: Inspiratory muscles response to nicotine in anesthetized cats. Role of the vagi. ERS Annual Congress, Stockholm, Sweden, September 7-11, 1996. Europ Respir J 1996, 6, Suppl 23, p. 46s, no 0353.
- 340. Szukiewicz D, Szukiewicz A, Maślińska D, Gujski M, Poppe P, Markowski M: Influence of endogenous and exogenous histamine on the placental vascular resistance in diabetes complicated pregnancy. VIIth Conference of

Polish Histamine Research Society: Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds, Ustroń, Poland, November 28-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 23.

- 341. Szukiewicz D, Szukiewicz A, Maślińska D, Poppe P, Gujski M, Piórkowski R: Influence of dopamine on the vascular resistance-human placenta perfusion study. VIIth Conference of Polish Histamine Research Society: Biogenic Amines and Related Biologically Active Compounds, Ustroń, Poland, November 28-30, 1996. Abstracts, p. 8.
- 342. Szumańska G, Albrecht J: Wiązanie lektyn w mózgu szczura w modelu encefalopatii wątrobowej wywołanej tioacetamidem [Binding of lectins in rat brain in thioacetamide induced hepatic encephalopathy]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, B-I (in Polish).
- 343. Śmiałek M, Gajkowska B, Gordon-Krajcer W, Ostrowski RP: Doświadczalna encefaloneuropatia skwalenowa u szczura [Experimental squalene encephalopathy in the rat]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, pp. 63-64 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, pp. 166-167 (in English).
- 344. Śmiałek M, Gajkowska B, Piotrowski P, Ostrowski RP: Doświadczalna encefaloneuropatia u szczura w następstwie zatrucia tellurynem sodu [Experimental encephalopathy following intoxication with sodium tellurine in the rat]. Conference "Metals and Metaloids – Pharmacologic, Toxicologic and Environmental Aspects", Białowieża, Poland, June 2-3, 1996. Abstracts, p. 93 (in Polish).
- 345. Taraszewska A: Ultrastrukturalny obraz mieliny u starczego królika mutanta pt [Ultrastructural pattern of myelin in the brains of aged pt rabbit mutants]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 64 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, p. 167 (in English).
- 346. Tarnecki R, Mempel E, Kołodziejak A, Witkiewicz B: Somatosensoryczne potencjały wywołane rejestrowane w chorobie Parkinsona przed i po kriotalamotomii [Somatosensory evoked potentials observed in Parkinson's disease before and after cryothalamotomy]. Jubilee Symposium of the Polish Society of Neurosurgeons, Cracow, Poland, June 20-24, 1996. Przegląd Lekarski 1996, 53, Suppl 1, 332 (in Polish).

- 347. Torlińska T, Langfort J, Maćkowiak P, Hryniewiecki T, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Effect of hypothermia on 2-deoxyglucose transport, insulin binding and insulin sensitivity of the rat soleus muscle. *International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski)*, Warszawa, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 54.
- 348. Turski WA, Albrecht J, Kocki T, Saran T, Urbańska EM: Inhibition of kynurenic acid synthesis by ammonia in rat brain slices. *1996 Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience*, Washington, USA, November 16-21, 1996. *Abstracts*.
- 349. Wajgt A, Ochudło S, Strzyżewska L, Grieb P, Szczechowski L: Leczenie przewlekle postępującej postaci stwardnienia rozsianego Cladrybiną [The treatment of chronic progressive multiple sclerosis with cladribine]. *XVIth Symposium of the Polish Neurological Society*, Katowice, Poland, September 26-29, 1996 (in Polish).
- 350. Walkowska A, Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Sadowski J: Glucagon control of the cortico-papillary NaCl gradient in rat kidney. *The 2nd European Kidney Research Forum (EKRF)*, Baveno, Italy, May 24-27, 1996. *Kidney International* 1996, 50, 1780.
- 351. Walkowska A, Kompanowska-Jezierska E, Sadowski J: Renal response to water load in the rat: role of anesthesia and acute surgery. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 135.
- 352. Walski M, Borowicz J: Fagocyty mózgowe i komórki mikroglejowe w korze mózgu szczurów we wczesnym i późnym okresie po przebyciu śmierci klinicznej [The brain phagocytes and microglia in cerebral cortex in early and late period after clinical death]. *Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists*, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 66 (in Polish). *Folia Neuropathol* 1996, 34, pp. 167-168 (in English).
- 353. Walski M, Borowicz J: Okołonaczyniowe odczyny reparacyjne w korze mózgu szczurów w późnym okresie po przebyciu śmierci klinicznej [Perivascular repair processes in cerebral cortex in late period after clinical death]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, p. 65 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 167 (in English).
- 354. Walski M, Celary-Walska R: Doświadczalne blokowanie syntezy białek w organizmie szczura i wynikające implikacje związane z powstawaniem

surfaktanta płucnego [Experimental inhibition of protein synthesis in organism of rat, and the consequences of surfactant in the lungs]. Scienific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań' Polish Pathological Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.

- 355. Walski M, Celary-Walska R: Zewnątrzkomórkowa wyściółka pęcherzylów płucnych. Rozważania dotyczące architektury elementów surfaktinta płucnego [Extracellular endothelium of the lung alveoli. Architecture of lung surfactant]. *VIII Symposium of the Polish Group of the ERS*, Istebna, Polind, February 21-24, 1996. *Abstracts* (in Polish).
- 356. Walski M, Celary-Walska R, Owczarska K: Badania ultrastrukturalne części oddechowej płuc w długotrwałym nadciśnieniu tętniczym krwi [Utrastructural study of the respiratory part of the lungs in prolonged arterial hypertension]. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Section of Elecron Microscopy and Department Poznań' Polish Pathological Society, Poziań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 257. Walski M, Celary-Walska R, Walczak E: Analiza ultrastrukturalna bla:zki miażdżycowej ściany naczyń wieńcowych pochodząca od pacjentów ze zmianą pierwotną oraz wtórną [Analysis of the artherosclerotic plaqu: of the wall coronary artheries received from the patients with primary ind secondary changes]. Scientific Conference of Comission of Electron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Secion of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań' Polish Pathologcal Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.
- 358. Walski M, Chomicz L: Ultrastructural evaluation of brain phagocytes in the period of survival after clinical death. 2nd International Congress on Phagocytes, Biological and Clinical Aspects, Pavia, Italy, September 4-7, 1996. Europ J Haematol 1996, 57, 59, 21.
- 359. Walski M, Krzeska D, Skóra B, Boniecki W: Próby identyfikacji tyjów komórek neurosekrecyjnych w guzach przysadki. Badania elektronovomikroskopowe [Attempts of identification of types of the neurosecreory cells of hypophysial tumors]. Scientific Conference of Comission of Elecron Microscopy, Committee of Cellular and Molecular Pathology and Secion of Electron Microscopy and Department Poznań' Polish Pathologcal Society, Poznań, Poland, December 6, 1996.

- 360. Waśkiewicz J: Zmiany w wiązaniu GABA do receptora GABA_B wywołane toksycznym działaniem ołowiu [Changes in GABA binding to GABA_B receptor caused by toxic lead action]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, B-I (in Polish).
- 361. Waśkiewicz J, Rafałowska U: Rola toksycznego działania ołowiu *in vivo* w transporcie cytrynianu do mitochondriów synaptosomalnych mózgu szczura [The role of toxic lead action *in vivo* in the citrate transport to rat brain synaptic mitochondria]. *IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system"*, Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. 27 (in Polish).
- 362. Waśkiewicz J, Rafałowska U: Zmiany w kinetyce transportu cytrynianu do mitochondriów synaptosomalnych wywołane chronicznym zatruciem ołowiem [Changes in the kinetic of the citrate transport to synaptic mitochondria caused by chronic lead intoxication]. XXXII Meeting of the Polish Society on Biochemistry, Cracow, Poland, September 17-20, 1996. Abstracts, p. 42, II-21 (in Polish).
- 363. Winnock M, Łukomska B, Gawron W, Balabaud C, Rosenbaum J, Olszewski WL: Les capacités prolifératives de la population lymphocytaire hépatique different de celles de la population lymphocytaire du sang périphérique. Journées Francophones de Pathologie Digestive, Lille, France, 23-27 Mars, 1996. *Gastroenterol Clin Biol* 1996, 20, A192.
- 364. Winnock M, Łukomska B, Saric J, Polański J, Olszewski W, Balabaud C: Characterization of the proliferative response to mitogens by liver-associated lymphocytes. 8th International Symposium on Cells of the Hepatic Sinusoid, Bordeaux, France, September 1-5, 1996. Abstracts, p. 197.
- 365. Wiśniewski KE, Kida E, Dambska M: Altered induction of Bcl-2 protein in Down syndrome and AD brain. Fifth International Conference on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders, Osaka, Japan, July 24-29. Neurobiology of Aging 1996, 17 (Suppl), 4S, p. S190.
- 366. Wiśniewski K, Kida E, Kuchna I, Wierzba-Bobrowicz T, Dąmbska M: Regulators of neuronal survival (Bcl-2, Bax, c-Jun) in pre- and postnatal human frontal and temporal lobes in normal and Down syndrome brain. "Normal and Abnormal Development of the Cortex" Colloques médecine et recherche. Foundation IPSEN, Paris, France, October 14, 1996. Abstracts.

- 367. Wojtal E, Budzińska K: Beta-adrenergic agonist, isoprenaline activites shortterm potentiation in hypoglossal nerve activity. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p.190.
- 368. Wójcik-Ziółkowska E: Test wysiłkowy dynamiczno-statyczny w rozpoznawaniu niewydolności wieńcowej [Mixed static/dynamic test in diagnosis of coronary heart disease]. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 99 (in Polish).
- 369. Wójcik-Ziółkowska E, Szczypaczewska M, Płachcińska-Bijak M, Bicz B: Effect of two-week training program on exercise tolerance and blood lipids in middle aged men at high risk of coronary heart disease. *International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski)*, Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 100.
- 370. Wójcik-Ziółkowska E, Walczak F, Romiszowska C, Kępski R: Wartość rokownicza elektrokardiogramu o wysokiej rozdzielczości i 24-godz. zapisu metodą Holtera w 13-23 roku po zawale serca [Prognostic value of high resolution electrocardiogram and 24 h registration by Holter method, 13-23 years after myocardial infarction]. International Symposium Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Therapy of Metabolic Disorders (Devote to the memory of the late Prof. Stanisław Kozłowski), Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. Abstract Book, p. 98 (in Polish).
- 371. Wypych B: Vagal afferent influences on the respiratory effectors in postserotonin pattern of breathing in cats. *ERS Annual Congress*, Stockholm, Sweden, September 7-11, 1996. *Europ Respir J* 1996, 9, Suppl 23, p.131s, P0872.
- 372. Wypych B, Szereda-Przestaszewska M: Occurrence of apnoea due to capsaicin challenge into various sites of the vascular bed in cats. *XV. Martin Days of Respiration*, Martin, Slovakia, July 2-3, 1996. *Abstracts*, p.9.
- 373. Wypych B, Szereda-Przestaszewska M: Wpływ oddechowy kapsaicyny podanej do tętnicy krtaniowej u uśpionych kotów [Respiratory effect of capsaicin given into the laryngeal artery in anesthetized cats]. *VIII Symposium of the Polish Group of the ERS*, Istebna, Poland, February 21-24, 1996. *Abstracts* (in Polish).

- 374. Zabłocka B, Domańska-Janik K: Udział pul subkomórkowych w wyrzucie [³H]D-asparaginianu ([³H]D-ASP.) w ischemii mózgu in vitro [Role of subcellular compartments in the release of [³H]D-aspartate ([³H]D-ASP) during ischemia-like conditions in rat brain slices]. *IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological* processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. *Abstracts*, B-III (in Polish).
- 375. Zabłocka B, Domańska-Janik K: Zmiany ekspresji genów Ca²⁻-zależnych izoform PKC wywołane niedokrwieniem mózgu u gerbili [Changes of the expression of Ca²⁻ dependent isoforms of PKC genes after gerbil brain ischemia]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 19-20 (in Polish).
- 376. Zabłocka B, Zalewska T, Domańska-Janik K: The role of calpain in postischemic modulation of Ca²⁻-dependent protein kinase C (PKC) isoforrms. *Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry*, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. *Abstracts*, p. S60.
- 377. Zalewska E, Hausmanowa-Petruserwicz I: Global and detailed features of motor unit potential's shape-evaluation and interpretation. 8th European Congress of Clinical Neurophysiology, Munich, Germany, October 9-11, 1996. Electroenceph Clin Neurophysiol 1996, 99, 4, p. 298-299.
- 378. Zalewska E, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: What is really important in the MUAP – is it its shape? Symposium of the Polish and the Finnish Societies of Clinical Neurophysiology "Progress in Clinical Neurophysiology, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Neurol Neurochir Pol 1996, 30 (Suppl 3), 71-76.
- 379. Zalewska E, Rowińska-Marcińska K, Hausmanowa-Petrusewicz I: Quantitative evaluation of double motor unit potentials shape. *The 10th Nordic-Baltic Conference on Biomedical Engineering*, Tampere, Finland, June 9-13, 1996. *Med Biol Engin Comp* 1996, 34, Suppl 1, pp. 271-272.
- 380. Zalewska T, Czechmańska T, Domańska-Janik K: Wapniowo-zależna proteoliza w ischemii mózgu [Calcium-dependent proteolysis during brain ischemia]. IIIrd Neurochemical Conference "Biochemistry, pathophysiology and molecular biology of neurotransmission and signal transduction in the nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, December 17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 34-35 (in Polish).

- 381. Zalewska T, Domańska-Janik K: Mechanizmy aktywacji kalpain w ischemii mózgu [Mechanisms of calpain activation under brain ischemia]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 67-68 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 168 (in English).
- Zalewska T, Domańska-Janik K: On the mechanism of calpain activation under ischemia. Eleventh Meeting of the European Society for Neurochemistry, Groningen, The Netherlands, June 15-20, 1996. Abstracts, p. S23.
- 383. Zalewska T, Krzysztoń J, Zabłocka B, Domańska-Janik K: Aktywność kalpain (form m i μ) w ischemii mózgu [The activity of m- and μ-calpain under brain ischemia]. IInd Neurochemical Conference "Molecular mechanisms of physiological and pathological processes in the central nervous system", Warsaw, Poland, January 12, 1996. Abstracts, A-1 (in Polish).
- 384. Zarzeczny R, Langfort J, Pilis W, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K: Influence of low-carbohydrate diet on hormonal responses to graded exercise in relation to lactate threshold. *International Symposium "Exercise in Prevention, Diagnosis and Theraphy of Metabolic Disorders"*, Warsaw, Poland, September 25-27, 1996. *Abstract Book*, p. 63.
- 385. Zarzeczny R, Pilis W, Langfort J, Zarzeczna D: Effect of adrenodemedullation on lactate threshold and exercise tolerance in rats. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 87.
- 386. Zelman IB, Mossakowski MJ: Aspergiloza w przebiegu AIDS [Brain aspergillosis in the AIDS cases]. Xth Conference of Polish Association of Neuropathologists, Warsaw, Poland, May 15-17, 1996. Abstracts, pp. 68-69 (in Polish). Folia Neuropathol 1996, 34, p. 168 (in English).
- 387. Ziemba A, Nazar K, Kaciuba-Uściłko H: Post glucose thermogenesis in men and women of different age in relation to body mass index, blood insulin and noradrenaline. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p.32.
- 388. Żernicka E, Langfort J, Budohoski L, Kaciuba-Uściłko H, Nazar K: Influence of sustained hyperadrenalinemia on lipoprotein lipase activity in soleus muscle of rats. XX Congress of the Polish Physiological Society, Wrocław, Poland, September 8-11, 1996. J Physiol Pharmacol 1996, 47, Suppl 2, p. 128.